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Veson Holdings Limited (“Veson” or the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”), with its focus on the R&D and application
of lithium-ion battery, is a leading provider of lithium power solution
for consumer electronics and smart hardware products and a leading
manufacturer of lithium-ion battery module packaging and integration
in the PRC, which was listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in December 2006.

The Group is mainly engaged in the provision of lithium power
solutions and products to well-known international and domestic
mobile communication companies and internet technology companies.
Supported by its self-developed and self-designed power management
system with high reliability as well as advanced technology in battery
module packaging, the Group's lithium-ion battery products have a
reputation for high safety and high quality in the industry. The core
business of the Group is mainly the supply of high quality lithium-ion
battery modules for original mobile telecommunication, mobile digital,
smart electronics and smart hardware products, through integration
into the supply chain systems of well-known mobile communication
companies and internet technology companies in the PRC and abroad.
The high-quality customer groups served by the Group have strong
competitiveness and stable market shares, laying a foundation for
the Group’s sustainable and stable growth. The high reliability of the
Group's product, mass delivery capabilities and standardised and efficient
operating systems give the Group a competitive edge.
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The Group’s main production base is located in an industrial park
in Fuzhou, the PRC, which has strict quality control system and
environmental management system, adopts industry-leading automated
equipment and processes, implements strict process control during the
manufacturing process to fully meet the requirements of large-scale
production and ensure each product is of high quality, and follows
advanced international standards by adopting strict control throughout
its production process including selection of suppliers, raw materials
procurement, and production and quality control to provide customers
with safe and reliable products. Accumulated with years of production
and management experiences, the Group has developed a modernised
manufacturing system featuring refined management, standardised
governance and high efficiency, which enhanced the Group’s market
competitiveness through the improvement of business operating
efficiency and better cost control, and enabled the Group to become
one of the most important R&D and production bases for consumer
lithium-ion battery products in the PRC.

Upholding the enterprise spirit of “efficiency, innovation, excellence
and integrity”, the Group will continue to provide high-quality products
and services to its customers, thereby energising the world in which
everything is connected.

VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED
BEERERA T

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2022
&

CORPORATE PROFILE
A Gh

AEETEAEEEMUNTREMN  BERBNES
BHERREREEERS  RARTERUKENS
BREETE  FEMREERTETEENTE
7l TomRRBRCEENERRERSEERD
BRME  REALETFEEEREER  RER
MRHAR A E R E BRI S RNBER L ERERE
BIRNEE  REFPRHLEVENER - BBZF
BMENE FEREELR  BYUE-ETERS
REDBHRACRER R - BBDRLEY RN
= AERRENMEES - R T AENTISHFRE
N RERBEAEEREERIBE MM B ELER

AEEBEF S BIF - 28 BEINEER
o BEARPREBEMNERNRE  AEMEH
Mt R HAEE -



VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED

BIEERERLQF

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2022

[

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
(RMB thousand except where otherwise stated)

HE2022F12A31BILEE
(BRBBEEAIN  UARETITIIR)

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000 % Change
AR®TRT ARBTT Z3E5H

(+/-)
Turnover £ 6,359,226 7,091,644 -10.3%
Profit for the year NG g A 20,066 38,561 -48.0%
Profit for the year attributable to KAREE A
owners of the Company NGy 24,038 42,182 -43.0%
Earnings per share BRAEN
— Basic and diluted (RMB cents) —EAREE(ARES) 2.21 3.87 -42.9%
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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Veson Holdings Limited (“Veson” or the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to present the annual results
of the Company for the full year from 1 January 2022 to 31 December
2022 (the “Review Period”).

Looking back at 2022, the Group’s main business, i.e. ODM business,
focused on the production of lithium-ion battery products, which are
mainly used in 3C consumer electronics and smart hardware products
such as smartphones and power banks. The main customers are well-
known mobile communication companies and internet technology
companies in the PRC and abroad. With the increasing breadth and
depth of cooperation between the Group and customers, the Group’s
consolidated market position has made the Group a major supplier of
lithium batteries for smartphones and consumer electronics.

During the Review Period, the Group was devoted to improving its quality
control system to continuously improve its production efficiency and
technological level to ensure that all manufactured batteries meet high
safety standards. In recent years, in order to enhance the production
capacity of its ODM business, the Group has gradually integrated various
resources of the Group to improve production efficiency and further
improve the quality control system by redeploying resources and adding
automation equipment. As the production capacity of the Group had
previously been fully utilised, the Group needed to be equipped with
new production and supporting facilities for the production needs of its
future business. Therefore, the Group implemented the expansion plan
of the industrial park located in Fuzhou in mid-2019 to enhance the
Group's production capacity. The construction of two new factories was
completed in April 2020 and a part of the new factories has been put into
use in stages between 2021 and 2022. In addition to providing the Group
with additional production capacity, the new plant has a new design that
optimises the production process, and provides the basic conditions for
further consolidating and improving the quality of the products of the
Group. As for customers, the Group was constantly looking for more
partners to cooperate with, and the Group provided quality battery
supply to proactively meet the needs of existing customers. In view
of the continued recurrence of the outbreak of the novel coronavirus
(COVID-19) (the “Pandemic”), the Group was highly concerned about
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the prevention and control of the Pandemic and actively adopted various
measures to ensure orderly production and timely delivery of its products
as scheduled. In respect of supply, in order to provide customers with
assured quality, the Group, through its careful selection of supplier
partners, ensured that it can provide its customers with high quality
and diversified battery cell options and make greater efforts to satisfy
its customers. In addition, apart from product safety, focusing on the
environmental and social impact of production and ensuring work safety
were also the Group’s primary tasks. We have always ensured production
and operation are conducted in a way in which we shoulder social
responsibilities, and we will continue to develop the business in a healthy
way to provide high quality products for customers while providing a
safe and comfortable work environment for our staff.

The Pandemic led to an unprecedented global crisis, and the anti-
pandemic lockdown order and economic uncertainties around the world
brought about by the Pandemic caused consumers to stop spending on
non-necessities, resulting in shrinking demand in smartphone market,
and the prolonged replacement cycle of consumers resulted in an overall
sluggish smartphone industry around the world. Stepping into 2022,
the Pandemic has entered its third year, which inevitably has significant
impact on the smartphone industry and the Group’s ODM business
operations. During the Review Period, vaccination continues to be widely
available in various countries, and restrictions have been eased in different
countries and regions. However, it still takes a certain period of time
for the global economy to recover from the damages caused by the
Pandemic. Despite the Group’s industrial expansion attracting more
industry customers, and the increase in number of raw material suppliers,
the market demand for the Group’s ODM battery products and bare
battery cells has not yet recovered to the pre-Pandemic level, and the
Group expects 2023 to still be a challenging year.

Although consumer demand for smartphones has been saturated in
recent years, from the perspective of quality, there is still significant
potential for the functional and technological innovation of smartphones.
In the context of sluggish smartphone industry, foldable mobile phones
are still favored by the market, and are expected to maintain high growth.
With the integration of the Internet of Things with intelligent life and
even production scenarios, smartphone will play a very important role.
Smartphones will serve as interfaces and control platforms and provide
solutions for intelligent office, intelligent home and other scenarios
to meet users’ intelligent requirements. As the Pandemic accelerates
the change in people’s future lifestyle, and the ongoing challenges
brought about by the Pandemic have catalysed the acceleration of digital
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transformation, people spend more time working remotely and studying
through online systems, and online shopping, video conferencing and
online game applications are being used more and more frequently,
all of which will boost the demand for smart electronic products and
related accessories. Looking ahead, in anticipation of the stabilisation
of the Pandemic, the supply and demand of smartphones, tablets and
laptops are expected to have good conditions for recovery.

The recurring Pandemic was a test to crisis management capabilities
of enterprises. The Company’s complete internal decision-making
mechanism helped the Group to promptly adopt many effective measures
in response to the Pandemic. Although there are still many uncertainties
ahead, the Company will continue to closely manage and control
expenditures and capital resources in order to enhance its conditions
and quick response capability. The Group will proactively pay attention
to the application of lithium-ion batteries in new industries and new
fields and grasp opportunities for access to the market. In addition, the
Group attaches great importance to the safety of using batteries for
electronic products. In the pursuit of high efficiency and endurance of
batteries, the Group will conduct more rigorous review of the safety of
its battery products to ensure that all manufactured batteries meet high
safety standards. In recent years, the Group has focused environmental,
social and governance (“ESG”) management on topics important to
the Group’s operations and sustainable development, including talent
development, product quality, environmental awareness promotion and
supplier management. The Group has invested more management efforts
and resources to cultivate value by paying more attention to details, and
is committed to providing customers and consumers with safe, portable
and durable green energy products.

On behalf of the Board and the management team, | would like to take
this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to all staff, directors,
customers, suppliers, shareholders and institutions providing professional
services to the Group for all your support to the Group throughout these
challenging times.

Feng Ming Zhu
Chairman
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

INDUSTRY REVIEW

In 2022, the Pandemic continued to impact the economic environment
and consumer confidence, and strict Pandemic prevention policies made
consumer spending more conservative. According to data released by
IDC, a market research agency, the global smartphone shipments were
1.2 billion units in 2022, which was the lowest since 2013, and down
more than 11% year-on-year. In 2022, the smartphone shipments in
Mainland China were approximately 286 million units, down 13.2% year-
on-year, which was the largest decline ever. Due to the Pandemic, rising
mobile phone prices, insufficient innovation, and declining purchasing
power, consumers are not motivated to replace their phones, and
smartphone replacement cycle in China is expected to increase to 34
months. Although the relaxation of strict anti-Pandemic measures in
China at the end of 2022 has given some impetus to the rebound of the
mobile phone market, it is still insufficient to drive the mobile business
back to growth in the short term. Inventory adjustments are in progress
across the mobile phone industry, but inventory pressure still remains.
It is expected that annual smartphone shipments are unlikely to return
to pre-Pandemic levels in the short term. Only as the general economic
environment and incomes gradually improve and increase, and consumer
confidence recovers, will market demand be likely to rebound. The 2023
outlook of the smartphone market in Mainland China is hardly optimistic
as rebound is expected to commence in 2024.

Looking ahead, the current prevailing inflation, geopolitical crisis, and
fears of economic recession have led consumers to shrink their disposable
spending, weakening demand for electronics, including smartphones.
However, the Pandemic of the past nearly three years has changed
many people’s lives, particularly people spend more time meeting online
and restructuring workflows. With the continuous promotion of mid-
to-low end 5G terminals, it is expected that the global 5G terminal
market will achieve steady growth since 2024. Operators are actively
promoting 5G, and many markets are offering adequate incentives to
attract consumers to use new technology. In addition, in the context of
sluggish smartphone industry, foldable mobile phones are still favored
by the market, and are expected to maintain high growth. As more and
more ODM companies enter the field of foldabler mobile phones, the
price of this type of mobile phones will become stable, injecting new
momentum into the market. Further, with the development of the 5G
market, the market position of foldable mobile phone segment will be
significantly improved.
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IMPACT OF THE PANDEMIC AND RESPONSE
MEASURES

During the Review Period, the Group actively carried out the national and
local governments’ anti-pandemic strategies by focusing on monitoring
the rebound of the Pandemic, ensuring that various Pandemic prevention
and control measures were continuously implemented, and organising
employees to get vaccinated in a centralised manner. Given that the
Pandemic continued during the Review Period, the Group has implemented
special arrangements to alleviate the concerns of its employees, including
(1) no temporary dismissals or corporate layoff; (2) flexible working
arrangements; and (3) the Group bearing the living expenses during
quarantine, etc. In addition, since the establishment of the COVID-19
Prevention and Control Response Team, the Group has continued to revise
the preventive measures implemented in response to possible outbreaks
within the Group. The preventive measures implemented include: (1)
regular distribution of medical masks; (2) daily disinfection of factories,
dormitories and canteens; (3) strengthening access management for
outsiders and external vehicles by monitoring temperature checks and
visitor registration; (4) tracking employee vaccination status; and (5)
automatic monitoring of employees’ body temperature. In addition, the
Group has permanently established an “Safe and Healthy Operations &
Security Management Team” to deal with all changes and adjustments
in the Group's response to the Pandemic and to disseminate notifications
and updates on the local Pandemic to employees.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In respect of operation management, the Group has been closely
monitoring the variety structure and gross profit margin of the products
sold by the Company monthly, and the sales amount to major customers
and their proportion. The Group also analysed dynamically the changes
in the Company’s marketing trends and the risk of fluctuations in sales
orders from major customers, and strengthening anticipation on overseas
markets’ recovery status, to analyse the potential impact of subsequent
changes on the production and operation plans of the Group with the
aim to minimise the impact of the Pandemic on the Group’s operations.
The Group has communicated with suppliers and customers in a timely
manner, carefully negotiated emergency measures and implementation
plans, and evaluated the changing trend of customer demand and the
level of risk from certain aspects including the fulfillment and alteration of
existing customer orders, and the increase and continuity of subsequent
orders. The Group has increased the proportion of its supplies to key
customers to maintain the stability of its market share. The Group has
continuously evaluated the sustainability of customers and suppliers,
and balanced purchase orders and sales orders to control inventory
growth. The Group has closely monitored the changing trend of total
inventories and slow moving inventories, and ensured the timeliness and
effectiveness of various measures to control slow moving inventories. The
Group also focused on monitoring the shortage risk of scarce and key
production materials, as well as the increase in material prices.

In respect of capital management, the Group has evaluated the impact
of the Pandemic on capital and material reserves from time to time,
and has been monitoring the Group's capital receipt and payment to
ensure that the Group is paid back on time. In order to reduce the risk
of doubtful and bad debts, the Group has strengthened its review of
customer ratings and credit limits and conducted more strict supervision
over the approval process, and checked the amount and overdue status
of accounts receivable on a monthly basis.

The Company’s complete internal decision-making mechanism helped
the Group to promptly adopt many effective measures in response to the
Pandemic, and the secondary risks that might be caused by the Pandemic
were effectively controlled, ensuring the sustainable production and
operation of the Group. The Company will regularly evaluate the impact
of the Pandemic on the Group’s operations and financial performance
to adopt appropriate measures when necessary.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The current businesses of the Group comprise ODM business and bare
battery cell business. During the period from 1 January 2022 to 31
December 2022 (the”Review Period”), the Group's consolidated turnover
amounted to approximately RMB6,359.2 million (2021: RMB7,091.6
million), decreased by approximately 10.3% compared with 2021. The
Group recorded profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately RMB24.0 million (2021: profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company RMB42.2 million). Basic and diluted earnings
per share of approximately RMB2.21 cents (2021: basic and diluted
earnings per share RMB3.87 cents). The ODM business recorded a
turnover of approximately RMB6,024.8 million (2021: RMB6,692.9
million), accounting for approximately 94.7% (2021: 94.4%) of the
Group's consolidated turnover. The bare battery cell business recorded a
turnover of approximately RMB140.2 million (2021: RMB180.7 million),
accounting for approximately 2.2% (2021: 2.5%) of the Group’s
consolidated turnover.

ODM Business

ODM business is the main business of the Group. It provides complete
lithium power supply solutions and lithium-ion battery products for
well-known mobile communication companies and internet technology
companies at home and abroad, which are mainly used in 3C consumer
electronics and smart hardware such as smartphones, tablets and power
bank products. The Group focuses on manufacturing lithium-ion batteries
and R&D on application technology over the years. Our experienced
ODM product development team is able to develop, design and optimise
battery solutions jointly with customers that align with customer needs.
With powerful manufacturing capacity, reliable quality assurance system,
premium bare battery cells, state-of-the-art protection circuit design and
precise production process control, the Group has secured a leading
position in the industry. The Group attaches great importance to the
safety of batteries. In the pursuit of high efficiency and endurance
of battery, the Group ensures that all the batteries meet high safety
standards.

During the Review Period, the Group’s high-quality customer base has
remained stable, maintaining the existing mobile phone market share,
allowing the Group to maintain a competitive advantage in the mobile
phone battery ODM market. In recent years, the Group has been more
active in making breakthroughs in batteries in other fields, gradually
increasing the revenue of notebook batteries, tablet batteries and other
types of batteries such as motive batteries, backup batteries, true wireless
Bluetooth headset batteries and outdoor power supplies. During the
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Review Period, sales of tablet batteries and notebook batteries grew
rapidly, becoming a new growth driver for revenue in 2022. Sales
volume of mobile phone batteries decreased by approximately 19.3%
year-on-year to approximately 116.0 million pieces (2021: 143.8 million
pieces) and turnover decreased by approximately 16.2% year-on-year to
approximately RMB4,831.6 million (2021: RMB5,768.3 million). In 2022,
turnover of mobile phone batteries represented approximately 80.2%
(2021: 86.2%) of turnover of the ODM business. Power bank contributed
turnover of approximately RMB273.6 million (2021: RMB314.4 million),
represented approximately 4.5% (2021: 4.7%) of turnover of the ODM
business. Tablet batteries and notebook batteries contributed turnover
of approximately RMB556.5 million (2021: RMB406.3 million) and
RMB246.3 million (2021: RMB152.9 million) respectively, represented
approximately 9.2% (2021: 6.1%) and 4.1% (2021: 2.3%) of turnover of
the ODM business. During the Review Period, the ODM business recorded
net profit of approximately RMB108.2 million (2021: RMB171.7 million).

In recent years, in order to enhance the production capacity of ODM
business, the Group has gradually integrated various resources. Through
re-allocation of resources and addition of automated equipment, it has
improved production efficiency and further improved the control system.
As the production capacity of the Group had previously been fully utilised,
the Group needed to be equipped with new production and supporting
facilities for the production needs of its future business. Therefore, the
Group implemented the expansion plan of the industrial park located in
Fuzhou in mid-2019 to enhance the Group’s production capacity. The
construction of two new factories was completed in April 2020 and a
part of the new factories has been put into use in stages between 2021
and 2022. The new factories provides additional production capacity for
the Group, while its new design also provides fundamental conditions as
basis for the optimisation of the production process as well as the further
consolidation and improvement of the product quality of the Group.
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Looking ahead, the Group, as a mainstream ODM supplier of mobile
phone batteries , tablet batteries and power banks in the PRC, is expected
to maintain a competitive advantage in the ODM market of mobile phone
battery, tablet battery and power bank supported by the demand of
existing and new customers. The Group will strive to grasp the market
development trend, extend the application of lithium-ion batteries to
other fields, and create greater development space for the Group. In
respect of operations, in order to effectively expand its business scale,
the Group will strive to increase the shipment scale and operating
efficiency through integrating existing resources, strictly controlling
costs, constructing new production plants and supporting facilities,
and strengthening research and development capabilities, thereby laying
a solid foundation for further sustainable and healthy development of
the Group.

Bare Battery Cell Business

During the Review Period, the bare battery cell business recorded
consolidated turnover of approximately RMB140.2 million (2021:
RMB180.7 million), representing a decrease of approximately 22.4%
year-on-year. During the Review Period, bare battery cell business
recorded net loss of approximately RMB1.5 million (2021: net profit
RMB1.1 million).

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the Review Period, the Group recorded consolidated turnover
of approximately RMB6,359.2 million (2021: RMB7,091.6 million),
representing a decrease by approximately 10.3% as compared to that
in 2021. Gross profit for the Group was approximately RMB456.7 million
(2021: RMB514.7 million), representing a decrease by approximately
11.3% as compared to that in 2021. The profit for the year and profit
for the year attributable to owners of the Company were approximately
RMB20.1 million (2021: RMB38.6 million) and approximately RMB24.0
million (2021: RMB42.2 million) respectively, representing a decrease by
approximately 48.0% and 43.0% year-on-year respectively. The Group
recorded EBITDA of approximately RMB222.3 million (2021: RMB235.1
million) for the year, representing a decrease by approximately 5.4% as
compared to 2021. Basic and diluted earnings per share was approximately
RMB2.21 cents (2021: basic and earnings per share RMB3.87cents).
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Turnover by segments

During the Review Period, turnover of approximately RMB6,024.8 million
(2021: RMB6,692.9 million) was generated from the ODM business
segment, which accounted for approximately 94.7% (2021: 94.4%) of
the Group's consolidated turnover. Turnover of approximately RMB140.2
million (2021: RMB180.7 million) was contributed by the bare battery
cell business segment, which accounted for approximately 2.2% (2021:
2.5%) of the Group's consolidated turnover.

Sales by major products

During the Review Period, sales of approximately RMB4,831.6 million
(2021: RMB5,768.3 million) were generated from the sale of mobile
phone batteries, which accounted for approximately 76.0% (2021:
81.3%) of the Group’s consolidated turnover. Sales of power banks
amounted to approximately RMB273.6 million (2021: RMB314.4 million),
which accounted for approximately 4.3% (2021: 4.4%) of the Group's
consolidated turnover. Sales of tablet batteries and notebook batteries
amounted to approximately RMB556.5 million (2021: RMB406.3 million)
and RMB246.3 million (2021: RMB152.9 million) respectively, accounted
for approximately 8.8% (2021: 5.8%) and 3.9% (2021: 2.2%) of the
Group's consolidated turnover. Sales of approximately RMB140.2 million
(2021: RMB180.7 million) were generated from the sale of bare battery
cells, which accounted for approximately 2.2% (2021: 2.5%) of the
Group's consolidated turnover.
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Segment Results

For the ODM business segment, total turnover contributed to the Group
during the Review Period decreased by approximately 10.0% year-on-
year to approximately RMB6,024.8 million (2021: RMB6,692.9 million).
During the Review Period, the sales volume of mobile phone batteries
decreased by approximately 19.3% to approximately 116.0 million pieces
(2021: 143.8 million pieces) and the turnover of mobile phone batteries
decreased by approximately 16.2% to approximately RMB4,831.6 million
(2021: RMB5,768.3 million), which accounted for approximately 80.2%
(2021: 86.2%) of the Group’s ODM sales. Sales volume of power banks
was approximately 2.5 million pieces (2021: 3.1 million pieces). Sales
of power banks amounted to approximately RMB273.6 million (2021:
RMB314.4 million), accounted for approximately 4.5% (2021: 4.7%) of
the Group’s ODM sales. Sales of tablet batteries and notebook batteries
amounted to approximately RMB556.5 million (2021: RMB406.3 million)
and RMB246.3 million (2021: RMB152.9 million) respectively, accounted
for approximately 9.2% (2021: 6.1%) and 4.1% (2021: 2.3%) of the
Group’s ODM sales respectively. During the Review Period, the ODM
business recorded net profit of approximately RMB108.2 million (2021:
RMB171.7 million).

For the bare battery cell business segment, turnover contributed to the
Group during the Review Period decreased by approximately 22.4% year-
on-year to approximately RMB140.2 million (2021: RMB180.7 million).
The bare battery cell business segment recorded net loss of approximately
RMB1.5 million (2021: net profit RMB1.1 million).

Cost of Sales

The Group's cost of sales amounted to approximately RMB5,902.5 million
during the Review Period (2021: RMB6,577.0 million), representing an a
decrease of approximately 10.3% as compared to 2021. The decrease
in cost of sales in 2022 was in line with the decrease in sales during the
Review Period. Direct materials, direct labour and other production costs
accounted for approximately 92.4% (2021: 92.7%), 4.5% (2021: 4.5%)
and 3.1% (2021: 2.8%) of the cost of sales respectively.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The overall gross profit margin of the Group in 2022 decreased to
approximately 7.2% (2021: 7.3%) as a result of a decrease in gross
profit margin for the bare battery cell business segment during the
Review Period.

For the ODM business, the gross profit margin in 2022 was approximately

7.4% (2021: 7.2%). For the bare battery cell business, the gross profit
margin in 2022 was approximately 13.1% (2021: 14.2%).
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Other revenue of approximately RMB58.6 million (2021: RMB56.0 million)
in 2022 mainly comprised of bank interest income, government grants,
revenue from sales of moulds and gain on acquisition of financial
assets. Other revenue increased was mainly attributable to the gain on
acquisition of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income of approximately RMB17.6 million being recognised during the
Review Period. The government grants represent subsidies received
from the PRC Government in appreciation of the Group’s industrial
contribution to the city, substantial amount of employment support,
employer provided housing, export trade and technology development.

Selling and distribution expenses of approximately RMB94.7 million
(2021: RMB92.8 million) accounted for approximately 1.5% (2021:
1.3%) of the Group’s consolidated turnover in 2022. The selling and
distribution expenses mainly comprised of entertainment expenses,
business expenses, repair and maintenance, transportation expenses,
office expenses and staff salaries and welfare. The increase in selling and
distribution expenses was mainly attributable to the increase in repair and
maintenance expenses and business expenses during the Review Period.

Administrative expenses of approximately RMB294.7 million (2021:
RMB332.7 million) accounted for approximately 4.6% (2021: 4.7%)
of the Group’s consolidated turnover in 2022. Administrative expenses
mainly comprised of R&D expenses, staff training expenses, staff salaries
and welfare, office expenses, bank charges, depreciation and rental
expenses. The decrease in administrative expenses was mainly attributable
to the decrease in R&D expenses during the Review Period.

Other operating expenses of approximately RMB8.1 million (2021:
RMB8.2 million) mainly comprised of write-off of inventories and write-
off of property, plant and equipment. No material fluctuation in other
operating expenses was noted as compared with 2021.

During the Review Period, the Group recorded an impairment recognised
on trade and notes receivables, net of approximately RMB7.5 million as
compared to a reversal of impairment recognised on trade and notes
receivables, netin 2021 of approximately RMB 1.8 million. The Group also
recorded an impairment loss recognised on prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, net of approximately RMB5.6 million, as compared to
a reversal of impairment recognised on prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, net in 2021 of approximately RMB3.1 million.

Finance costs of approximately RMB77.8 million (2021: RMB77.5 million)
mainly represent interest on bank borrowings and interest on discounted
notes receivables. No material fluctuation in finance costs was noted as
compared with 2021.
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Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

In 2022, the Group recorded profit attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately RMB24.0 million (2021: RMB42.2 million).
Profit attributable to owners of the Company dropped as a result of
decrease in ODM sales volume during the Review Period.

Treasury Management and Cash Funding

The Group’s funding and treasury policy is designed to maintain a
diversified and balanced debt profile and financing structure. The
Group continues to monitor its cash flow position and debt profile,
and to enhance the cost-efficiency of funding initiatives by its centralised
treasury function. In order to maintain financial flexibility and adequate
liquidity for the Group's operations, potential investments and growth
plans, the Group has built a strong base of funding resources and will
keep exploring cost-efficient ways of financing.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Cash and cash equivalents held by the Group as at 31 December 2022 was
approximately RMB200.9 million (2021: RMB226.7 million), principally
denominated in Renminbi, representing a decrease by approximately
RMB25.8 million year-on-year. The Group recorded a net cash outflow
from operating activities of approximately RMB177.9 million (2021: net
cash inflow from operating activities RMB152.9 million) and a net cash
inflow from investing activities of approximately RMB224.8 million (2021:
net cash outflow from investing activities RMB392.9 million) and a net
cash outflow from financing activities of approximately RMB58.8 million
(2021: net cash inflow from financing activities RMB252.2 million) for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Group's borrowings, principally denominated in Renminbi, which
were outstanding as at 31 December 2022 amounted to approximately
RMB1,186.5 million (2021: RMB1,175.0 million). Bank borrowings
amounting to approximately RMB350.6 million (2021: RMB340.6 million)
and approximately RMB835.9 million (2021: RMB834.4 million) were
carried at floating interest rate and fixed interest rate respectively. A
total of approximately RMB879.4 million (2021: RMB861.7 million)
of the interest-bearing borrowings will fall due during the 12 months
after the end of the Review Period. There was no particular seasonality
of the Group’s borrowing requirements. Please refer to Note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements for details on the maturity profile of the
Group'’s borrowings. The Group monitored capital using a gearing ratio,
which is total debt of the Group divided by total equity of the Group. Total
debt to equity ratio of the Group expressed as a percentage of interest
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bearing borrowings over the total equity of approximately RMB1,069.3
million (2021: RMB1,061.4 million) was approximately 111.0% (2021:
110.7%) as at 31 December 2022. Bank deposits pledged for banking
facilities as at 31 December 2022 was approximately RMB711.0 million
(2021: RMB988.7 million).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s current ratio was approximately
1.1 times (2021: 1.1 times) based on current assets of approximately
RMB4,043.1 million (2021: RMB4,537.9 million) and current liabilities
of approximately RMB3,649.2 million (2021: RMB4,182.0 million).
Trade receivable turnover days were approximately 124 days for the
year ended 31 December 2022 as compared to approximately 111
days for the year ended 31 December 2021. Inventory turnover days
were approximately 41 days for the year ended 31 December 2022 as
compared to approximately 28 days for the year ended 31 December
2021. Trade payable turnover days were approximately 79 days for the
year ended 31 December 2022 as compared to approximately 62 days
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Net Current Assets and Net Assets

The Group’s net current assets as at 31 December 2022 was approximately
RMB393.9 million, representing an increase by approximately 10.7%
from the balance of approximately RMB355.9 million recorded as at 31
December 2021. Net assets as at 31 December 2022 was approximately
RMB1,069.3 million, representing an increase by approximately 0.7%
from the balance of approximately RMB1,061.4 million as at 31 December
2021.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2022, bank loans of approximately RMB1,186.5
million (2021: RMB1,175.0 million) were secured by the Group's assets.

Commitments

The Group's capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December 2022
amounting to approximately RMB19.1 million (2021: RMB17.0 million)
was mainly attributed to acquisition of property, plant and equipment.
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Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2022, no provision for contingent liabilities was
required.

Capital Structure

During the Review Period, there had been no change in the share capital
of the Company.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

For the year 2022, the Group conducted its business transactions
principally in Renminbi. The Group has not experienced any material
difficulties or negative impacts on its operations as a result of fluctuations
in currency exchanges rates. Although the Group has certain bank
balances denominated in United States Dollars, Japanese Yen, Indian
Rupee and Hong Kong Dollars, their proportion to the Group's total assets
is insignificant. The Directors considered that no hedging of exchange
risk is required and no financial instruments, currency borrowings or
other hedging instruments were used for hedging purposes during the
Review Period. Nevertheless, the management will continue to monitor
the Group's foreign exchange exposure and will take prudent measures
against currency exchange risks as and when it is appropriate.

Significant Investment Held and Material Acquisition and
Disposal

Significant Investment Held

The Group did not hold any significant investment during the Review
Period.

Material Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiaries, Associates and
Joint Ventures

The Group did not make any material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures during the Review Period.

Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Assets

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any future plan for
material investments or capital assets for the coming year.
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Employee, Remuneration Policies and Share Option Scheme

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 3,023 full-time employees
(2021: 3,210). The salaries of the Group’s employees were determined
by reference to the personal performance, professional qualification
and industry experience of the relevant employee and relevant market
trends. The Group ensures all levels of employees are paid according
to market standard and employees are rewarded on a performance-
related basis within the framework of the Group's salary, incentives
and bonus scheme. The management reviews the remuneration policy
of the Group on a regular basis and evaluates the working performance
of the employees. The remuneration of the employees includes salaries,
allowances, year-end bonus and social insurance. In accordance with
the relevant prevailing laws and regulations of the PRC, the Group has
participated in the social insurance plans set up by the relevant local
government authorities, including pension funds, medical insurance
(including maternity insurance), unemployment insurance and work-
related injury insurance. The Group has also participated in the mandatory
provident fund scheme for its Hong Kong employees in accordance with
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the
Laws of Hong Kong). The Company also adopted a share option scheme
on 17 June 2019 to reward eligible participants (including directors and
employees of the Group) for their contributions to the Group.

The emolument of Directors are recommended and approved by the
Remuneration Committee and the Board respectively, having regard to
the Group's operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Feng Ming Zhu, aged 59, is an executive Director, the Chairman of
the Company and a member of the Corporate Governance Committee.
He is primarily responsible for the development of the Group’s strategy,
the management of the Group’s legal affairs, the management of the
Group's daily operations and monitoring the Group's internal control
procedures on a day-to-day basis. He joined the Group in March 2007
and successively served as the Director of Investment, the Director of
Administration and the General Manager of SMT Business Unit of the
Group, and was appointed as the Vice President of the Group in April
2013. Mr. Feng graduated from the Anhui University of Finance and
Economics in the PRC with a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering, and
served as the Chairman of the Battery Technology Association of Fujian
Province, a Specialist of Fujian JingXin Think Tank Industry Research
and a member of the Steering Committee of the Master of Materials
Engineering of Fujian Normal University. As at 31 December 2022, Mr.
Feng did not have any interests in the shares of the Company within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Lian Xiu Qin, aged 51, is an executive Director and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Group. She is primarily responsible for the management
of the Group’s daily operations. She joined the Group in March 1998
and she has been the Deputy General Manager and the Division Head of
the first business division of Scud (Fujian) Electronics Company Limited
("Scud Electronics”) since January 2016 and July 2016 respectively,
responsible for managing the Group’s business with its major customers.
Previously, she held other key positions such as the Production Head and
Engineering Manager of Scud Electronics. Ms. Lian has over 20 years’
experience in engineering and manufacturing technologies. She was
awarded the honorary title “Second-term Outstanding Highly Skilled
Talent of Fuzhou” by the Human Resources and Social Security Bureau of
Fuzhou in May 2013. The polymer battery metal shell structure registered
by the State Intellectual Property Office of the PRC as a patent in the
name of Scud Electronics was invented by Ms. Lian and two other staff
of the Group. Publications by Ms. Lian on “Lithium Battery Production
Technologies” and “Electronic Products Assembly Process” are used as
teaching materials at the Fujian Scud Senior Technician Training School.
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Ms. Lian is a qualified senior technician specialising in the production of
battery cells. She graduated from the Shenyang University of Technology
in July 1995 specialising in Applied Electronics Technology. She also
obtained an undergraduate qualification in Business English at the Fujian
Normal University in June 2009 and a part-time Master's degree in
Business Administration at the Seton Hall University of the United States
of America in 2021. Ms. Lian has completed professional training on
“Quantitative Methods in Process Improvement” (ISO 13053-1&2:2011)
published by the International Organisation for Standardisation and on
cost control management. As at 31 December 2022, Ms. Lian did not
have any interests in the shares of the Company within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Loke Yu, alias Loke Hoi Lam, aged 73, is a non-executive Director
and a member of the Corporate Governance Committee. He rejoined
the Group on 1 September 2020. Dr. Loke was an independent
non-executive Director and the Chairman of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee from May 2009 to
September 2018. Dr. Loke has over 40 years of experience in accounting
and auditing for private and public companies, financial consultancy
and corporate management. Dr. Loke is a Fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, the Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute, and a life member of the Hong Kong Independent Non-
Executive Directors Association. Dr. Loke obtained a degree of Master
of Business Administration from the Universiti Teknologi Malaysia in
April 2001 and a degree of Doctor of Business Administration from
the University of South Australia in March 2006. Dr. Loke is currently
an independent non-executive director of the following companies, the
shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange: China Silver Technology
Holdings Limited (formerly known as TC Orient Lighting Holdings Limited)
(stock code: 515), Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company
Limited (stock code: 3626), Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company
Limited (stock code: 2882), Matrix Holdings Limited (stock code: 1005),
Tianjin Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 882), and Zhenro
Properties Group Limited (stock code: 6158). Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor,
an independent non-executive Director, is his nephew-in-law. Dr. Loke
was also an independent non-executive director of TradeGo FinTech
Limited (stock code: 8017) from 29 August 2018 to 8 February 2023,
Crazy Sports Group Limited (stock code: 82) from 17 May 2005 to 26
May 2022, Times Universal Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 2310)
from to 18 April 2016 to 1 September 2022, Chiho Environmental Group
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Limited (stock code: 976) from 23 June 2010 to 6 Dec 2021, Zhong
An Group Limited (stock code: 672) from 30 June 2009 to 10 June
2021 and Lamtex Holdings Limited (stock code: 1041) from July 2015
to March 2020, the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange,
and CIMC TianDa Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 445) from 1
August 2006 to 25 January 2021 and Tianhe Chemicals Group Limited
(stock code: 1619) from May 2014 to May 2020, the shares of which
were listed on the Stock Exchange. As at 31 December 2022, Dr. Loke
did not have any interests in the shares of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Heng Ja Wei Victor, aged 45, is an independent non-executive
Director, the Chairman of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee and
Corporate Governance Committee. He joined the Group on
1 September 2016. Mr. Heng is a partner of Morison Heng, Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Heng holds a Bachelor of Engineering degree
in Electronic Engineering from the University of Warwick in the United
Kingdom and a Master of Science degree in Computer Science from the
Imperial College of Science, Technology and Medicine of the University
of London. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. He holds a Certified Public Accountant (Practising)
certificate issued by the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council.
Mr. Heng has served as an independent non-executive director of Best
Food Holding Company Limited (stock code: 1488) since May 2011, Lee
& Man Chemical Company Limited (stock code: 746) since June 2010,
Matrix Holdings Limited (stock code: 1005) since December 2012 and
TradeGo Fintech Limited (stock code: 8017) since February 2023 and
as the company secretary of China Life Insurance Company Limited
(stock code: 2628) since April 2013, the shares of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Heng was also an independent non-executive
director of CIMC TianDa Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 445)
from 4 March 2009 to 25 January 2021, the shares of which were listed
on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Heng is a nephew-in-law of Dr. Loke Yu,
a non-executive Director. As at 31 December 2022, Mr. Heng did not
have any interests in the shares of the Company within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO.
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Lam Yau Yiu, alias Lam Yau Yiu Laurence, aged 59, is an independent
non-executive Director, the Chairman of the Corporate Governance
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. He joined the Group on 27
September 2018. Mr. Lam is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. He has about 32 years of experience
in auditing, accounting and corporate management. Mr. Lam has served
as an independent non-executive director of China New City Commercial
Development Limited (stock code: 1321) since February 2023, the shares
of which is listed on the Stock Exchange. He is also a non-executive
director of Bank of Asia (BVI) Limited since June 2021.

Mr. Lam holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration and a Master
of Science in Information Systems Management from the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology and a Bachelor of Accounting from
the City University of Hong Kong. He was the consultant to Chase Solar
Limited from January 2018 to December 2018 and he was the chief
financial officer and company secretary of Million Cities Development
Limited from January 2017 to July 2017. Mr. Lam was also the company
secretary of Crazy Sports Group Limited (stock code: 82) from February
2019 to December 2022 and he was the financial controller and the
company secretary of Zhong An Real Estate Limited (now known as Zhong
An Group Limited, stock code: 672) from October 2008 to December
2016, the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. As at 31
December 2022, Mr. Lam did not have any interests in the shares of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.
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Cheung Wai Kwok Gary, aged 69, is an independent non-executive
Director, the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Corporate
Governance Committee. Mr. Cheung joined the Group on 19 May 2020.
Mr. Cheung holds a Bachelor’s degree of Arts in Business Administration
and a Bachelor’'s degree of Arts (Honours) in Economics from York
University in Canada and he has over 40 years of experience in the
financial services industry. Mr. Cheung was an executive director of Sun
Hung Kai & Co. Limited, the chief executive of the Hong Kong Securities
Institute, the chief executive officer of Tung Shing Securities (Brokers)
Limited (currently known as Sinopac Securities (Asia) Limited), the chief
executive officer of Investport (H.K.) Limited, the responsible officer of
YF Securities Company Limited, YF Futures Company Limited and YF
Asset Management Limited, and the chief executive officer of Blackwell
Global Investments (HK) Limited. Mr. Cheung also served as a committee
member of the banking and finance training board of the Vocational
Training Council of Hong Kong from April 2017 to March 2019. Mr.
Cheung has been the chief executive officer and the responsible officer
of Type 1 (dealing in securities) and Type 4 (advising on securities)
regulated activities under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO") of OnePlatform Securities
Limited since April 2018 and June 2018 respectively. Mr. Cheung is the
responsible officer of Type 1 (dealing in securities) and Type 4 (advising
on securities) regulated activities under the SFO and was the responsible
officer of Type 2 (dealing in futures contracts), Type 3 (leveraged foreign
exchange trading), Type 5 (advising on futures contracts), Type 6 (advising
on corporate finance) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities
under the SFO of various other companies. Mr. Cheung was elected
as the chairman of the board of directors of the Hong Kong Securities
Association Limited in November 2017 and became its permanent
honourary president in September 2019, prior to which he was the
vice chairman of its board of directors from 2011 to 2015. Mr. Cheung
was a member of the Steering Committee of the Asian Financial Forum
2018 and has been the chief supervisor of East Asia Qianhai Securities
Limited since October 2017, a director of the board of the Financial
Dispute Resolution Centre since March 2018, a panel member of the
AntiMoney Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing Review Tribunal
of Hong Kong since April 2018 and a senior fellow of the Hong Kong
Securities and Investment Institute since September 2014. Mr. Cheung
is a member of the Academic and Accreditation Advisory Committee of
the Securities and Futures Commission since April 2020. Mr. Cheung
has served as an independent non-executive director of Sang Hing
Holdings (International) Limited (stock code: 1472) since January 2020
and was the executive director and the managing director of South China
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Financial Holdings Limited (stock code: 619) from June 2009 to June
2011, the securities of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. As at 31
December 2022, Mr. Cheung did not have any interests in the shares of
the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Jiang Zhi Cheng, aged 47, is a vice president of the Group. Mr. Jiang
is a doctoral candidate at ISTEC in France. He holds a bachelor’s degree
in accounting from Xiamen University in China, a bachelor’s degree in
business administration from Central China Normal University in China,
and an EMBA degree from Northwest University in China. Mr. Jiang
is responsible for the Group’s human resource system and operation
assurance system and has 20 years of experience in human resource
management and operation management. He focuses on training, career
development, talent management, performance management, leadership
development and organisational development. Mr. Jiang is a senior
economist certified by the Civil Service Administration of Fujian Province
and the Human Resource Development Office of Fujian Province and
a human resource professional (first level) certified by the Ministry of
Human Resources and Social Security of China. Mr. Jiang is enthusiastic
about corporate social responsibility and public welfare undertakings,
and was recognised as an advanced individual in poverty alleviation in
Fujian and a model individual in ethnic unity and progress in Fujian by
the Fujian Provincial People’s Government in 2021. Mr. Jiang joined the
Group in 2002 and successively served as the human resource supervisor,
human resource manager and human resource director of the Group.
He was appointed as a vice president of the Group in 2021.

Yeung Mun Tai (FCCA, CPA), aged 46, is the Company Secretary
of the Company. He is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group and
is responsible for its overall financial and accounting affairs. He is a
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Prior to joining the Group in September 2005, Mr. Yeung worked as
an auditor in an international accounting firm. He has more than 20
years' experience in the accounting field. He holds a Bachelor’s degree
in Business Administration and Accounting.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Veson Holdings
Limited (the “Company"” and, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”)
presents its annual report and audited consolidated financial statements
for the financial year from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022
(“Review Period").

The discussions in the “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management Discussion
and Analysis” and “Corporate Governance Report” sections of this
annual report form part of the discussions of this directors’ report.

A discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and performance
and community investment can be found in the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report” of the Company.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its major subsidiaries are set out in Note 1 and Note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 87.

The Board has decided not to recommend any final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2022 to preserve cash for the working capital
requirement of the business of the Group.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the Review period in the property, plant
and equipment of the Group are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during the Review period in the share capital
are set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 31
December 2022 comprised retained earnings, other reserves and share
premium of approximately RMB962.6 million (2021: RMB950.0 million).
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors during the Review Period and up to the date of this report
were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Feng Ming Zhu (Chairman)
Lian Xiu Qin (Chief Executive Officer)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Hou Li (term of appointment expired on 27 May 2022)
Loke Yu

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Heng Ja Wei Victor
Lam Yau Yiu
Cheung Wai Kwok Gary

According to Article 87(1) of the articles of association of the Company,
at each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general
meeting at least once every three years. Mr. Feng Ming Zhu and Mr.
Cheung Wai Kwok Gary will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with Article 87(1) of the articles
of association of the Company. Mr. Feng Ming Zhu and Mr. Cheung
Wai Kwok Gary both being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. There are
no service contracts or appointment letters of any of the Directors who
are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
which are not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Update on Directors’ Information under Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules are set out below:

Dr. Loke Yu retired as an independent non-executive director of Crazy
Sports Group Limited (HKSE: 82) in May 2022, resigned as an independent
non-executive director of Times Universal Group Holdings Limited (HKSE:
2310) in September 2022 and resigned as an independent non-executive
director of TradeGo FinTech Limited (HKSE: 8017) in February 2023.

Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of TradeGo FinTech Limited (HKSE: 8017) in February 2023.
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Mr. Lam Yau Yiu resigned as the company secretary of Crazy Sports
Group Limited (HKSE: 82) in December 2022 and was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of China New City Commercial
Development Limited (HKSE: 1321) in February 2023.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors or chief executives of the
Company had any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO") as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a shareholders’ resolution passed on 17 June 2019 for the
purpose of rewarding eligible participants who have contributed or will
contribute to the Group and encouraging eligible participants to work
towards enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the
benefit of Company and its shareholders as a whole. Eligible participants
include directors and employees of the Group and any advisors,
consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers,
business partners, joint venture business partners, promoters or service
providers of any member of the Group who the board of directors of
the Company considers to have contributed or will contribute to the
Group. Under the Scheme, the board of directors of the Company may
grant options to eligible employees, including directors of the Company
and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company. The Scheme
was adopted for a period of 10 years expiring on 16 June 2029 and
the Company by ordinary resolution in general meeting or the board of
directors of the Company may at any time terminate the Scheme without
prejudice to the options granted during the life of the Scheme and which
remain unexpired immediately prior to such termination.

The number of shares in respect of which options had been granted and
remained outstanding under the Scheme was Nil as at 1 January 2022
and 31 December 2022. No options have been granted under the Scheme
since the adoption of the Scheme and during the Review Period. The total
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the
Scheme without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders shall
not exceed 109,000,124 shares, representing approximately 10% of the
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total number of shares of the Company in issue as at the date of this
annual report. The number of options available for grant under the
Scheme as at 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 is 109,000,124.
The number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of which options
granted and may be granted to any individual in any 12-month period
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders shall not exceed
1% of the shares of the Company in issue for the time being. The number
of shares issued and to be issued in respect of which options granted
and may be granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive Director or any of their respective associates representing in
aggregate over 0.1% the Company’s share capital on the date of such
grant or with an aggregate value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be
approved in advance by resolution of the Company’s shareholders (voting
by way of poll). Subject to the terms of the Scheme, an offer of grant of
an option will remain open for acceptance by the eligible participant for
28 days from the date of the offer. Upon the acceptance of the offer,
a consideration of HK$1 for the grant of the option is payable and the
relevant option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme at any time during the exercise period to be determined by the
Board, which shall not exceed 10 years. The Board may with respect to
each grant of options, determine the minimum period, if any, for which
an option must be held before it can be exercised. The exercise price of
the options shall be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion
but will in any event not be less than the higher of:—

(1) the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of an
offer of an option by the Company (which must be a business day);

(2) the average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
5 business days immediately preceding the date of the offer of an
option; and

(3) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Options”, at no time
during the Review Period or at the end of the Review Period was
the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2022, the following persons (other than the Directors
or the chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions (ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the issued
share capital of the Company)

Name of shareholder

RERHEH

Capacity and nature of interest

B RESNE

Beneficial owner

EmEAA

Swift Joy Holdings Limited (Note 2)
AEERER AT (FE2)

Beneficial owner

BHREAA

Right Grand Holdings Limited (Note 2)
FERERERAR (HFE2)

Fang Jin (Note 3) Interest in controlled corporations

A& (MEE3) HEEE R
Note 1:  We have applied the number of shares of the Company in

issue as at 31 December 2022, i.e. 1,090,001,246 shares,
when calculating this percentage.

Note 2:  Each of Swift Joy Holdings Limited and Right Grand
Holdings Limited was a private company directly wholly-
owned by Mr. Fang Jin.

Note 3:  Among 552,338,000 shares, (i) 423,770,000 shares were

owned by Swift Joy Holdings Limited and 128,568,000
shares were owned by Right Grand Holdings Limited (see
also Note 2 above).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Company had
not been notified by any persons (other than the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Report on the corporate governance practice adopted by the Company
is set out on pages 54 to 79 of this annual report.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the total remuneration of the
Directors and the five highest paid employees are set out in Note 11 to
the consolidated financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE, NOMINATION COMMITTEE,
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (“Audit Committee”),
a nomination committee (“Nomination Committee”), a remuneration
committee (“Remuneration Committee”) and a corporate governance
committee (“Corporate Governance Committee”).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The purpose of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board in considering
how the Board should apply financial reporting principles and for
maintaining an appropriate relationship with the Company’s independent
auditor. As at 31 December 2022, the Audit Committee consisted of
three members who were Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor (Chairman), Mr. Lam
Yau Yiu and Mr. Cheung Wai Kwok Gary.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The purpose of the Nomination Committee is to identify, screen and
recommend to the Board appropriate candidates to serve as Directors,
to oversee the process for evaluating the performance of the Board and
to develop, recommend to the Board and monitor nomination guidelines
for the Company. As at 31 December 2022, the Nomination Committee
consisted of three members who were Mr. Cheung Wai Kwok Gary
(Chairman), Mr. Lam Yau Yiu and Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The purpose of the Remuneration Committee is to assist the Board in
determining the policy and structure for the remuneration of executive
Directors, evaluating the performance of executive Directors, reviewing
incentive schemes and Directors’ service contracts and fixing the
remuneration packages for all Directors and senior management. As at
31 December 2022, the Remuneration Committee consisted of three
members who were Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor (Chairman), Mr. Lam Yau
Yiu and Mr. Cheung Wai Kwok Gary.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The purpose of the Corporate Governance Committee is to assist the
Board in considering how the Board should apply risk management
and internal control principles, performing the corporate governance
duties and ensuring the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("Listing Rules”). As at 31 December 2022, the Corporate Governance
Committee comprised three independent non-executive Directors namely
Mr. Lam Yau Yiu (Chairman), Mr. Cheung Wai Kwok Gary and Mr. Heng
Ja Wei Victor, one non-executive Director namely Dr. Loke Yu and one
executive Director namely Mr. Feng Ming Zhu.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles of
association of the Company or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
its existing shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the top five customers and the largest customer of the Group
represented approximately 77.5% and approximately 26.2% of the
Group's total sales revenue of the Review Period, respectively. Purchase
from the top five suppliers and the largest supplier of the Group
represented approximately 66.6% and approximately 29.2% of the
Group's total purchases of the Review Period, respectively.

At no time during the Review Period did a Director, a close associate of
a Director or a shareholder of the Company (which, to the knowledge
of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the number of issued shares
of the Company) has any interest in the top five customers or suppliers
of the Group.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to article 167 of the articles of association of the Company,
every Director shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets
and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which he/she shall or may incur or sustain
by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about
the execution of his/her duties in his/her offices or trusts provided that
this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or
dishonesty which may attach to the relevant Director. Such permitted
indemnity provision was in force during the Review Period and remained
in force as at the date of this report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Review Period, the Group had the following connected
transactions, certain details of which are set out below in compliance
with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in relation
to such transactions in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The name of, and the relationship with, the parties connected with the
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Company are as follows:

Name

=L

Fang Jin ("Mr. Fang”)
Fe(lAEED

Fang Ying
(“Ms. Fang Ying")
Fa&(TH&gzL])

Fang Yubin
("Mr. Fang Yubin”)
FEAR(THEAERLEE]D

Scud Battery

Scud Electronics
REREF

Scud Energy Technology
REBRREREHR

Relationship
B

A controlling shareholder of the Company
RN EERR AR R

The daughter of Mr. Fang, who owns approximately 10% (2021: 10%) of Scud Energy
Technology
FHREZ LR - BEREREREHLI10% (20215 : 10%)

The son of Mr. Fang, who owns approximately 88.61% (2021: 93.95%) of Scud Power
Technology
FhREZRTF  MARERE HEIFRAS8.61% (20214 : 93.95%)

Scud Battery Co., Ltd., an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
REREMBBRAA - AARZHEZ2ENRBAR

Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., Ltd., an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

RERER (BR) EFAERRQR  ARFRZHAEZEMNBAR

Scud Energy Technology Co., Ltd., a limited liability company established in the PRC, which
is owned as to approximately 90% (2021: 90%) by Mr. Fang and approximately 10%
(2021:10%) by Ms. Fang Ying

REBERRRARAR  RPBEKZOERAR] - BT EEEEFL0% (20214 : 90%)
REFEZTHERL10% (20215 : 10%)

37



VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED

BUEERBR DA

\ ANNUAL REPORT F3R 2022

.- 4 __ & L

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEEWRE

Name Relationship
=1 %

Scud Power Technology Fujian Scud Power Technology Co., Ltd., a limited liability company established in the PRC,
RERRE NEHR which is owned as to approximately 88.61% (2021: 93.95%) by Mr. Fang Yubin
BERERBHORRBERAR - RPEKINERAR - B FEREEFLS8.61%

(20214F : 93.95%)

Scud Stock Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd., a company in which Mr. Fang held 70% (2021: 70%)

RERKRHD shareholding interest and the remaining 25% (2021: 25%) and 5% (2021:5%)
shareholding interest were held by Mr. Lin Chao (“Mr.Lin") and Ms. Bian Zhen (“Ms.
Bian”), both third parties independent of the Company and its connected persons,

respectively

BEREBRBRNDARAT » HEAEBEHETO% (20214  70% ) IRHE - F#825% (20214 :
25% )} 5% (20214 : 5% )RED RIEMBELE(THELE D ETELE([ LT DEHE
TAAOEBYRARRNEBBEATHE=S

() Continuing Connected Transactions

(A) Lease agreements with Scud Stock (2022)

On 30 December 2021, Scud Electronics (as lessee) and Scud Stock
(as lessor) entered into a lease agreement (the “First 2022 Lease
Agreement”) to renew the lease of certain premises owned by
Scud Stock.

Under the First 2022 Lease Agreement, Scud Stock agreed to lease
to Scud Electronics the premises (the “First 2022 Lease Premises”)
located at land lot numbers 39-2 and 44-2, Kuai An Extension Area,
Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC comprising:

(i) rental area of approximately 31,155 square metres in 4 blocks
of factories with a total construction area of approximately
40,627.68 square metres;

(i) rental area of approximately 7,826 square metres in 1 office
building with a total construction area of approximately
13,268.80 square metres; and

(iii) rental area of approximately 11,250 square metres in
1 warehouse building with a total construction area of
approximately 11,250 square metres.

The First 2022 Lease Premises were leased for use as factory, office

for administration use for the Group and warehouse for storage
of stocks.
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The term of lease was from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022.
The annual rental under the First 2022 Lease Agreement was
RMB10,361,765.64. The rentals were payable in cash on a monthly
basis.

On 30 December 2021, Scud Battery (as lessee) and Scud Stock (as
lessor) entered into a lease agreement (the “Second 2022 Lease
Agreement”) to renew the lease of certain premises owned by
Scud Stock.

Under the Second 2022 Lease Agreement, Scud Stock agreed
to lease to Scud Battery the premises (the “Second 2022 Lease
Premises”) located at land lot numbers 39-2 and 44-2, Kuai An
Extension Area, Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC
comprising rental area of approximately 1,949 square metres in
1 office building with a total construction area of approximately
13,268.80 square metres. The Second 2022 Lease Premises were
leased for use as office for administration use for the Group.

The term of lease was from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022.
The annual rental under the Second 2022 Lease Agreement was
RMB668,228.52. The rentals were payable in cash on a monthly
basis.

Accordingly, the aggregate annual rental for the year ended 31
December 2022 payable by Scud Electronics and Scud Battery to
Scud Stock under the First 2022 Lease Agreement and the Second
2022 Lease Agreement was RMB11,029,994.16 (being the sum of
RMB10,361,765.64 and RMB668,228.52).

Further details of the First 2022 Lease Agreement and the Second
2022 Lease Agreement are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 30 December 2021.

As at 30 December 2021, Scud Stock was owned as to 70%
by Mr. Fang, the controlling shareholder of the Company. Scud
Stock is therefore a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules and accordingly, the above transactions constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company. Based on
information available to the Company, Mr. Lin and Ms. Bian hold
the remaining equity interests as to 25% and 5% respectively. To
the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief having
made all reasonable enquiry, Mr. Lin and Ms. Bian are third parties
independent of the Company and its connected persons.
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The details on annual caps for the aggregate rental payable by REMEFRRERSMBEE 12022 E
Scud Electronics and Scud Battery to Scud Stock under the First HE & E —H2022 M E B ERRERE S
2022 Lease Agreement and the Second 2022 Lease Agreement NESRE2FELROFBLOT

are as follows:

RMB
AR¥T

Annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2022 HE2022F12A31ALFEZEE LR 11,029,994.16

The actual rental amounts paid for the above continuing BZE2022F12A3MBIEFE - DlHERER

connected transactions for the year ended 31 December 2022 ZNERCNESBARKE1,029,994,167T °

was RMB11,029,994,16.

Lease agreements with Scud Stock (2023) (B) EERERRAR M T LA E R (20234F)

On 30 December 2022, Scud Electronics (as lessee) and Scud Stock 720229128308 - REBEFHEAEEA)

(as lessor) entered into a lease agreement (the “First 2023 Lease HRERRO(EREHEA)TL—HHEERZ

Agreement”) to renew the lease of certain premises owned by (T —172023ME W% 1) - AEFREREN

Scud Stock. TS TYE AL -

Under the First 2023 Lease Agreement, Scud Stock agreed to lease BIEBEE— 172023 E W - REBRKRGEEM

to Scud Electronics the premises (the “First 2023 Lease Premises”) REBREFHAURPEERZERNTEER

located at land lot numbers 39-2 and 44-2, Kuai An Extension Area, RE TR R 539-25% R B44-258 b ER 2 W) 2

Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC comprising: ([E—#t2023EWE]) - B

(i) rental area of approximately 31,155 square metres in 4 blocks () TAEMELHE31,155F K fRBEEE
of factories with a total construction area of approximately ETE#)740,627.68F 77 K L& M = A :
40,627.68 square metres;

(i)  rental area of approximately 7,826 square metres in 1 office (i) HEMELRT,826F 77K LR
building with a total construction area of approximately T T8 49 7%13,268.80°F 77 K #) — & it A K
13,268.80 square metres; and B &

(iii) rental area of approximately 11,250 square metres in (iiiy FAEMIEAIE1,250F 7K » IR ERE
1 warehouse building with a total construction area of HRELB11,250F A KB —BEER KIE
approximately 11,250 square metres. A e

The First 2023 Lease Premises were leased for use as factory, office EHEME - H2023HEMFRRAEAREZ

for administration use for the Group and warehouse for storage BB~ TBRAEREYRTFZER -

of stocks.



The term of lease is from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023.
The annual rental under the First 2023 Lease Agreement is
RMB10,361,765.64. The rentals are payable in cash on a monthly
basis.

On 30 December 2022, Scud Battery (as lessee) and Scud Stock (as
lessor) entered into a lease agreement (the “Second 2023 Lease
Agreement”) to renew the lease of certain premises owned by
Scud Stock.

Under the Second 2023 Lease Agreement, Scud Stock agreed
to lease to Scud Battery the premises (the “Second 2023 Lease
Premises”) located at land lot numbers 39-2 and 44-2, Kuai An
Extension Area, Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC
comprising rental area of approximately 1,949 square metres in
1 office building with a total construction area of approximately
13,268.80 square metres. The Second 2023 Lease Premises were
leased for use as office for administration use for the Group.

The term of lease is from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023.
The annual rental under the Second 2023 Lease Agreement is
RMB668,228.52. The rentals are payable in cash on a monthly basis.

Further details of the First 2023 Lease Agreement and the Second
2023 Lease Agreement are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 30 December 2022.

As at 30 December 2022, Scud Stock was owned as to 70%
by Mr. Fang, the controlling shareholder of the Company. Scud
Stock is therefore a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules and accordingly, the above transactions constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company. Based on
information available to the Company, Mr. Lin and Ms. Bian hold
the remaining equity interests as to 25% and 5% respectively. To
the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief having
made all reasonable enquiry, Mr. Lin and Ms. Bian are third parties
independent of the Company and its connected persons.
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The details on annual caps for the aggregate rental payable by REMEFRRERSMBEE —1H20231HE
Scud Electronics and Scud Battery to Scud Stock under the First HE M E —H2023 M EHEERRERE S
2023 Lease Agreement and the Second 2023 Lease Agreement NESRE2FELROFBOT

are as follows:

RMB
AR
Annual cap for the year ending 31 December 2023 HE2023F12A31BLEEZFE LR 11,029,994.16
The rentals are payable commencing 1 January 2023 as the term of & BEBE2023F 1 A1 BN BAHRERA
lease is from 1 January 2023. 2023F1 A1 A -
Lease agreement with Scud Stock (2022) (C) HERERRMDTLANBEEHZE(2022%F)
On 30 December 2021, Scud Battery (as lessor) entered into a R2021F12H308 » REBREHB(EALFEA)
lease agreement with Scud Stock (as lessee) to renew the lease BERERBDEAEBAII LT —HHEER
of certain premises owned by Scud Battery (“the “Scud Battery & EFREREMMES WL ETRER
Premises 2022") to Scud Stock for the period commenced from B zaTwEIREREMYR2022]) 2
1 January 2022 and ended on 31 December 2022 (the “Lease 4 FHEIH2022%1 818 #£ 2022912731
Agreement (2022)"). BIE([HEE®R#E(20224F)]) »
Under the Lease Agreement (2022), Scud Battery agreed to lease BEREERZE(202F) RERELREH
to Scud Stock the Scud Battery Premises 2022 located at No. 135, R BREEEENTEREFG IEKI1355%
Rujiangdong Road, Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC BIRERRE Y2022 B T RERK D - £
comprising: i
(i) rental area of approximately 17,193 square metres in 1 factory () THEMBELE17,193F K AR EEE
building with a total construction area of approximately 26,665 E 54 7526,665F 7 KH) —EHEA : &
square metres; and
(i) rental area of approximately 8,450 square metres in 1 warehouse (i) FTAEMBEH A8,450F K @ (L@
building with a total construction area of approximately 8,450 EEA 48,450 F FRK —EEA KIERA o
square metres.
The Scud Battery Premises 2022 were leased for use as manufacturing & s REREMME2022TREEER
facility. i
The term of lease was from 1 January 2022 to 31 December & H R 8202261818 22022412431
2022. The annual rental under the Lease Agreement (2022) was - REHEERHQ025F)  FHEBARE
RMB4,689,005.76. The rentals were payable in cash on a monthly 4,689,005.767C ° HE AR SRAN -
basis.



(D)

Further details of the Lease Agreement (2022) are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 30 December 2021.

As at 30 December 2021, Scud Stock was owned as to 70% by
Mr. Fang, the controlling shareholder of the Company. Scud Stock
is therefore a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules and accordingly, the lease under the Lease Agreement (2022)
constitutes a continuing connected transaction of the Company.
Based on information available to the Company, Mr. Lin and
Ms. Bian hold the remaining equity interests as to 25% and 5%
respectively. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information
and belief having made all reasonable enquiry, Mr. Lin and Ms. Bian
are third parties independent of the Company and its connected
persons.

The annual cap for the aggregate rental payable by Scud Stock to
Scud Battery under the Lease Agreement (2022) for the year ended
31 December 2022 was RMB4,689,005.64.

The actual rental amount paid for the above continuing
connected transaction for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
RMB4,689,005.64.

Lease agreement with Scud Stock (2023)

On 30 December 2022, Scud Battery (as lessor) entered into a
lease agreement with Scud Stock (as lessee) to renew the lease of
certain premises owned by Scud Battery (the “Scud Battery Premises
2023") to Scud Stock for the period from 1 January 2023 to 31
December 2023 (the “Lease Agreement (2023)").

Under the Lease Agreement (2023), Scud Battery agreed to lease
to Scud Stock the Scud Battery Premises 2023 located at No. 135,
Rujiangdong Road, Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC
comprising:

(i)  rental area of approximately 17,193 square metres in 1 factory
building with a total construction area of approximately 26,665
square metres; and

(i) rental area of approximately 8,450 square metres in 1 warehouse
building with a total construction area of approximately 8,450
square metres.

(D)
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The Scud Battery Premises 2023 were leased for use as manufacturing
facility.

The term of lease is from 1 January 2023 to 31 December
2023. The annual rental under the Lease Agreement (2023) is
RMB4,689,005.76. The rentals are payable in cash on a monthly
basis.

Further details of the Lease Agreement (2023) are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 30 December 2022.

As at 30 December 2022, Scud Stock was owned as to 70% by
Mr. Fang, the controlling shareholder of the Company. Scud Stock
is therefore a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules and accordingly, the lease under the Lease Agreement (2023)
constituted a continuing connected transaction of the Company.
Based on information available to the Company, Mr. Lin and
Ms. Bian hold the remaining equity interests as to 25% and 5%
respectively. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information
and belief having made all reasonable enquiry, Mr. Lin and Ms. Bian
are third parties independent of the Company and its connected
persons.

The annual cap for the aggregate rental payable by Scud Stock to
Scud Battery under the Lease Agreement (2023) for the year ending
31 December 2023 is RMB4,689,005.76.

The rentals are payable commencing 1 January 2023 as the term of
lease is from 1 January 2023.

Processing Framework Agreement with Scud Power
Technology and Scud Energy Technology

On 25 November 2021, Scud Battery entered into the processing
framework agreement (“Processing Framework Agreement”) with
Scud Power Technology and Scud Energy Technology, pursuant
to which Scud Battery has conditionally agreed to provide the
processing services for printed circuit boards (“Processing Services”)
to Scud Power Technology and Scud Energy Technology for a term
of three years commencing from the first day of the calendar
month immediately following the date on which the independent
shareholders approval relating to the Processing Framework
Agreement and the proposed annual caps having been obtained
pursuant to the requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The proposed resolution set out in the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held to consider and approve the
Processing Framework Agreement and the proposed annual caps

(E)
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(the "EGM") notice dated 14 December 2021 was duly passed by
the shareholders of the Company as an ordinary resolution by way
of poll at the EGM held on 31 December 2021.

A summary of the principal terms of the Processing Framework
Agreement is set out below.

Date: 25 November 2021

Parties: (i) Scud Battery, as the provider of the
Processing Services

(i) Scud Power Technology and Scud Energy
Technology, as the receivers of the
Processing Services

Duration: Three years commencing from the first day
of the calendar month immediately following
the date on which the requirements under the
Listing Rules that are relevant to the Processing
Framework Agreement having been complied
with, and such term may be extended by the
parties’ mutual agreement subject to compliance
with applicable Listing Rules at the time.

Processing Services: Scud Battery shall provide the Processing Services
to Scud Power Technology and Scud Energy
Technology by processing printed circuit boards
through applying surface mount technology,
manual plug-ins and conducting product tests,
depending on specific requirements and designs
specified in purchase orders to be placed by
Scud Power Technology and Scud Energy
Technology and to be agreed by Scud Battery.

Processing Fee: Within three (3) working days after Scud Power
Technology or Scud Energy Technology places
a purchase order, Scud Battery shall provide
a fee quote for Scud Power Technology’s or
Scud Energy Technology’s confirmation, which
shall be signed by the relevant parties. The
processing fee (“Processing Fee”) shall, depend
on the size of the purchase orders be as follows:
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(ii)

(iii)

for orders of one thousand and one (1,001)
or more pieces of processed products:

(@) RMBO0.01 (excluding tax) per point
will be charged for applying surface
mount technology;

(b) RMB30 (excluding tax) per hour will
be charged for manual plug-ins; and

() RMB30 (excluding tax) per hour will
be charged for conducting product
testing;

for orders of between two hundred and
one (201) and one thousand (1,000)
pieces of processed products:

(@) RMBO0.02 (excluding tax) per point
will be charged for applying surface
mount technology;

(b) RMBG60 (excluding tax) per hour will
be charged for manual plug-ins; and

() RMBG60 (excluding tax) per hour will
be charged for conducting product
testing;

for orders of two hundred (200) or
less pieces of processed products, the
Processing Fee will not be calculated based
on the number of processed products, and
will be a one-time charge of RMB1,740
per order.

(ii)

(iii)
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The Processing Fee was determined after arm’s length negotiation
between Scud Battery, Scud Power Technology and Scud Energy
Technology with reference to Processing Fee charged by Scud
Battery to clients which are independent third parties.
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The details on annual caps for the maximum Processing Fee payable
by Scud Power Technology and Scud Energy Technology to Scud
Battery under the Processing Framework Agreement are as follows:

Maximum Processing Fee payable for the year

Further details of the Processing Framework Agreement are set out
in the Company’s announcement dated 25 November 2021 and
the circular dated 14 December 2021.

As at 25 November 2021, Scud Power Technology is owned as
to approximately 93.95% by Mr. Fang Yubin, who is the son
of Mr. Fang, the controlling shareholder of the Company, and
Scud Energy Technology is owned as to approximately 90% by
Mr. Fang and approximately 10% by Ms. Fang Ying, who is the
daughter of Mr. Fang. Scud Power Technology and Scud Energy
Technology are therefore connected persons of the Company under
the Listing Rules and accordingly, the Processing Services under
the Processing Framework Agreement constitutes a continuing
connected transaction of the Company.

The annual cap for the processing fee payable by Scud Power
Technology to Scud Battery under the Processing Framework
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
RMB40,000,000.

The actual processing fee paid for the above continuing
connected transaction for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
RMB15,435,953.80.
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() Connected Transactions

n BEEXS
(F) Acquisition of 5.68% equity interestin Scud Power Technology  (F) WEERERRE) HRH5.68% HIRRAER HEH

and disposal of land

On 7 November 2022, Scud Battery entered into the investment
agreement (“Investment Agreement”) with Scud Power Technology,
pursuant to which Scud Battery has conditionally agreed to acquire,
and Scud Power Technology has conditionally agreed to allot and
issue to Scud Battery, 5.68% of equity interest in Scud Power
Technology (the “Acquisition), in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the Investment Agreement. Immediately upon
completion, Scud Power Technology will be indirectly owned as to
5.68% by the Company. The proposed resolution set out in the
notice of extraordinary general meeting of the Company held to
consider and approve the Investment Agreement (“EGM”) dated
14 November 2022 was duly passed by the shareholders of the
Company as an ordinary resolution by way of poll at the EGM held
on 1 December 2022.

A summary of the principal terms of the Investment Agreement
is set out below.

Date: 7 November 2022
Parties: (i) Scud Battery
(i) Scud Power Technology

The Acquisition:  Scud Battery has conditionally agreed to acquire,
and Scud Power Technology has conditionally
agreed to allot and issue to Scud Battery, 5.68%
of equity interest in Scud Power Technology in
accordance with the terms and conditions of
the Investment Agreement.

Land: the entire block 2 of Scud Battery Industrial
Park, No. 135 Rujiang East Road, Mawei Town,
Mawei District in Fuzhou, the PRC

Consideration: The consideration of the Acquisition comprise:

(i)  theland use rights of the Land (the “Land
Use Rights");

(i) the building ownership rights of the
buildings erected on the Land (the
“Building Ownership Rights”) (collectively,
the “Consideration”).
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The Land has a total area of approximately
17,026.39 sq.m. and the buildings erected
on the Land have a total floor area of
approximately 73.07 sg.m.

The Consideration was determined after
arm’s length negotiations between Scud
Battery and Scud Power Technology on
normal commercial terms taking into
account:

(@) value of 5.68% equity interest
in Scud Power Technology as
at 31 December 2021 in the
valuation report of approximately
RMB20,970,000, based on an
enterprise valuation report dated
7 November 2022 prepared by the
independent enterprise valuer; and

(b) aggregate value of the Land Use
Rights and Building Ownership
Rights as at 30 September 2022 in
the valuation report of approximately
RMB20,940,000, based on a property
valuation report dated 7 November
2022 prepared by the independent
property valuer.
The Disposal: the use of the Land Use Rights and Building
Ownership Rights as Consideration of the
Acquisition

Further details of the Investment Agreement are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 7 November 2022 and the circular
dated 14 November 2022.

As at 7 November 2022, Scud Power Technology is owned as to
approximately 93.95% by Mr. Fang Yubin, approximately 3.05% by
Fujian Penghao Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) (“Fujian
Penghao”), approximately 2.4% by Mr. Xu Chao, and approximately
0.6% by Fuzhou Economic and Technological Development Zone
Mincheng Equity Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership)
(“Fujian Mincheng”). To the best of the Directors’ knowledge,
information and belief having made all reasonable enquiries, save
for the approximately 8.20% equity interest in Fujian Penghao
held by Ms. Fang Ming, the sister of Mr. Fang Jin, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, each of Mr. Xu Chao, Fujian Penghao
and Fuzhou Mincheng are independent third parties. Mr. Fang Yubin
is the son of Mr. Fang Jin and Scud Power Technology is therefore
a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules and
accordingly, each of the Acquisition and the Disposal under the
Investment Agreement constitutes a connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Further details of the transactions and relationships of the connected
parties are also set out in Note 23 and 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the continuing
connected transactions set out above and have confirmed that, during the
year ended 31 December 2022, such transactions have been entered into:

(1

)

3)

(except for the Lease Agreement (2022), the Lease Agreement
(2023) and the Investment Agreement) in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group;

on normal commercial terms or better; and
according to the relevant agreements governing such transactions

on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The independent auditor of the Company has also confirmed that in
relation to the above continuing connected transactions:

(1

)

(E)

4)

50

nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe that such
transactions have not been approved by the Board;

for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the
Group, nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe
that the transactions were not, in all material respects, in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Group;

nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe that
such transactions were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; and

nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe that such
transactions have exceeded the relevant annual cap as set by the
Company.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the Review Period, the Group entered into certain transactions
with parties regarded as “related parties” under the applicable accounting
principles. Details of the related party transactions are set out in Note 37
to the consolidated financial statements. The related party transactions
which are also non-exempted continuing connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are disclosed in the section headed
"Continuing Connected Transactions” above.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” above and in Note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other contracts of significance between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries and no other contracts of significance for the provision
of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries were entered into or existed during
the Review Period.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors were interested in any business apart from the
business of the Group, which competed or was likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group during the Review
Period and up to the date of this annual report.

DIRECTORS' MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No Director or entity connected with a Director (within the meaning
of section 486 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws
of Hong Kong)) had any direct or indirect material interests in any
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the
Company, its subsidiaries, its holding company or its fellow subsidiaries
was a party entered into during, or subsisting during or at the end of,
the Review Period.
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PENSION SCHEME

The Company participates in a mandatory provident fund scheme,
which is registered under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF Ordinance”), for all its employees in
Hong Kong. The scheme is a defined contribution scheme and is funded
by contributions from employer and employees in accordance with the
provisions of the MPF Ordinance. No forfeited contributions (by employers
on behalf of employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in
such contributions) may be used by the employer to reduce the existing
level of contributions.

Furthermore, the employees of the Group in the PRC are members
of state-managed defined contribution retirement benefits schemes
operated by the local governments. The employers and the employees
are obliged to make contributions at a certain percentage of the payroll
under the rules of the schemes.

Details of the pension scheme contributions of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022 are set out in Note 4(n) to the consolidated
financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management or administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Group was entered into
or existed during the Review Period.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Group values its employees and provides competitive remuneration
package to attract and motivate its employees. The Group regularly
reviews the remuneration package of its employees and makes necessary
adjustments to conform to market standard. The Group also provides
regular training to its employees for their career development.

The Group values the views and opinions of its customers and regularly
communicates with them in order to obtain feedback and opinions and
understand their business needs and demands.

The Group has developed long-term and good relationships with its
suppliers. The relevant departments of the Group work closely together
to ensure that the procurement process is conducted in an open, fair
and just manner.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

To the best knowledge of the Directors, there was no material non-
compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the Group which
had a significant impact on the business and operations of the Group
during the Review Period.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Review
Period.

ANNUAL CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each independent non-executive Director
an annual confirmation of his or her independence pursuant to rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules, and the Company considers such independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

SUFFICIENT PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest practicable date
prior to the issue of this annual report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

On behalf of the Board

FENG MING ZHU
Chairman

31 March 2023

VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED
BEERERA T

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2022
&

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEERE

B <FAEREEKRRA

BEEMA ROBESAR AEETEREERY
AEBEBREBREEATENEREREAD -

BE - HExEEES

AREEEEMHBARSENDESRFEE - H
EXBRARDFEM LTHES

BY B0 2 FERR
BB ETRAE3 130 - ARAEKE S BIIEHIT
EFNFEBYSHRRE  AARATRA - HH
BIHPTEFIABIAL -

RS D RIEFRKF

REARFAFZARERRIBESMAA - R
RERFZZEERATTEY > NARCDEKRLET
AN R E # 1T R IARRFFBKF ©

REE=E

BERAT
TE

2023%3H31H

53



VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED

BUEERBR DA

L ANNUAL REPORT %R 2022

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CREREE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

Veson Holdings Limited (the “Company”) together with its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) are committed to maintaining and ensuring a high level
of corporate governance standards and continuously review and improve
the Group’s corporate governance and internal control practices. Save
as otherwise specified, set out below are the principles of corporate
governance as adopted by the Company during the financial year from 1
January 2022 to 31 December 2022 (the “Review Period”). The Company
has adopted the code provisions set out in Part 2 of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Corporate Governance Code”) in Appendix 14
of The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”). The Company complied with
all the applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
during the Review Period.

ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER (“CEO")

During the Review Period, Mr. Feng Ming Zhu served as the Chairman
(the “Chairman”) since 19 May 2020. The Chairman is responsible
for leading the Board in protecting the interest of the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) as a whole and for overseeing the
Group, whilst Ms. Lian Xiu Qin served as the Chief Executive Officer
(“CEO") of the Company and is responsible for managing the overall
business operations of the Group, proposing strategies to the Board and
monitoring the effective implementation of the strategies and policies
adopted by the Board.

Save for their business relationships as a result of their respective
directorships and positions in the Group, there are no financial, business,
family or other material or relevant relationships between Mr. Feng Ming
Zhu and Ms. Lian Xiu Qin.

THE BOARD

As of 31 December 2022, there were six members on the Board, which
comprised of two executive Directors, one non-executive Director (“NE")
and three independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs"”), whose names
are shown in the table on page 65. The INEDs are considered by the
Board to be independent of the management and free of any relationship
that could materially interfere with the exercise of their independent
judgments. The Board considered that each of the INEDs brings his
own relevant expertise to the Board and its deliberations. The term of
appointment of Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor, Mr. Cheung Wai Kwok Gary
and Mr. Lam Yau Yiu, the INEDs, commenced on 27 May 2022 and will
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end on the earlier of 26 May 2023 and the date of the annual general
meeting to be held by the Company in 2023. All appointment letters
of the INEDs can be terminated by the Company or the INED giving at
least 3 months’ prior written notice. Each of the INEDs confirmed their
respective independence to the Group. The term of appointment of Dr.
Loke Yu, the NED commenced on 27 May 2022 and will end on the
earlier of 26 May 2023 and the date of the annual general meeting to
be held by the Company in 2023. The appointment letter of the NED
can be terminated by the Company or the NED giving at least 3 months’
prior written notice. Save for the Directors’ business relationships as a
result of their respective directorships and positions in the Group and
save that Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor is a nephew-in-law of Dr. Loke Yu,
there are no financial, business, family or other material or relevant
relationships among members of the Board and they are independent
from each other.

The Board met regularly during the Review Period on an ad hoc basis as
required by business needs. The Board’s primary purpose is to set and
review the overall strategic development of the Group and to oversee
the achievement of its business plans to enhance Shareholders’ value
as a whole. Daily operational decisions are delegated to the executive
Directors and the senior management. Management is entrusted with
the task of implementing and executing business plans set by the Board.
Such Board meetings involved the active participation, either in person
or through other electronic means of communication, of the Directors.
During the Review Period, the Board met 6 times and the Directors’
attendance record is shown in the table on page 65. In advance of the
Board meetings, appropriate notices, meeting agenda and other relevant
information were given to all Directors. All Directors were consulted to
include additional matters (if any) in the agenda for Board meetings.
Draft and final versions of the Board meeting minutes were sent to all
Directors for their comment and record respectively. The original minutes
of Board meetings are kept by the company secretary of the Company
and such minutes are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable prior notice by any Director. The Company has put in place
appropriate insurance cover in respect of Directors’ liability.

The Company’s overall management is vested in its Board, which accepts
that it is ultimately accountable and responsible for the performance
and affairs of the Group. The Board's role is to provide entrepreneurial
leadership, set the Company’s strategic aims and the Company’s values
and standards, and to ensure that its obligations to its stakeholders
and others are understood and met. To facilitate the operations, the
Board has established a schedule of matters reserved for its approval.
The specific responsibilities reserved for the Board include (1) setting
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the Group's strategies and dividend policy; (2) reviewing operational
and financial performance; (3) approving major investments and
divestments; (4) reviewing risk management and internal control system
of the Group; (5) ensuring appropriate management development and
succession plans are in place; (6) approving appointments of Directors
and other senior executives; (7) approving corporate social responsibility
policies; (8) ensuring effective communication with Shareholders and
(9) other significant operational and financial matters. The day-to-day
management, administration and operation of the Group are delegated
to the management.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company. Directors are continually provided with updates to regulatory
and governance developments. The Company provides all members of
the Board with monthly updates on the Company’s performance, position
and prospects. Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development courses and seminars to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills, including updates to laws and regulations
applicable to the Company and its Directors as well as any amendments
thereto. During the Review Period, the Company provided regular updates
to the Directors on material changes to regulatory requirements applicable
to the Directors and the Company and on the latest business development
of the Group on a timely basis. The Directors confirmed that they have
complied with code provision C.1.4 of the Corporate Governance Code
in relation to continuous professional development. During the Review
Period, all of the Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by attending seminars, e-seminars, in-house briefing and
reading materials to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in
areas related to their roles, functions and duties of Directors such as
corporate governance and regulatory updates. In addition, during the
Review Period, Dr. Loke Yu, Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor, Mr. Lam Yau Yiu
and Mr. Cheung Wai Kwok Gary attended various directors’ training
seminars and e-seminars arranged by various organisations including
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Hong Kong
Institute of Directors. On a continuing basis, Directors are encouraged
to keep up to date on all matters relevant to the Group and attend
briefings and seminars as appropriate.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference as suggested under the
code provisions and recommended best practices under the Corporate
Governance Code and adopted with reference to “A Guide for Effective
Audit Committees” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in February 2002. As at 31 December 2022, the
Audit Committee comprised three INEDs, namely Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor,
Mr. Lam Yau Yiu and Mr. Cheung Wai Kwok Gary, and the chairman
of the Audit Committee was Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor. Each committee
member can bring to the Audit Committee his valuable experience in
reviewing financial statements and evaluating significant control and
financial issues of the Group, who among themselves possess a wealth
of management experience in the accounting profession or commercial
sectors. The Audit Committee was established on 3 December 2006 and
held 3 meetings during the Review Period. The committee members’
attendance is shown on page 65.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

(i) to review the half-year and annual financial statements of the
Group before they are submitted to the Board for approval;

(ii) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and to approve
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor,
and any questions of its resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

(iii) to review and monitor the external auditor’'s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards;

(iv) to review the Company’s financial controls;

(v) to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

(vi) to review and monitor the effectiveness of the internal audit
function;

(vii) to review the arrangements which the employees of the Company
can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters; and
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(viii) to review the terms and conditions of ongoing connected
transactions of the Group.

During the Review Period, the Audit Committee carried out its duties
as set out above, including reviewing certain financial information of
the Group.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) on 3 December 2006 and held 1 meeting during the
Review Period. The committee members’ attendance is shown on page
65. As at 31 December 2022, the Remuneration Committee comprised
three INEDs, namely Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor, Mr. Lam Yau Yiu and Mr.
Cheung Wai Kwok Gary. The chairman of the Remuneration Committee
was Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor. Its main duties are summarised as follows:

(i)  to make recommendations to the Board on the Group's policy and
structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing such remuneration policies, and to determine, with
delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of all individual
executive Directors and senior management;

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors;

(iii) to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates is involved
in deciding his/her own remuneration;

(iv) to review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes under
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules; and

(v) to advise Shareholders on how to vote in respect of any
service contract or appointment letter of Directors that requires

Shareholders’ approval in accordance with the Listing Rules.

The work done by the Remuneration Committee during the Review
Period included the above and the following:

(i)  determining the policy for the remuneration of executive Directors;
(ii) assessing performance of executive Directors; and

(iii) approving the terms of executive Directors’ service contracts.
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Details of the amount of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in Note
11 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the Corporate Governance Code, the
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remuneration payable to member of the senior management by band 128318t EE > SMEEBRE 2 HEIN F LA

for the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out below: TR

In the band of Number of individual(s)

B 45 B AE

Nil to RMB1,725,600 TFE AR¥1,725,6007T 2
(equivalent to Nil to HKD2,000,000) (FBEMZZE2,000,000%87T)

RMB1,725,601 to RMB2,157,000 AR#1,725,6017t 2 AR¥2,157,0007T 1

(equivalent to HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) on 3 December 2006 and held 1 meeting during the Review
Period. The committee members’ attendance is shown on page 65. As at
31 December 2022, the Nomination Committee comprised three INEDs,
namely Mr. Cheung Wai Kwok Gary, Mr. Lam Yau Yiu and Mr. Heng Ja
Wei Victor. The chairman of the Nomination Committee was Mr. Cheung
Wai Kwok Gary. The Nomination Committee selects and recommends
appropriate candidates based on the candidates’ prior experience and
qualifications to the Board on the appointment of Directors. The main
duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition (including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural background, educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and/or
length of service) of the Board on a regular basis and to make
recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed changes;

(i) to develop the criteria for identifying and assessing the qualifications
of and evaluating candidates for directorship;

(iii) to identify individuals who are suitably qualified to become a Board
member and to select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships having
regard to each candidate’s merit against an objective criteria and
the benefits of diversity of the Board;

(iv) to assess the independence of independent non-executive directors
to determine their eligibility;
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(v) to review and assess the adequacy of the corporate governance
guidelines of the Company and to recommend any proposed
changes to the Board for approval; and

(vi) have regard to the Company's policy concerning diversity of
Board members (“Board Diversity Policy”), and make appropriate
disclosure of the policy or a summary of the policy in the Company's
corporate governance report.

The work done by the Nomination Committee during the Review Period
included the above and determining the policy for the nomination of
Directors.

NOMINATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORSHIP

The Board has approved and adopted a nomination policy for directorship
with effect from 1 January 2019 (the “Nomination Policy”). The
Nomination Policy aims at setting out the processes and criteria for
the nomination of a candidate for directorship in the Company. The
Nomination Committee shall consider the following factors in assessing
the suitability of a proposed candidate:

(

(s3]

) reputation for integrity;

(b) accomplishment and professional knowledge and industry
experience which may be relevant to the Company;

(c) commitment in respect of available time;

(d) merit and potential contributions that such candidate could bring to
the Board with reference to the Company’s Board Diversity Policy,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, independence,
skills, knowledge and length of service;

(e) in case of a candidate for an independent non-executive director
of the Company, to assess the independence of such candidate;

and

(f)  board succession planning considerations and the long-term needs
of the Company.

The Nomination Committee has the discretion to consider any other
factors and matters and nominate any person, as it considers appropriate.
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BOARD MEMBERS AND DIVERSITY POLICY

In August 2013, the Board adopted a board diversity policy setting out the
approach to achieve diversity in the Board to ensure that the Board has
the balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the requirements of the Company’s business. With a view to achieving
a sustainable and balanced development, the Company sees increasing
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development.
In designing the Board’s composition, the Company will consider its
own business model and specific needs. In selecting candidates, the
Company will consider a range of diversity perspectives, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments will be based on merit and contribution that the
candidates will bring to the Board, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board.

The Nomination Committee of the Company is responsible for reviewing
the structure, size, diversity profile and skills matrix of the Board, selecting
individuals to be nominated as directors, reviewing succession planning
for directors, and making recommendation on such matters to the Board
for adoption. The Nomination Committee will review the composition
of the Board annually and set a diversity target for the Board for the
ensuing year.

The Board of the Company currently comprises a total of six members,
including three independent non-executive Directors and one non-
executive Director, whose professional areas cover finance and
accounting, electronics and electrical machinery, financial service, and
corporate management, etc. More than half of the Board members are
non-executive Directors to ensure the independence of the Board, only
two of the Board members are responsible for specific management
affairs. Among the three independent non-executive Directors, one has
a tenure of more than five years, and two have a tenure of less than five
years. The Company has always paid attention to gender diversity among
the Board members, and has committed to maintaining an appropriate
level of female representation in the Board, which shall be no less than
10% with immediate effect. Currently, female directors make up 16.7%
of the Board and 50% of executive Directors.
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EMPLOYMENT FIGURES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 3,023 employees
(2021:3,210) and 2 (2021: 2) senior management members. The Group
adheres to the principle of equality and non-discrimination in its business
operations. All employees are entitled to equal opportunities regardless
of their gender, age, nationality, ethnic background, religion, political
background, marital status, pregnancy status, military service status and
physical disability. The Group has always paid attention to gender equality
among employees. At present, the ratio of male and female employees
is 66.4% (2021: 65.5%) and 33.6% (2021: 34.5%) respectively, among
which the ratio of male and female senior management members is
100% (2021: 100%) and 0% (2021: 0%) respectively. The gender ratio
of the Group is in line with industry norm. The Group is committed
to maintaining the current level of female employees in its workforce.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has approved and adopted a dividend policy with effect
from 1 January 2019 (the
Board, in considering the payment of dividends, to allow shareholders

“Dividend Policy”). It is the policy of the
of the Company to participate in the Company’s profits whilst retaining
adequate reserves for the Group's future growth. The Board shall consider
the following factors before declaring or recommending any dividends:
(a) the Company's actual and expected financial performance;

(b) the Group’s liquidity position;

(c) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and
each of the members of the Group;

(d) the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return on equity and
the relevant financial covenants;

(e) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by
the Group's lenders;
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(f) the Group’s expected working capital requirements and future
expansion plans;

(g) general economic conditions and other internal or external factors
that may have an impact on the business or financial performance
and position of the Company; and

(h) any other factors that the Board deem appropriate.

The declaration, recommendation and payment of any dividends are also
subject to compliance with applicable laws, regulations and the articles
of association of the Company. The Board will continually review the
Dividend Policy from time to time and there can be no assurance that
dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any given period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Company established a corporate governance committee (the
"Corporate Governance Committee”) on 27 September 2018 and held 2
meetings during the Review Period. The committee members’ attendance
is shown on page 65. As at 31 December 2022, the Corporate Governance
Committee comprised Mr. Lam Yau Yiu (an INED), Mr. Cheung Wai
Kwok Gary (an INED), Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor (an INED), Dr. Loke Yu (a
NED) and Mr. Feng Ming Zhu (an executive Director). The chairman of
the Corporate Governance Committee was Mr. Lam Yau Yiu. All of the
committee members have significant experience in the internal control,
corporate governance, legal and/or accounting areas. The committee is
primarily responsible for performing corporate governance functions and
risk management and internal control functions in accordance with the
Corporate Governance Code. Mr. Feng Ming Zhu, an executive Director
who is responsible for the daily operations of the Group is a key member
of the committee. Mr. Feng Ming Zhu plays a key role in experiencing the
actual implementation status and/or progress of various internal control
and ongoing monitoring policies, and therefore can identify key issues
as and when they arise and interact with the staff and the operational
systems in order to identify any such issues on a timely basis.
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The main duties of the Corporate Governance Committee are as follows:

(a)

(b)

(@

(d)

(e)

)

(9)

64

to develop, review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the
Company;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and the Directors;

to review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code and disclosure in the Company’s corporate governance report;

to oversee the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis (including reviewing the Company’s
risk management and internal control systems, which includes
assessing the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
system), evaluate and determine the nature and extent of the
risks the Company is willing to take in achieving the Company’s
strategic objectives, and ensure that the Company establishes and
maintains appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems; and

to conduct an annual review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems, covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls.
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During the Review Period, the Corporate Governance Committee carried  REFEHIRE - CEEAE 8@ BT EXME B
5 AERASENAREHRGEASERRE

IEARPTETTRI A ©

out its duties as set out above, including discussing with the Group'’s
risk management department in relation to the internal control systems
of the Group.

The following table summarises the attendance of each individual Director T &t EEREZE €K EROEBRHEESE
B2g  ZEERBRERENBER

o

and committee member in the respective Board, committee and general
meetings held during the Review Period.

Meetings attended/held in 2022

RUORELHE/ BGHER
Board Audit ~ Nomination Remuneration Corporate General
Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Governance Meeting
Committee
E3®  ENZE® RPZBE  FMZBE L¥Ehzas LT
Number of meetings held during the REESHETHEEYA
Review Period 6 3 1 1 2 2
Executive Directors: #i7Es:
Feng Ming Zhu (Chairman) BRI (2E) 6/6 NATER NATER NATER 2 M
Lian Xiu Qin BEE 6/6 NAT &R NAT &R NATER NATER 0
Non-executive Directors: FHTES:
Hou Li (term of appointment expired &Y (82022458278 0N NATEE NATEE NATER NARER 0
on 27 May 2022) &)
Loke Yu g 6/6 NANEE NARER NANE 22 M
Independent non-executive Directors: BUFHTES:
Heng Ja Wei Victor iR 6/6 33 7 7 22 22
Lam Yau Yiu HRE 6/6 33 " " 22 22
Cheung Wai Kwok Gary RAEH 6/6 33 " 1 22 22
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GOING FORWARD

The Group will keep on reviewing its corporate governance standards on
a regular basis and the Board endeavors to take the necessary actions
to ensure compliance with the provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual written
confirmation of his independence, and the Company considers such
Directors to be independent in accordance with each and every guideline
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for performing the
corporate governance functions as set out in its terms of reference, the
main duties of which are set out above.

During the Review Period, the Corporate Governance Committee reviewed
the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance Code.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE OF THE LISTING RULES

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the
code provisions set out in Part 2 of the Corporate Governance Code
under Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout the Review Period.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Risk Management Structure of the Group

The Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for overseeing
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group and
assessing their effectiveness. The risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Risk Management Department

The Group has set up a risk management department which is responsible
for the design and implementation of the risk management system,
assisting the Board in monitoring and supervising the implementation
and effectiveness of the risk management framework and process and
reviewing the measures on dealing with risks. The risk management
department performs an internal audit function and is responsible for
performing review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal
control systems of the Group.

The Corporate Governance Committee reports to the Board after review
of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
system. Upon consideration of the work and results of review of the
Corporate Governance Committee, the Board forms its view on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems.
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The Board ensures that a review of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group is conducted annually in respect of the
relevant financial year.

During the Review Period, the Corporate Governance Committee and the
risk management department conducted a review of the internal control
systems and procedures of the Group and to make recommendations
accordingly (“Internal Control Review").

The scope of work of the risk management department included an
independent assessment of the internal control systems of the major
subsidiaries of the Group. During the Review Period, the risk management
department performed reviews on the internal control systems of the
major subsidiaries of the Group which involved collecting relevant
information and conducting walkthrough tests.

The Internal Control Review has been completed. Having reviewed the
findings and results of the report on the Internal Control Review prepared
by the risk management department, and having taken into consideration
the improvements and/or remedial measures implemented in accordance
with the risk management department’s recommendations, the Board is
of the view that the Company has put in place adequate internal control
system and financial reporting procedures to meet its obligations under
the Listing Rules. In view of the above, the Board considers that a review
of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
was conducted during the Review Period and the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group are effective and adequate.
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Major Risks and Uncertainties of the Group rEEXERBRIEEY

The Group is exposed to different risks and uncertainties. Some of ANEBHEBRTEERETHEEE - AEBE LTS
the Group’s major risks are set out below and appropriate mitigation B & 540 T I & HEUE & & RIE I EIEZ SR

measures have been devised to manage such risks. Bz o

(A) OPERATIONAL, STRATEGIC AND FINANCIAL RISKS (A) K& BRERTEERE
The smart electronic products industry advances at a tremendous BHEFERTHEER—ATE  ARQFREZE
pace. Lithium-ion battery module, being the Company’s main EnPHFEaRAZEANESETFTR £
product, is mostly used in smartphones, notebooks, tablets and ARFREAGFERZE - HERSHEETED
wearable devices. The sales of consumer smart electronics may RS SR EEEBE N KO &R
change rapidly in response to consumer demand or taste. As W ERERTPESEFEMENERTE
a supplier of lithium-ion battery modules for a number of PRC MISAMHER BT TFHREEERER
smartphone brands, the drastic fluctuation in customers’ sales of B EAEEMER TE0RABEEEREX
smartphones will have significant effect on the sales of the Group's ' -

lithium-ion battery modules.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues include the REBE A T B MR RZERE

following:

(i) investment of resources in development of new products and () HEERFAZRFER BEMESHEREZ
application of lithium-ion battery in new industries and new b BEFENERRAITERNE
fields in response to changes in market demands; 1

(i) diversification of product portfolios in order to reduce the (i) ZtERAE  UWRPERERZHEE
impact of a reduction in sales of individual products on the BIEAEBRBEB 2 VE R

Group’s overall business; and

(iiiy proactive recruitment and training of skilled and experienced (i) FEMRIBEE RIZ A AT A & B B 1T A
technicians to enhance the Group’s R&D capability. 8 - DUgsa RE BRI o
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For lithium-ion battery products, great importance is attached to
their quality and safety. The performance and safety of lithium-
jon battery is very sensitive to ambient environment. The safety of
lithium-ion battery lies in effective use of external circuit design
to ensure battery’s operation is normal and safe. However, the
efficiency and reliability of these safety devices are closely connected
with good and consistent manufacturing quality. Various different
circumstances or causes may also lead to short circuit and other
risks.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues include the
following:

(i)  inthe pursuit of higher efficiency and endurance for batteries,
the Group conducted more rigorous review of the safety of
batteries to ensure that all the batteries delivered by the Group
meet high safety standards;

(i) the Group ensures it purchases sufficient product liability
insurance for protection. Product liability insurance covers the
liability arising from a defective product that causes personal
injury, property damage or other losses; and

(iii) the raw materials and other auxiliary materials used for the
Company’s products shall be certified by authorities before
being used. In the process of production, the Company’s
quality control department shall conduct inspection at each
stage throughout the whole production process to ensure the
quality of the Company’s product and safeguard the interests
of consumers with a quality monitoring system.

In 2022, more than 90% of the Group’s turnover was derived from
its ODM business. Over 60% of the sales of its ODM business was
to three smartphone brand manufacturers. If the Group loses one of
these top customers, it may have adverse effects on the operation
and financial results of the Group’s ODM business.
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Actions taken by the Group to address these issues include the
following:

(i)  look for more potential customers to reduce its dependence
on top customers;

(ii)  strengthen after-sales services for customers, pay regular visits
to customers and conduct customer satisfaction survey to
continuously improve the quality of products and services,
consolidate the Group’s competitiveness in the industry and
increase customer loyalty; and

(iii) develop more new products to meet customers’ needs.

The vast majority of the Group’s sales revenue is from operating
units in the PRC. Adverse events in the PRC’s operation and political
environment may result in material adverse effects on the Group's
business, financial position and operation results.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues include the
following:

(i) development of overseas markets to increase revenue from
overseas operations; and

(ii)  continuous monitoring of PRC's operations and political
environment, anticipation of possible problems, and establish
quick strategic response to changing business environment.

Overdue payments by customers granted with credit by the Group
will increase the financial risk to the Group and affect the Group'’s
financial performance and operating cash flow.
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Actions taken by the Group to address these issues include the
following:

(i)  regular review of the amount of accounts receivable from key
customers to control it at an appropriate level; and

(i) implementation of strict internal control measures and increase
collection efforts for overdue accounts receivable.

The main raw material for lithium-ion battery modules (being the
Group's main product) is lithium-ion bare battery cell. The Group
purchases lithium-ion bare battery cells from many well-known
international manufacturers. In recent years, lithium-ion bare battery
cell has been widely used in smartphones, notebooks, tablets,
wearable devices, power tools, electric bicycles, energy storage
and other fields. Any increase in the price or shortage of supply
of lithium-ion bare battery cells will have a material impact on the
profitability and production costs of the Group.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues include the
following:

(i) regular research on and evaluation of suppliers to ensure
stable supply of raw materials; and

(i) through automation upgrade of production lines, the Group
solves the problem with human resources and effectively
controls production costs, which have positive effects on
improvement of the Group’s profitability and control of
production costs.

ACCIDENT RISKS

Major accidents including fires, natural disasters or serious infectious
diseases will affect the Group’s assets and operations, thus affecting
the Group's operational capacity and reducing profitability.
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Actions taken by the Group to address these issues include the
following:

(i)  ensure comprehensive insurance coverage over the Group's
properties and business is purchased;

(i)  provision of regular education and training sessions on safety
for all staff to strengthen staff’'s awareness of production
safety;

(iii) training on fire safety, fire emergency evacuation and fire drill
at workplace are organised at least twice a year to ensure staff
have a solid understanding of the significance and necessity of
production safety and improve their own awareness of safety
protection; and

(iv) organise physical examination for the benefit of its staff to
help in assessing possible occupational and serious infectious
diseases.

INDUSTRY RISKS

The possible slowdown of the Chinese economy, the possible drop
in global shipment of smartphones and the possible substantial
decrease in consumers’ demands for replacement of smartphones
will have material adverse effects on the Group’s business, financial
position and operation results.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues include the
following:

(i) proactively pay attention to the application of lithium-ion
batteries in new industries and new fields, grasp opportunities
for access to the market and adjust the development strategy
in response to changes in the market; and

(i) proactively build a platform for communication with consumers,
pay close attention to consumers’ demands, timely listen to
consumers’ opinions, and provide good products and after-
sales services to increase customer loyalty.
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INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company:

o is aware of its obligations under the Securities and Futures Ordinance
and the Listing Rules;

o conducts its affairs in strict compliance with the relevant guidelines
and policies relating to inside information issued by the Securities
and Futures Commission and the Stock Exchange from time to
time;

o has implemented procedures for responding to external enquiries
about the Group’s affairs; and

e has implemented policy regarding prohibition on the unauthorised
use of confidential or inside information.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code"”). Having made specific enquiries of all Directors, the
Company confirmed that all Directors have complied with the required
standard as set out in the Model Code for the financial year ended 31
December 2022.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment of
the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit functions performed by
the external auditor, including whether such non-audit functions could
lead to any potential material adverse effect on the Company. During
the Review Period, the Group paid approximately RMB1,466,800 to its
external auditors, namely BDO Limited, and approximately RMB379,400
to its PRC auditor for their audit services. The Group paid approximately
RMB258,800 to BDO Limited for their non-audit services in respect of
the review of the interim financial information of the Group for the six
months ended 30 June 2022.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR ACCOUNTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group. The Directors’
responsibilities for the accounts and the reporting responsibilities of
the external auditors are set out on pages 83 to 86 of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Yeung Mun Tai (FCCA,
CPA). Mr. Yeung took no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the Review Period.

SHAREHOLDER AND INVESTOR RELATIONS
COMMUNICATION STRATEGIES

The Board established a Shareholders’ communication policy setting
out the principles of the Company in relation to its communication
with the Shareholders, with the objective of ensuring the Shareholders
are provided with access to information about the Company in order
to enable Shareholders to assess the Company’s overall performance,
exercise their rights in an informed manner and engage actively with
the Company.

Information would be communicated to Shareholders mainly through
the Company’s corporate communications including interim and annual
reports, annual general meetings and other general meetings that
may be convened, as well as by making available all the disclosures
submitted to the Stock Exchange, its corporate communications and
other corporate publications on the Company’s website. Shareholders
may direct enquiries about their shareholdings to the Company’s share
registrars. To the extent the requisite information of the Company is
publicly available, Shareholders and the investment community may at
any time put forward enquiries to the Board in writing to the Company’s
head office in Hong Kong by post, facsimile or email via the address,
facsimile number or email address provided on the Company’s website.

If Shareholder(s) would like to express their views to a matter mentioned
in a proposed resolution or other business to be dealt with at an AGM
or extraordinary general meeting, they can submit a written statement of
not more than 1,000 words with respect to that matter or business and
request the Company to circulate their written statement to Shareholders
entitled to receive notice of the meeting. Such Shareholder(s) must
represent at least:—
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(@) 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having the
relevant right to vote at the meeting; or

(b) 50 shareholders having the relevant right to vote at the meeting.

The Company concluded that the Shareholders’ communication policy
was effectively implemented during the Review Period, as the Company
had made use of multiple communication channels.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, any one or more
Shareholders holding on the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary
at our head office in Hong Kong by post, facsimile or email via the
address, facsimile number or email address provided on the Company’s
website, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
The written requisition may also be deposited at the Company’s head
office in Hong Kong at Room 1017, 10/F Leighton Centre, 77 Leighton
Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong, for the attention of the Board or the
Company Secretary. If within 21 days of such deposit of the written
requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company were
amended pursuant to a special resolution passed by the Shareholders
at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 27 May 2022.
Further details of the amendments are set out in the Company's circular
dated 26 April 2022.

STAKEHOLDERS

The continuing development and present scale of the Group were
benefited from the trust and support of the stakeholders. We have
been dedicating efforts not only to maximise the present value of the
Group but also to maximise the interest and return for all parties so
as to achieve harmonious development and collaboration with mutual
benefits in the long run.
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INVESTORS

The Group has always paid much attention to communication and
interaction with investors, and continues to improve communication
channels with shareholders and investors, so as to enhance
governance transparency. The Group’s management regularly meets
with investors, and proactively announces the latest information
and business development plans.

CONSUMERS
PRODUCT SAFETY

The Group has placed emphasis on the safety of products, especially
on mobile phone batteries, and has implemented strict quality control
such as the ISO standards so as to meet safety requirements. With
our product testing centres, we administer stages of tests, including
crash, high-temperature, damp and long period recharging, on
our battery products. We also invest resources in product R&D to
develop more reliable products. The battery products of the Group
have also passed the stringent requirements on quality control and
safety set by the relevant government authorities.

EMPLOYEES
OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY

The Group has focused on factory production safety, strived to
enhance employees’ safety knowledge and training, and increased
factory fire prevention facilities and safety patrols, so as to ensure
unobstructed fire passages and the availability of water in case of
fire. In addition, the Group has regularly held fire drills and increased
investments in fire prevention facilities in factories, so as to ensure
the sufficiency of fire prevention equipment and facilities.

The Group has proactively taken and implemented various measures,
including:

(i) increase factory fire prevention facilities and safety patrols
(once a week), resolve problems in a timely manner and ensure
unobstructed fire passages and the availability of water in case
of fire;

(i) hold regular safety seminar and training for employees,
especially for new staff, striving to enhance employees’ hazard
prevention and safety awareness;

(iii) conduct at least two large scale fire drills every year and
conduct general safety checks on such days;
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(iv) enhance factory management and divide it into safety
responsibility districts, appoint safety examiners at the
workshops with routine patrols, and eliminate potential
problems in a timely manner; and

(v) improve and formulate storage, safe keeping, transportation
and processing procedures for flammables, and provide
training for staff frequently in contact with such flammables.

ESTABLISHMENT OF OWN SKILL TRAINING INSTITUTE

Apart from occupational safety, the Group has also placed emphasis
on providing on-the-job training for its staff. The Group started
a comprehensive talent training programme, which is tied to the
establishment of its own skill training institute. Talents are cultivated
at the skill training institute and made available to the production
pipeline to resolve the labour shortage issue faced by industry
participants. After a period of training, the Group will allocate
labour resources directly to various departments, which will shorten
the time for staff replacement and reduce labour cost. Automated
production will also be implemented at different phases. Moreover,
in the training process, participating staff can understand the
practical operation issues arising from the course of production,
which will effectively enhance production efficiencies and qualities.
The Group invites talents from society and selects personnel with the
required management and technical expertise through professional
and rigorous training processes. At the same time, this also brings
to society a new generation of trained talents in fulfillment of the
Company’s social responsibilities.
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PROTECTION OF EMPLOYEES’ LEGAL RIGHTS

The Group promotes and undertakes a fair and non-discriminative
employment policy. Employees are employed on contract basis and
employment contracts are signed based on principles of fairness and
on employees’ own volition, with clear provisions on contractual
terms such as scope of work, remuneration, social insurance and
working hours, among others. The legal rights and obligations of
the employer and employee are clearly defined. We also strictly
comply with the relevant laws and regulations in relation to national
social insurance to set up insurance scheme for basic pension,
medical, work-related injuries, unemployment and maternity for
employees and cover the various insurance expenses. Meanwhile, to
further protect the interests of individual employees, the Company
has taken out a commercial accident insurance scheme for all
employees. The Group has complied with the Labor Contract Law
of the PRC since 1 January 2008 and established a labor union.
We hold an employees’ meeting every two weeks, in support of
the construction and development of a harmonious and stable
employee and employer relationship.

COMMUNITY
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

As a responsible enterprise, the Group has always put emphasis
on supporting environmental protection. We strictly control the
production procedures and reduce waste generation. Although
small amounts of waste are generated during the packaging
process, some of them are delivered to qualified recycling plants
for treatment.

For the environmental, social and governance report of the Group,
please refer to the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
of the Company.
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Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

IBDO

www.bdo.com.hk Hong Kong
EEF - +852 2218 8288 FATHER1115R
85 : +852 2815 2239 KRA254
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED S EERERATRER

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Veson
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) set out on pages 87 to 198, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Company as at
31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

1. Impairment assessment of trade and notes receivables
(Refer to notes 4(g), 5(iii), 21 and 41(a)(iv) to the
consolidated financial statements)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had trade and notes receivables
with net carrying amount of approximately RMB1,964 million and a
net impairment loss of approximately RMB7.5 million was recognised
for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The directors of the Company have performed an impairment
assessment on the trade and notes receivables in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policies which required the exercise of
significant management judgement in considering factors such as the
credit history including default or delay in payments, ageing analysis,
settlement records during the year and subsequent settlements after
the year end.

Our response

Our key procedures in relation to the directors’ impairment assessment
included:

e Understanding the Group's relationship and transaction history
with the customers;

e  Reviewing the ageing analysis of the trade and notes receivables;

o Reviewing payment patterns during the year and amount
of subsequent settlements after the year end made by the
customers;

e  Assessing the reasonableness of the Group’s estimation of
recoverability of trade and notes receivables with reference to
factors considered by the directors.

e Assessing the appropriateness of the expected credit loss
provisioning methodology, examining the key data inputs on
a sample basis to assess their accuracy and completeness, and
challenging the assumptions, including both historical and
forward-looking information, used to determine the expected
credit losses.
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2. Impairment assessment of non-financial assets (Refer
to notes 4(o) and 5(iv) to the consolidated financial
statements)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, investment properties and right-of-
use assets with carrying amount of approximately RMB775 million,
RMB4 million, RMB46 million and RMB22 million respectively.
Notwithstanding that the Group earn profits during the current year,
the market capitalisation of the Company of approximately RMB283
million fell below the net asset value of the Group of approximately
RMB1,069 million as at 31 December 2022. This constitutes
an impairment indicator on the Group’s non-financial asset in
accordance with International Accounting Standard 36. The directors
of the Company have performed an impairment assessment on the
cash-generating units in which these assets belonged to in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policies and concluded that, there was
no impairment loss for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Estimation of the recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units
required the exercise of significant management judgement.

Our response

Our key procedures in relation to the directors’ impairment assessment
included:

e Assessing the appropriateness of methodology used for assessing
the recoverable amounts; and

e  Assessing the reasonableness of the underlying key assumptions
used.
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OTHER INFORMATION
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other

IN THE ANNUAL

information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements that give true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e  obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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e conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants
Chan Tsz Hung

Practising Certificate no. P06693

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

maE

~

mREMMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F12H31H IFF/Z

2022 2021
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE AR%T T ARETT
Turnover =3 6 6,359,226 7,091,644
Cost of sales $HEE AR N (5,902,519) (6,576,958)
Gross profit E 5 456,707 514,686
Other revenue = 7 58,593 56,030
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R EE (94,666) (92,754)
Administrative expenses THAX (294,716) (332,706)
Other operating expenses Hassms 9 (8,066) (8,176)
(Impairment loss)/reversal of impairment MEWE SHEREKEZEER Y
recognised on trade and notes CR{EEIR) RE R R FEE
receivables, net 21 (7,548) 1,796
(Impairment loss)/reversal of impairment MBEAFIE -« HE REMELK
recognised on prepayments, deposits SIERERZ CRERE)
and other receivables, net BB RE F 58 22 (5,620) 3,147
Finance costs BhE A N 12 (77,782) (77,525)
Profit before income tax KR PTAS2 A& A1 8 26,902 64,498
Income tax expense S x 13 (6,836) (25,937)
Profit for the year N JE s A 20,066 38,561
Other comprehensive income for the AEEHEEMBEE !
year, net of tax:
Item that may be reclassified subsequently Ri2EHEEEFFBETERD
to profit or loss HE
— Exchange differences on translating — MBI ER 2 ER E5E
foreign operations (12,189) 2,881
Other comprehensive income for the year, ZARGEEFR%E M2 mEKER
net of tax (12,189) 2,881
Total comprehensive income for the AEELENEEE
year 7,877 41,442
Profit for the year attributable to: TOATEERFERF :
Owners of the Company RARIEB A 24,038 42,182
Non-controlling interests FEPERRE 34 (3,972) (3,621)
20,066 38,561
Total comprehensive income attributable to: 51| A £ fE(5 & N5 E%E
Owners of the Company RATHEA A 12,596 45,114
Non-controlling interests JEFERS R (4,719) (3,672)
7,877 41,442
Earnings per share FRREA]
— Basic and diluted (RMB cents) —HEARANEEARESD) 15 2.21 3.87

87



VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED
HIEERERAF

\ ANNUAL REPORT 3k 2022

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

nVT\ =] ,ji%;lﬁ;ﬂ:%:?

At 31 December 2022 2022412 H31H

2022 2021
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
MisE AR®ET R ARBT T
Non-current assets FRENEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE MG 16 775,369 814,889
Investment properties B 17 45,922 50,995
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 18 22,211 30,282
Intangible assets mEAE 19 4,192 4,542
Prepayments, deposits and other TENFIE - e REMEWGRIE
receivables 22 31,189 34,671
Financial assets at fair value through other IZAFEZFAHEMEEWZERL &
comprehensive income BE 23 20,940 -
Deferred tax assets BRI E E 31 98,698 105,358
Total non-current assets ERBNEELTE 998,521 1,040,737
Current assets REBEE
Inventories =8 20 787,276 553,045
Trade and notes receivables JEURE 570 IE K B W = 21 1,963,797 2,504,241
Prepayments, deposits and other TERFIR - &E REAMERFIA
receivables 22 235,469 171,507
Amounts due from related parties FEUS A A T 5IE 24 129,618 78,722
Current tax recoverable A] Y [B] BN EATE 18 15,061 14,995
Pledged bank deposits BIRBIRITF R 25 710,965 988,689
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR MRS 26 200,944 226,695
Total current assets MEAELREE 4,043,130 4,537,894
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and notes payables FENEBSHERENEE 27 2,613,130 3,118,080
Other payables, contract liabilities and Ei\ﬁﬂﬁéﬁ ATH - AHEER
accrued charges FEET &R 28 148,481 193,468
Lease liabilities — current portion HEABE - RETY 18 7,018 6,436
Bank loans — current portion RITER—RBHBD 29 879,442 861,655
Amounts due to directors FERtEERIE 30 34 34
Amounts due to related parties JEHRE:E A LFA 24 1,105 2,295
Total current liabilities mEBEERE 3,649,210 4,181,968
Net current assets RBEEZFE 393,920 355,926
Total assets less current liabilities EEABRABERE 1,392,441 1,396,663
Non-current liabilities FkRBEE
Lease liabilities — non-current portion HEBGE—FERBHH 18 10,724 16,590
Bank loans — non-current portion BITER—FERBIS 29 307,096 313,329
Deferred tax liabilities RIET IR A G 31 5,360 5,360
Total non-current liabilities IR B &R 323,180 335,279
Net assets BEE 1,069,261 1,061,384
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
fra MR AR

At 31 December 2022 2022412 H31H

2022 2021
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B & ARBT T AREF T
Capital and reserves EXRE#E
Share capital &N 32 107,590 107,590
Reserves E= 962,617 950,021
Equity attributable to owners ANREE AELES
of the Company 1,070,207 1,057,611
Non-controlling interests FEE R R 34 (946) 3,773
Total equity s 1,069,261 1,061,384
LD ¥
J \
—
FENG MING ZHU LIAN XIU QIN
BT BEFE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EE EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GEREBBE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %2022 12 H31H IFF/Z

Retained  Attributable

Statutory  Enterprise profits/~to owners Non-
Share Share  Capital  reserve expansion Translation (Accumulated of the  Controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve fund fund  reserve losses) ~ Company Interests  equity
N
HE -4 REEH/  #AA

B%  B#uE A48  O0RE  BRE:  ERER (RMER)  RENR FERER A8
RVBOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMB'O0D  RMBOOO  RWBOO0  RVB00D  RMBOOD  RMBOD0  RMBOD

ARBTTL ARETL ARMTR ARETT ARMTR ARBTL ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

At 1 January 2021 R0NEIR1E 10759 619288 186,215 135813 67715 (67,030)  (35768) 1,013,823 10,718 1,024,541
Profit for the year REEER = = = = = - IR 0182 (3621) 38561
Exchange differences on translating foreign &85\ £5K 7 Ex £

operations - - - - - 2932 - 2,932 (51) 2,881
Total comprehensive income FERRANGEE

for the year - - - - - 2932 42,182 45,114 (3.672) 41,442

Changes in ownership in a subsidiary ~ WEBARNERREES
without changes in control (BHERE) = = (82) = = = (1,244) (1326) (3.273) (4599)
Appropriations Al - - - 7380 3402 - (1078 - - -

At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 120215128318 R202261A1B 107590 619,288 186,133 143193 T (64099 (5612 1,057,611 3773 1,061,384

Profit for the year REEER - - = - = - 24,038 24,038 (3972 20,066
Exchange differences on translating foreign A& 551577 ES 25

operations - - - - - (11440) - (11,442) (147)  (12,189)
Total comprehensive income FEREANGEE

for the year - - - - - (11.442) 24,038 12,5% (4719 1811
Appropriations i - - - 4,068 2,034 = (6,102) - - -
At 31 December 2022 R202%12A31R 107590 619288 186,133 147,261 73,151 (75,540) 1234 1,070,207 (946) 1,009,261
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Notes:
Share premium

The share premium account represents the excess of the issue price
net of any issuance expenses over the par value of the shares issued
and has been credited to the share premium account of the Company.
The application of the share premium account is governed by Section
34 under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal amount of the shares issued by the Company and the
aggregate amount of the paid-in capital of subsidiaries acquired plus
the consideration received by the Company pursuant to the Group
Reorganisation in preparation of the listing of the Company’s shares.

Statutory reserve fund and enterprise expansion fund

Pursuant to relevant laws and regulations in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") applicable to foreign investment enterprises and
the Articles of Association of the PRC subsidiaries of the Company,
these PRC subsidiaries are required to maintain two statutory reserves,
namely a statutory reserve fund and an enterprise expansion fund
which are non-distributable.

Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Scud Electronics”), Scud Battery
Co., Ltd. (“Scud Battery”), Shenzhen Hongde Battery Co., Ltd.
(“Shenzhen Hongde”), Dongguan Hongde Battery Co., Ltd. (“Dongguan
Hongde”), Scud Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd. (“Scud Intelligent
Technology”) (together the “PRC Subsidiaries”) are required to
transfer 10% of their respective profit after income tax as reported in
the PRC statutory financial statements to the statutory reserve fund
until the balance reaches 50% of their respective registered capital.
Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the PRC Subsidiaries, they
are also required to make appropriation from their respective profit
after income tax as reported in the PRC statutory financial statements
to the enterprise expansion fund at rates determined by their
respective boards of directors.

The statutory reserve fund may be used to make up prior year losses
incurred and, with the approval from the relevant government
authorities, to increase capital for expansion of production of the PRC
Subsidiaries. The enterprises expansion fund, subject to the approval
by the relevant government authorities, may also be used to increase
capital of the PRC Subsidiaries.

Translation reserve

Gain/loss arising on translating the net assets of foreign operations
into presentation currency.

Retained profits

No dividend is proposed for the year ended 31 December 2022
and 2021. As at 31 December 2022, the balance of retained profits
of the Group was RMB12,324,000 (2021: accumulated losses of
RMB5,612,000).

1: “/—&-‘AEQ-EZQFZ

an\
For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %2022 12431 H 1 F/Z
BeE
qapiaii]
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

:-‘/TAIE,E/JILE%:Z

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #%2022F 12 731H 1F F/Z

2022 2021
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
i3 ARMF T ARETTT
Cash flows from operating activities RETBNERERE
Profit before income tax PR P15 0 A Al 26,902 64,498
Adjustments for: FEIAR -
Interest income FE U A 7 (12,798) (10,794)
Finance costs BEMA 12 77,782 77,525
Gain on acquisition of finanacial assets at BEELATEFALMEE
fair value through other comprehensive Wasm & B & B 2 e
income 7 (17,618) -
Gain on lease modification i EHE - (1,590)
Amortisation of intangible assets mVEESH 8 2,236 1,842
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERRETE
equipment 8 103,373 76,672
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BERREHE
equipment 9 74 672
Write-off of property, plant and equipment M -« BE K E 9 3,769 3,826
Depreciation of investment properties BEMENE 8 5,073 5,073
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE 8 6,944 9,511
Impairment loss/(reversal of impairment ThIENE 5 I I FEUR
loss) recognised on trade and notes ZIEMER 2 REEE
receivables, net (REEERER)FE 21 7,548 (1,796)
Impairment loss/(reversal of impairment loss) MIBAZE e REAM
recognised on prepayments, deposits and W T IBRER 2 REEE,/
other receivables, net (REEBREE)FE 22 5,620 (3,147)
Impairment loss recognised on inventories IEERRANRESE 54 -
Write-off of inventories S8 9 3,747 1,929
Operating profit before changes in BEESEHHML L BT
working capital 212,706 224,221
Increase in inventories FEE (238,032) (111,108)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and notes e B 5 308 K FE R %
receivables W/ (3Eh) 532,896 (525,558)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, deposits TR « Re REAEKGRIE
and other receivables (), md (66,100) 6,947
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due from e BEE AL RRIE (), R
related parties (50,896) 9,195
(Increase)/decrease in trade and notes payables B & 5708 Kk ERMZ &
(&), md (504,950) 636,390
(Increase)/decrease in other payables, contract ~ HAbENKIE - A4 A &R IEE
liabilities and accrued charges BRGEM), WD (44,987) 6,397
Cash (used in)/generated from operations E(FA)/ FieRE (159,363) 246,484
Interest paid S (18,249) (90,857)
Income tax paid BREE (242) (2,762)
Net cash (used in)/generated from SETE (A FERLFE
operating activities (177,854) 152,865
Investing activities BEEE
Interest received W & 12,798 10,794
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits BEMREZRD,/(Em) 277.724 (237.879)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HENE - BE KEEMERE
equipment 10,592 582
Payments to acquire property, plant and BEME  BEKEHEHTEA
equipment (73,386) (158,695)
Payments to acquire intangible assets BEELEER (1,886) (3,116)
Payments to acquire financial assets at fair ﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁ@$1§.ﬁr)\ﬁﬁﬂ%@w % Y
value through other comprehensive income CRBENRA (1,030) =
Acquisition of shares from non-controlling I“HH AR AERS IR
interests - (4,599)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
SGERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %2022 12 431 H I F/Z

2022 2021
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
= AR®TR ARBFT
Net cash generated from/(used in) RETEME (TR RS TE
investing activities 224,812 (392,913)
Financing activities MEE 38
Bank loans raised EERTED 1,929,847 1,745,734
Repayment of principal portion of leases EBEASAEID (6,551) (8,403)
Repayment of interest portion of leases EBERERNSTH (2,000) (2,723)
Repayment of principal portion of bank loans ERAERAL TS (1,917,503) (1,482,684)
Repayment of interest portion of bank loans BERTERFEEHD (61,423) -
Decrease in amounts due to directors BN EEFIE }F‘J@‘ - )
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to related FEREEALTZECHD),
parties (1,190) 298
Net cash generated from financing METHHEREFHE
activities (58,820) 252,220
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash RERBESEEERRY) EE
equivalents L] (11,862) 12,172
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of FHBEERBEELEEEH
year 226,695 211,294
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ERBEE (13,889) 3,229
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year EXRBEERRLEEER 200,944 226,695
Analysis of the balances of cash and cash REeRREEEEB BRI
equivalents
Bank balances and cash IRITHEHBR LIRS 200,944 226,695
MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS FEHFBRETS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had non-cash
additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB5,209,000
and RMB5,209,000 respectively, in respect of the lease arrangements
for the leased factory, office and staff dormitory. There is no such
addition during the year ended 31 December 2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had non-cash
enhancement and transformation of property, plant and equipment
with net carrying amount of RMB3,912,000 (2021: RMB11,227,000)
from their original uses. These property, plant and equipment were
accounted for as disposal when they were being enhanced and
transformed; and accounted for as addition when they were ready to
use.

HZE2021F12 831 ElJJ:¢§  AEERNFEREEE
LHEEBGEIIERSAED R A ARYS,209,0007T &
AR#¥5,209,0007T ' JVEBERE BAERET
BEMHEE %ikﬁféﬁ HE2022F12A831B 1L E
Iﬂlﬂirﬁ/h

HE2022F 128318 IEFE  AEEMNBRBERR
FERSIRARBENE  BERXENEDFE
B A KR®3,912,0007T(20214F © AR #11,227,000
TC) ° ZEWE - BE KR ERRA R BGER T ER
€ RREAHERRERE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z20224F 12431 H 1L F/Z

94

GENERAL

Veson Holdings Limited (the “Company”), is a public limited
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 20 July 2006 as
an exempted company with limited liability and its shares were
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 21 December 2006.

The Company’s principal activity is investment holding and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in manufacture and sale of
lithium-ion battery modules and related accessories for mobile
phones, notebooks, tablets and digital electronic appliances,
while also engaging in manufacture and sale of lithium-ion bare
battery cells.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs")

(@) Adoption of new or amended IFRSs - effective
from 1 January 2022
In the current year, the Group has applied following new or
amended IFRSs, which are relevant to and effective for the
Group's consolidated financial statements for the annual
period beginning on 1 January 2022.

Amendments to IAS 37

B e ERIE375% (85T A)
Amendments to IAS 16

BB ERIFE 165 (1S5 A)
Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, IFRS 16 and IAS 41

PR BA M S 2RI SE 1 5% - BUFR BA s S 2E RISE 955K

B 5 B 705 e 5 R B 28 1 65 R BB 5T R 4158 (1B RTAR)
Amendments to IFRS 3
B0 5 B 75 e 5 HE RI SB35 (1 RTAR)

These amendments to IFRS standards had no material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

—RER

HEZERER AR ARQT])K2006%7H20
BEHSHEEIMKIAEREZ EFHARA
Al HARMDN2006F12 A21BEBBHAR 5
iR AR (BT ) EMR ETT ©

ARBMEEXBR/REZER - REKBEQA
TEREREATH  ZTE - FREBBEE
FEMMAZEETFELEAREEEN 2L
ENHE  TMEEEMTFEN 2 EEREE -

RN ET AR EBR B B | S
28 ([ B PR A A5 3R 5 22 A )

(a) AT RIS EBR B K | EE
Al— 8202218 1HEEX
RAEE - AEBEEREANU T S
BRI BRI S 2R - i FEAREE R
20221 A1 BRGHFE M 2 76 B
WEABELEHAER -

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract

BRIEEH —BITE BB

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use

M - RE Rk - BUERRAC PSR

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards
2018-2020

B 5% B 75 R 45 2E R1I20184F 220204 18
2 FEBE

Reference to Conceptual Framework

BSAER 2 Rt

ZEBRMBHEER 2 ETHAKE LS
EMBHRERMEEATE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (continued)

(b) New or amended IFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective

The following new or amended IFRSs, potentially relevant to
the Group’s financial statements, have been issued, but are
not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2

BIFR & SR 5% R BIR M S SR S L B B B 257 (BT )
Amendments to IAS 8

Bl & SR E 85 (BT A)

Amendments to IAS 12

B e ERF 129 (BT A)
IFRS 17

BIBR B TS R R 175
Amendments to IAS 1

BIR @ ET AR 15 (BFTA)
Amendments to IAS 1

B a5 R E 15 (BRI A)
Amendments to IFRS 16

BIFR B 75 R 5 £ R B 1657 (18T )
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

BB 3R SR 105 R BIIR @5t RIS 2858 (B AT &)

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024

g No mandatory effective date yet determined but
available for adoption

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the potential impact of these new pronouncements. The
Directors so far concluded that the application of these new
pronouncements is unlikely to have a significant impact on
the Group'’s financial performance and financial position.

A IR E

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F12H31H IFF/Z

2. BRAFEIRNEETERMBRE
(BRI RELER

(b) & MBI R &Rz 5] ISR B
R B 765 i 5 22 A
THI R A KB B IHRR BRI X
KIERTRBR I RS R 2 A BME R R
R AREASERRRA -

Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

BT 2 RE

Definition of Accounting Estimates’

EEREE P

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction'

HME—RHEL 7 EERERABNELRHE

Insurance Contracts'

Riga 4

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current?

BEDERREHIENE?

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants?

EZNNIEREE E?

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?

ERBmTNEEa B

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®

REFREMENFRAECE L MBEST
ANEE?

g R2023F1R1AK 2 AR EE
%Fﬁﬁi@( °

2 2024 FVATBE Sz BB EE
%Fﬁﬁi@( °

g Eﬁ*ﬁéi%ﬁ%ﬂi%{ﬁﬁﬂ B AR
e

AEBEEFERENAENECTE - &
RESHE  RAREHAE KA LY
AEENFBHRREFHRAELEERY
@,
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %2022 12 H31H IFF/Z

3. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

96

(a)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable IFRSs, International Accounting Standards
("IASs"”) issued by the IASB and Interpretations issued
by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee of the IASB (hereinafter collectively referred
“IFRS”) and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

to as the

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis, except for notes receivables that have
been measured at fair value. The measurement bases are
fully described in the accounting policies below.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Chinese Renminbi
("RMB"), which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company.

3. 2HHE%E

(a)

(b)

(c)

BREH
MBRETDIREBEFAEERBRRYBRE L
A BREEAZ R ERMIBEERE
ZR(TERR & 2R ) KBRS ERZR
SeE THERMBREREZSSHEM
MR B (R BRMEREER DARE
BARERDIZ EERMARE - Bt5h - B
BRERBEEBEMERZIMERARE
ERRARENEREKE ©

HEEE

B BE R AR ARG -
WD TEE R BRI - 3 B 2ER
X & EAD i -

DEER 2 G
MBRETDAARETAREDZY - &
HEARRMIEEREMER o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR Rk I EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %2022 12 431 H I F/Z
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EXEFHEBE
(a) XBEHRGFEESE

(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”). Inter-company transactions and balances between
group companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or up
to the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with
those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value
of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests
issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are principally measured
at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or losses
are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on
a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure the non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
All other non-controlling interests are measured at fair value
unless another measurement basis is required by IFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless they
are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case the
costs are deducted from equity.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

98

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period
(@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date) about
the fair value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration classified as an
asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are
accounted for in the same manner as would be required if
the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests
at initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s
share of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to such non-controlling interests even
if this results in those non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EASHBE »)

(Continued)

(b) Subsidiaries (Continued)

(c)

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able
to exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all
three of the following elements are present: power over
the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
the investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any
of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment
loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

(b) MERATR(E)

(c)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EASHBE »)

(Continued)
(c) Property, plant and equipment (Continued) () Y% - MERREE)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying ZATE B A8 B8 A R PRAS A 25 % 1] B i AR

amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, SE - MIBEKRAREA SEHAETE - BIER

only when it is probable that future economic benefits BRATt ABENREESBERRS—E

associated with the item will flow to the Group and the BYEE(RERE) ZEMHOHEE

cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying BEEHIUEHER - TEEMEERRESR

amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other AHEREENYBHRARNEERERER

repairs and maintenance are recognised as an expense in X e

profit or loss during the financial period in which they are

incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to ME - BRERBRESETINE - #ZFURE

write off their cost or valuation net of expected residual TR A A B DA B AR A SR 4N R TR HA JR)

value over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line MREBEERNKN AN GEE AIERASEE -

basis. The useful lives, residual value and depreciation FIHEERTE AN S ERS BHRE

method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at B wEheE - eELAR - aERF

the end of each reporting period. The useful lives are as BAGNT :

follows:

Building 3% BF 3%

Plant and machinery 10-33% TR e i 2 10-33%

Motor vehicles 20-25% 5"=L$ 20-25%

Electronic equipment, furniture and 10-33% FHRE - BRREE 10-33%

fixtures

Leasehold improvements 10% or the remaining HEMZEERE 10% 3k g8 N AH & HA
lease period whichever (e E RLE)
is shorter
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment
losses. Cost comprises direct costs of construction as
well as borrowing costs capitalised during the periods of
construction and installation. Capitalisation of these costs
ceases and the construction in progress is transferred to the
appropriate class of property, plant and equipment when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the assets
for their intended use are completed. No depreciation is
provided for in respect of construction in progress until it is
completed and ready for its intended use.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and its carrying amount, and is recognised in
profit or loss on disposal.

Investment property

Investment property is property held either to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation or for both, but not held for sale
in the ordinary course of business, use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Investment property is measured at cost on initial
recognition less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED

BUSERBR QA

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2022

5

A IR E

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F12H31H IFF/Z

4, EXEHBE )

(c)

(d)

Y~ BERREE)
EETRERANBREREBBAR - KA
BREERERRARRER R 2K RER
BREMERAA - EREERBARNE
BERZRNAETRE B EEEYTKE
ZERATBENE > MEZTEBKEA
ME BERREBENEERR - FRETRE
R IER MBI EREE AR T RHRITE
B -

BENEEENEREGBFIREESE
Alg AR MO E A AT B 258

HEME - B R&REE B MK E R
REEMGFRFEEAREEIRNE
] WEHERMERER -

REMHE

REMERFERBESHEATHELM
ERA MIERBEXBBEDFIEL
% ARNEERERE IR - HIET
BRAZHME - REVMFER B RHEREFIR
RARERFITER R BEBR(ER)

o

101



VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED

BUSERBRLDA

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2022

A IR

N T /

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %2022 12 H31H IFF/Z

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

102

(d) Investment property (Continued)

(e)

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income, the Group chooses
not to classify and account for these property interests as
investment property.

Leases

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or
finance leases) are required to be capitalised in the
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices exist for an
entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-
term leases and/or (i) leases for which the underlying asset
is of low-value. The Group has elected not to recognise
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for low-value assets
and leases for which at the commencement date have
a lease term less than 12 months. The lease payments
associated with those leases have been expensed on
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EASHBZE 2

(Continued)

(e) Leases (Continued) (e) ME(#E)

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and
would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement
of the lease liability (see below for the accounting policy to
account for lease liability); (ii) any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives
received; (iii) any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee;
and (iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee
in dismantling and removing the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease;
unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.
Except for right-of-use asset that meets the definition of
an investment property or a class of property, plant and
equipment to which the Group applies the revaluation
model, the Group measures the right-of-use assets
applying a cost model. Under the cost model, the Group
measures the right-to-use at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for
any remeasurement of lease liability.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)
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Leases (Continued)
Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s incremental
borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the underlying
asset during the lease term that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease are considered to be
lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease incentives
receivable; (i) variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at commencement date; (iii) amounts expected to be
payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;
(iv) the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and (v) payments
of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the
lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying
amount to reflect interest on the lease liability; (ii) reducing
the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made;
and (iii) remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any
reassessment or lease modifications, e.g., a change in future
lease payments arising from change in an index or rate,
a change in the lease term, a change in the in substance
fixed lease payments or a change in assessment to purchase
the underlying asset.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EASHBZE 2

(Continued)

(f) Intangible assets

(i)

(i)

Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is fair value at
the date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over
their useful lives as follows. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. The amortisation
expense is recognised in profit or loss and included in
administrative expenses.
Software 3-5 years
Internally generated intangible assets (research
and development costs)

Expenditure on internally developed products is
capitalised if it can be demonstrated that:

— it is technically feasible to develop the product
for it to be sold;

—  adequate resources are available to complete the
development;

—  there is an intention to complete and sell the
product;

—  the Group is able to sell the product;
—  sale of the product will generate future economic

benefits; and expenditure on the project can be
measured reliably.
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()
(ii)

(iif)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Internally generated intangible assets (research
and development costs) (Continued)

Capitalised development costs are amortised over
the periods the Group expects to benefit from selling
the products developed. The amortisation expense is
recognised in profit or loss and included in cost of
sales.

Development expenditure not satisfying the above
criteria and expenditure on the research phase of
internal projects are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

Impairment

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
for impairment annually by comparing their carrying
amounts with their recoverable amounts, irrespective
of whether there is any indication that they may
be impaired. If the recoverable amount of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount.

(g) Financial Instruments

(i)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is initially
measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade
receivable without a significant financing component
is initially measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the market place.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
are two measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets at
amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest rate method. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on derecognition
is recognised in profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI"): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at
FVTOCI. Debt investments at FVTOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value. Interest income calculated
using the effective interest rate method, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

A IR E

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F12H31H IFF/Z
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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(g) Financial Instruments (Continued)

()

(ii)

Financial assets (Continued)
Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is
not held for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair
value in other comprehensive income. This election is
made on an investment-by-investment basis. Equity
investments at FVTOCI are measured at fair value.
Dividend income are recognised in profit or loss unless
the dividend income clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investments. Other net gains
and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income and are not reclassified to profit or loss. All
other equity instruments are classified as fair value
through profit or loss, whereby changes in fair value,
dividends and interest income are recognised in profit
or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECLs
on trade receivables, financial assets measured at
amortised cost and debt investments measured at
FVTOCI. The ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases: (1) 12-months ECLs: these are the
ECLs that result from possible default events within
the 12 months after the reporting date; and (2)
lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive. The
shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the
assets’ original effective interest rate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EASHBZE 2
(Continued)

(g) $MTE )
(i) EBEEREEEE)

(g) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii) Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for
trade receivables using IFRS 9 simplified approach and
has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on
the 12-months ECLs. However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group’s historical
experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or (2) the financial asset is
more than 90 days past due.
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4., SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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(g9) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Group determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income
that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial
assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the
Group's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset. For non credit-impaired financial assets interest
income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(iii) Financial liabilities

(iv)

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are initially measured at fair value and financial
liabilities at amortised costs are initially measured at
fair value, net of directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and other payables, financial liabilitiies included
in other payables, contract liabilities and accrued
charges, borrowings, amounts due to related parties,
amounts due to directors and lease liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method. The related interest expense
is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income
or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts or payments through
the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or
where appropriate, a shorter period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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(g) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation
to the financial asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets the
criteria for derecognition in accordance with IFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments
to a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole
or in part as a result of renegotiating the terms of
that liability, the equity instruments issued are the
consideration paid and are recognised initially and
measured at their fair value on the date the financial
liability or part thereof is extinguished. If the fair value
of the equity instruments issued cannot be reliably
measured, the equity instruments are measured
to reflect the fair value of the financial liability
extinguished. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability or part thereof
extinguished and the consideration paid is recognised
in profit or loss for the year.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EASHBZE 2
(Continued)

(h) Inventories

0]

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents represent short-term,
highly liquid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which were within three
months of maturity when acquired.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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()

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services, excluding those amounts collected on behalf
of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may
be transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of
the goods or service is transferred over time if the Group's
performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

. creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

° does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the goods or service.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(j) Revenue recognition (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amounts receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group,
revenue recognised under that contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For contracts where the period
between the payment and the transfer of the promised
goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price
is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in IFRS 15.

(i) Sale of lithium-ion battery modules and related
accessories for mobile phones and digital
electronic appliances

Customers obtain control of the products when the
goods are delivered to and have been accepted.
Revenue is thus recognised upon when the customers
accepted the products. There is generally only one
performance obligation. Invoices are usually payable
within 60-90 days.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(j) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Sale of lithium-ion battery modules and related
accessories for mobile phones and digital
electronic appliances (Continued)

Some of the Group’s contracts with customers from
the sale of product provides standard warranty service
for defective goods to assure that the product sold
complies with the agreed-upon specifications within 6
months following the date of delivery. The warranty
gives rise to a separate performance obligation if
a warranty provides a customer with a service in
addition to the assurance that the product complies
with agreed-upon specifications. Therefore, an entity
shall allocate the transaction price to the product and
the service.

Other revenue

Rental income under operating leases is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the
principal outstanding at the applicable interest rate.

Processing income is recognised over time when
processing services are provided.

(k) Contract liabilities

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to

transfer services to a customer for which the Group has

received consideration (or an amount of consideration is

due) from the customer.
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(Continued)

()

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and deferred
tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for
goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred
tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to the expected
manner in which the carrying amount of the asset or
liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entities, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are
also recognised directly in equity.
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(m) Foreign currency
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Transactions entered into by group entities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic
environment in which they operate(s) (the “functional
currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling when the
transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and
liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period except for differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which
gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income, in which case, the exchange differences are also
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. RMB) at the average exchange rates
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the rates approximating
to those ruling when the transactions took place are
used. All assets and liabilities of foreign operations are
translated at the rate ruling at the end of reporting period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as
foreign exchange reserve (attributed to minority interests
as appropriate). Exchange differences recognised in profit
or loss of group entities’ separate financial statements on
the translation of long-term monetary items forming part
of the Group’s net investment in the foreign operation
concerned are reclassified to other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Employee benefits

(o)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected
to be settled wholly before twelve months after the
end of the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service. Short term
employee benefits are recognised in the year when the
employees render the related service.

Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss when
the services are rendered by the employees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews

the carrying amounts of the following assets to determine

whether there is any indication that those assets have

suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss previously

recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

Property, plant and equipment;

Investment properties under cost model;

Intangible assets; and

Right-of-use assets.
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(o)

(p)

(a)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use) of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expenses
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another IFRS, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease under
that IFRS.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Income earned on temporary investments of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on those
assets is deducted from borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis
in the same periods in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in profit or loss over
the useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EASHBZE 2

(Continued)

(r) Provisions and contingent liabilities () BERIREE
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing EASEEBATEHEA LERSHEER
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive Eif A BE B BUR A A Flam - Bz 4B A
obligation arising as a result of a past event, which it is AL A IR AT AT - BIlE BL AR A2 T E B )
probable will result in an outflow of economic benefits that SR B EEREE -

can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic AR R ERLELENR - kZE 8
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be Regrl SEfhst - AlZEERBEERSIASR
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a &+ MR LB =S RO AIBRAb o
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of B AREEE RN EAKEHS
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the ARESSFENAEERE  TERER
existence of which will only be confirmed by the occurrence SANEE M H AR A e ) R (i Al
or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are also BRAN o

disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(s) Related parties (s) BEAL
(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is (@) fWEBUATAL - RIFZALTSEZATA
related to the Group if that person: TR EERK B AN E B R
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group; () Ik ERIEHAEE
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) HAEBBEEAFESN o
(i) is a member of key management personnel of (i) AAEEHARABFRAANE
the Group or the Company’s parent. ZEBENE o
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the (b) MfEFFE THEMEYE - BIZE A
following conditions apply: RE B B
(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the () ZEREASEERN-—SEH
same group (which means that each parent, RERARI(ME/AF - WEA
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the AIRFARMEBARKILEE R
others). &) o
(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the (i) —REBRS—EBHNBER
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a AlgEE X (S —EBAK
member of a group of which the other entity is a BRRIMEEKE QAR
member). NAIHEEDE) -
(ili) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third (i) MREBHRA-—F=7T04&
party. B o
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Related parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the group or to the group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.
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4, EXRSHBE#)

(s) BEAL#E)

(b)
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(iv)
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(vi)

(vii)

(viii)
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(iii)

FZALTH TR RGBT ENHE

ZATEBRREFENTFL &

ZALTHRZATOERBRFEHEDN
ZEA-



VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED
BEERERA T

ANNUAL REPORT ¥k E)ZZ

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with IFRS requires the directors to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The directors have considered the development, selection
and disclosure of the Group’s critical accounting policies and
estimates. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets or liabilities are as follows:

(i) Useful lives and depreciation of property, plant
and equipment and investment properties

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges of its property, plant and
equipment and investment properties. These estimates
are based on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment and investment
properties of similar nature and functions. The Group will
increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are less
than previously estimated lives, and will write-off or write-
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ
from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result in
a change in depreciable lives and therefore depreciation
charges in future periods.

A IR E

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F12H31H IFF/Z

5.

EESHAHRMEAEHTIRERE
ZEERIR

RENEBRBRMBEREEANGEPHERERE
KEEHEMIRTABNEERBENERER
BEELHE - G5 RERER - At MR /KRR
DERBEZRREMFERESEENEERE - B
BREERAIBEA BN L FMhET ©

ZEGF RBARKRSEFERT - BRI
A WA BERT R E BRI A A A - Al
EZHEER  MAREBITZEIAHRINE
HifE - BITE(E AT HARE R oA 12 BRI e o

EZEERASEFTEGHBUR AR 2%
B EBRER SERFHEESAGRAME
EHERARZ F 2/ A M2 bt RREW
T

() "M% BERREBURKRENEZT
ERFEHRITE
AEBEEENE  BERRBUARKRED
E2 AR EAFEHARBBETERS -
ZEHATRBEE MR 2 ME
5 B R i A R R B W) SR B R AT R AR
ZBEKRMEL - WA ERFHERZA
ZEFRE  AIAREReRSITER
X WEHEMENXLE 2RI LiBRK
FESR B B B M SMURL - BRRAEE FHIR]
REEMAE AT A E AR o E Bt al
BREEZAIFEFHHRES - A3
BAEEERKARZIFTERS -
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(i) Net realisable value of inventories

5. EEGSTHERATTIEEREE
ZEERR®)

(i) FEZTREFE

124

(iii)

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and variable selling expenses. These estimates
are based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes
in customer taste and competitor actions in response to any
industry downturn. The directors reassess the estimations at
the end of each reporting period.

Allowances for trade receivables and notes
receivables

The Group uses a provision of matrix to calculate ECLs for
trade and notes receivables. The provision rates are based
on days past due for groupings of various debtors that
have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is based
on management’s estimate of the lifetime expected credit
losses to be incurred, which is estimated by taking into
account the credit loss experience, ageing of overdue fee
receivables, customers’ repayment history and customers’
financial position and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions, all of which involve a
significant degree of management judgement. The provision
of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of
forecast general economic conditions. The information
about the ECLs and the Group's trade and notes receivables
are disclosed in Notes 21 and 41. If the financial condition
of the customers or the forecast economic conditions were
to deteriorate, actual loss allowance would be higher than
estimated.

FEZAERHEDNBEBREEEPIE
2 st EER AT TR AN J AT & &
RIS o W EMET TIRIRIR B i SR L%
BreEhHEEMBELRMEDL -
VTEREEFmREEFHFREMTE
TRFTETBIMAEAZ( - EENER
SHREHFAEET

ERESRAREBERRE ZRE

AEHE R A R R B R KE 5 50R
REBREBEAHREEESR - BEXKRA
BROERE RN T RER AR 288
B#FE - BEERELDENEREHKE
ENFERABHEEBRZGE KR
EEERLR  AREREKRARE
BEFERTHREPMBEIA LS B AT K
BREREERR ZFEREE  EPF
B REXEENEIREFE - BHIE
EEERRY BB LB BEEER
NEBHH FRAHCEEERNERK
REE YW E 5508 R BB KT E21
RATBFE - B P MBI KT E
MR - AERBRREEES N b
B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(iv) Impairment of non-financial assets

(v)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for property, plant and equipment, investment
properties, intangible assets and right-of-use assets at the
end of each reporting period. These assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based
on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s
length transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset.
When value in use calculations are undertaken, the directors
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.

Further details on deferred taxes are disclosed in Note 31.

A IR E

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F12H31H IFF/Z

5. EEESHERATTIREERE
ZEERR @)

(iv) FEmMEERE

(v)

AEEERZHEARFEDE BER
wE - BRENE  BYVEERERAEEE
ERHRERABENR - ZFEEERT
SRR AR T B A RE SR UK (O] B 4R HRE R
Ao BEEFRSELENNKREERS
Huam B (E R FERHEXARE
EREBETHREE)E - BIHIRREE -
RHEREERADRBERABEELETA
FREGBRADRNNHERXFHAER
MBERATBEEMERNEZEENEE
AR H - ETEREEFER  EFL
AT REEEIRSELEVMNBHR
KAERE WEREBSENHRREUFE
ZEREREMNAE -

EEBIREE

P B R 1 8D R TR B 18 TH 1 FE R A IR AE TR
HEE  WEARRT RN A BIEEMATH
RZEBEEARR - EFARBERRERTR
M) 2 7T RE Ry [ e B AR [R) R R FE SR T A 8
KB EHEXRFE - ABEEA THERZE
IRBEESR °

BRERERBANE - TFBERIE3IH
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AN

D KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

126

Control over Cybertech Optiemus Holdings
Limited (“Cybertech”)

The Group owns 50% equity interests in Cybertech. For the
purpose of assessing whether or not the Group has control
over Cybertech and its subsidiaries (collectively “Cybertech
Group”), the directors considered whether the Group has
the ability to direct the relevant activities of Cybertech
Group. In making this judgement, the directors considered
that the relevant activities of Cybertech are directed by the
board of directors and all resolutions of directors’ meeting
are passed by simple majority. Since the Group is entitled
to appoint 3 out of 5 directors into the board of directors
of Cybertech in accordance with investment agreement,
the Group dominates the board of directors of Cybertech
and is able to direct the relevant activities of Cybertech
Group. The directors of the Company were therefore in
the opinion that Group has control over Cybertech Group
during the year despite its shareholding therein was
50% and Cybertech Group were qualified as subsidiaries
of the Company under IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial
Statements” for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Estimation of incremental borrowing rate for
lease liabilities

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate
implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental
borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR
is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay
to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security,
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to
the right-of-use assets in a similar economic environment.
The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to
pay”, which requires estimation when no observable rates
are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into
financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to
reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Group
estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market
interest rates) when available and is required to make
certain entity-specific estimates.

5. EEEHERATTEERE
ZEERR 4

(vi) ¥Cybertech Optiemus Holdings

Limited ([ Cybertech |) z & 4 #

7N £ [E % B Cybertech#)50% % # - & &F
EAREE RS HCybertech & £ Bt B A &
(# 78l Cybertech® @ |) E 5= - &
EEERAEEZE S #8548 RCybertech
SEMEMEE - NEL L HER - =
FRBCybertechW B ES R ES S
T BEEERNAIBRARREUBESH
AR ARASEEERIRBRAREERE
CybertechZEE €@ A RESHH =4 -
It 7N 82 B A Cybertech® E & b {h = E iy
iz - I §E #0945 ‘RCybertechss B B9 #8 B8 &
oAt AAREERA BEASHE
% 5 Cybertech® E50% /% # » (B R FE
MEEERZEGIE - BRBEEBRSHRES
HRIZE105R] 47 & BA B & | - Cybertech
SEREE2022F12A31BILFERFA
BRIERARNRINIB AR -

(vi) EEHERE 2 BEEARF =X
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At - BEEKF KRR T NEE[ &
I x - EEmAE RN KK
VEITUBERGZMBARME)XE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F12H31H IFF/Z

6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. ZXERoHER
(a) Turnover (a) =X

Turnover represents gross invoiced sales, less returns and
trade discounts.

The following table provides information about trade
receivables and contract liabilities from contracts with
customers.

EXRBREEEHEABREERE ST
e

TREHREAERKESFBARKEETFA

HzahaBEzE -
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBT T

Trade and notes receivables (Note 21) FEUE 5 2018 & el Z ik (FIsE21)

Contract liabilities (Note 28) AHEE(HE28)

1,963,797 2,504,241
14,916 21,025

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s rights
to consideration for work completed but not billed
at the reporting date on revenue. The contract assets
are transferred to receivables when the rights become
unconditional. This usually occurs when the Group provides
the invoice to the customer.

The contract liabilities mainly relate to the advance
consideration received from customers. RMB21,025,000 of
the contract liabilities as of 31 December 2021 has been
recognised as revenue for the year ended 31 December
2022 from performance obligations satisfied during the
year (Note 28).

The Group has applied the practical expedient to its sales
contracts for lithium-ion battery modules and related
accessories for mobile phones and digital electronic
appliances and therefore the above information does not
include information about revenue that the Group will be
entitled to when it satisfies the remaining performance
obligations under the contracts that had an original
expected duration of one year or less.

EMBEETREAKEHE K TIFER
RENEFER - ERRE B8 E RN
SR - REFKSRIGHR  ANEE
BRERKFA - B —RRAEER
EFRARRREL -

AHEEEZRKERERFHBEMNNRE
B HE2021F12831B 2808 E
AR#E21,025,00070 B HERAE 220224
12A31 B IEFEBARFEERBOEERN
EAR e (Hi7E28) o

A9 B B 6 T T PR A T R
BEETESNENT oA RANE
HOMEAK Bt FRERTRER
EEERITABRAET A —FRE
B2 A BT RSB OE T A RN
WS B -
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(b)

128

Reportable segments

The Group has adopted IFRS 8 “Operating Segments”
with effect from 1 January 2009. IFRS 8 requires operating
segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports
about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed
by the chief operating decision makers in order to allocate
resources to segments and to assess their performance.

The Group is engaged in the business of original design
manufacturing (“ODM business”) as well as bare battery cells
("Bare battery cells business”). The chief operating decision
makers (i.e. the Company’s directors) review the segment
information of these businesses and based on it to allocate
resources to segments and to assess their performance. The
Group’s reportable segments are set out below:

ODM business — Manufacture and supply of lithium-ion
battery modules, power banks, motive battery and related
accessories for branded mobile phone, notebooks, tablets
and EV manufacturers within and outside China.

Bare battery cell business — Manufacture and sale of
lithium-ion bare battery cells for mobile phones, tablets and
power banks.

Others - Sales of raw materials, work-in-progress,
processing income and rental income.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6.
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(b) Reportable segments (Continued)

Segment information about these businesses is presented as

follows:
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F12H31H IFF/Z

6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXHERoHER #)

(b) ERERZER(E)
ERZEXBNOHERZ5IT

Segment revenue and results TEY R FEE
2022
ODM Bare battery
business cell business Others Total
ODME# ETER Hit gt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR¥TR AR¥TR AR%Tx
Total Turnover mekE 7,064,100 167,031 607,612 7,838,743
Less: Intersegment sales o AEHE (1,039,344) (26,800) (413,373)  (1,479,517)
Turnover HEE 6,024,756 140,231 194,239 6,359,226
Segment profit/(loss) SEEF/ (E8) 108,218 (1,533) (19,944) 86,741
Unallocated income AAEBA
- Bank interest income —RITHIBIA 12,798
- Exchange gain — [ 5 W 19,504
- Others —Hith 24,760
Unallocated expenses AABAZ
- Other corporate expenses —HEt AR (4,855)
- Auditor’s remuneration —ZEEE (1,726)
— Legal and professional fees —FERBEEH (316)
— Staff costs —BTIRKA (27,584)
— Rental expense —HEHRX (405)
— Finance costs —BERK A (77,782)
- Others —Hfty (4,233)
Profit before income tax B PS8 AR A 26,902
Income tax expense FriSHiA % (6,836)
Profit for the year REZRF 20,066
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. %K S9IPER )

(Continued)

(b) Reportable segments (Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

(b) H¥RDAR(E)

D EB R R FEAE ()
2021
ODM  Bare battery
business  cell business Others Total
ODME7 B Hit FCE

RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTLE ARBTT ARETT AREMTET

Total Turnover g 8,003,663 205,268 663,172 8,872,103
Less: Intersegment sales B AERHE (1,310,809) (24,610) (445,040)  (1,780,459)
Turnover EEHE 6,692,854 180,658 218,132 7,091,644
Segment profit S ER A 171,667 1,085 1,327 174,079
Unallocated income AAEBA
- Bank interest income —RITFIBIA 10,794
- Others —Hith 1,547
Unallocated expenses AABAZ
~ Other corporate expenses —EMRARIRX (2,973)
— Auditor's remuneration —%EE B (1,659)
- Legal and professional fees —ZEREEXER (1,137)
— Staff costs —BTIKA (26,014)
— Rental expense —HEHX (383)
— Exchange loss - EREBX (5,746)
— Finance costs —BERA (77,525)
- Others —Hfts (6,485)
Profit before income tax % PS8 AR A 64,498
Income tax expense EikE iliab3 (25,937)
Profit for the year RERHF 38,561
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXZRoRER &)
(Continued)

(b) Reportable segments (Continued) (b) BIF|DE(E)

Segment assets and liabilities DEHEERERE
2022
ODM Bare battery
business cell business Total
ODME7# ERER et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREBTR ARETR
Segment assets DEREE 4,741,510 146,545 4,888,055
Unallocated corporate assets ROBARIEE
— Property, plant and equipment —MZE - BB RFK 37,459
— Investment properties — KB 45,922
— Financial assets at FVTOCI — B AT ERAEM
2HRENEREE 20,940
— Bank balances and cash —RITEHR KRR 3,891
— Prepayments, deposits and —TENRIE  Rek
other receivables H fth FEU SR IR 420
— Amounts due from related parties — FEUR A A T 5IE 37,346
— Others —HAth 7,618
Consolidated total assets e AERRE 5,041,651
Segment liabilities HEAaE 3,881,707 81,006 3,962,713
Unallocated corporate liabilities N /NCIN=E
— Other payables — HE S 5RIE 2,576
— Amounts due to directors —ENEERE 34
— Amounts due to related parties — e REE A 38 719
— Deferred tax liabilities —EERIEEE 5,360
— Others —Hftb 988
Consolidated total liabilities rAEAaERE 3,972,390
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.
(Continued)

EEEE D EHBER @)

(b) Reportable segments (Continued) (b) BIF|DE(E)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PEHEEREE(E)
2021
ODM  Bare battery
business  cell business Total
ODME 5 BINER HEr
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT ARETFT ARETT
Segment assets DEEE 5,276,332 204,500 5,480,832
Unallocated corporate assets RAOMAREE
— Property, plant and equipment —ZE - BB RF 231,156
— Investment properties — BB 50,995
- Bank balances and cash —RITEBREE S 6,410
— Prepayments, deposits and —TERRIE - ek
other receivables HAth EUFRIA 380
— Amounts due from related parties — FEUR A E A+ /18 14,025
— Others —Hth 2,833
Consolidated total assets IREBEERSE 5,578,631
Segment liabilities NI aE 4,380,408 126,273 4,506,681
Unallocated corporate liabilities KRB ABIAE
— Other payables — H fth pE T 5R18 3,164
— Amounts due to directors —ERESHE 34
— Amounts due to related parties — FESRAZE A 5018 1,686
— Deferred tax liabilities —REFIERE 5,360
— Others —HAth 322
Consolidated total liabilities R AEEE 4,517,247
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.
(Continued)

EERE D IBER @)

Hitb &

(c) Other information (c)

2022
ODM Bare battery

business cell business Others Total
ODMEH  BLEE At @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AR%Tn ARETR ARETR
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥ BERSGENE 99,506 3,804 63 103,373
Depreciation of investment properties REMENE - - 5,073 5,073
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 2,003 4,617 324 6,944
Interest on lease liabilities REARTE 964 1,010 26 2,000
Write-off of property, plant and equipment nE - BERSENE 3,706 63 - 3,769
Amortisation of intangible assets EF B EEH 2,218 18 - 2,236

Impairment loss on trade and note receivables, net ENESHEREYEE 2 AE
EEER 6,110 1438 - 7,548

Impairment loss/(reversal of impairment loss) on BNFE B REMERHR

prepayments, deposits and other receivables, net BEZREEE/ (REBRER)FE 6,576 (956) - 5,620
Write-off of inventories FEMH 3,747 - - 3,747
Impairment loss on inventories FERESS - 54 - 54
Research and development costs HEEA 120,302 7172 - 128,074
Income tax expense SRS 5,471 694 671 6,836
Additions to property, plant and equipment W% BERRERE 74,797 6,391 - 81,188
Additions to intangible assets B EENE 1,886 - - 1,886
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. %K S9IPER )

(Continued)
(c) Other information (Continued) () HtERE)
2021
ODM  Bare battery

business  cell business Others Total
ODMEH BUER Hify st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARETR
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment NE  BELRENE 72,238 4,407 27 76,672
Depreciation of investment properties REMERE - = 5,073 5,073
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 4,501 4,698 312 9,511
Interest on lease liabilities HEREFE 1,343 1,306 74 2723
Write-off of property, plant and equipment UEN TS 3,563 263 - 3,826
Amortisation of intangible assets B BERHE 1,823 19 - 1,842

(Reversal of impairment loss)/impairment loss on trade and JEINE 5708 RENZE (RERSBER)
note receivables, net /REFEFE (4,466) 2,670 = (1,79)

Reversal of impairment loss on prepayments, deposits and AR ZU8 « s R E 1 ERFE

other receivables, net HEBRARFE (1,797) (1,350) = (3,147)
Write-off of inventories HFEME 1,929 = = 1,929
Research and development costs iS¢ 182,592 8,585 - 191,177
Income tax expense/(credit) FEhE%/(E4) 24,821 (169) 1,285 25,937
Additions to property, plant and equipment W% BERRENE 181,833 4,675 - 186,508
Additions to intangible assets B EERE 3,116 = = 3,116
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.
(Continued)

EERE D IBER @)

(d) TEEMZEXE

(d) Turnover from major products

The Group’s disaggregated turnover from its major products

were as follows:

REAREEETBRERIDBEXEMT

2022 2021
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARET T
(re-presented)
(&E=7))
(a) Turnover recognised at a point in  (a) RE— BN L ¥ ¢
time:
ODM business: ODME7 :
Mobile phone batteries FiETH 4,831,644 5,768,258
Tablet batteries FIRE A 556,494 406,308
Notebook batteries SERAEM 246,317 152,946
Power banks BEER 273,634 314,363
Others batteries HEMEM 38,539 18,206
Others Hih 78,128 32,773
ODM business ODMET 6,024,756 6,692,854
Bare battery cell business: BN
Lithium-ion bare battery cells SBEEFE 140,232 180,658
Others Hith 165,760 183,185
6,330,748 7,056,697
(b) Turnover recognised over time: (b) E—BRIFEARERNEEE !
Processing income T A 22,089 30,258
(c) Revenue from other sources: (c) HbRFEER WS
Rental income HEWA 6,389 4,689
Total turnover PR 6,359,226 7,091,644
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.
(Continued)

EEEE D EHBER @)

(e) HHEER
AEEWESF| BB T HE D NAEE
EEBREEDTURAEE G E D FFH
HEREERAEME  BERRERET
BEMEEEIT  RAREBRZEMN

(e) Geographical information

Analysis of the Group’s turnover and results as well as
analysis of the Group’s carrying amount of each relevant
segment’s assets and additions to property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets by geographical market

have not been presented as they are substantially generated

from or situated in the PRC.

Turnover contributed by the subsidiary in India was minimal

to the Group's turnover.

HBIEAS I

EEMEA BB S LY AL

EEMEMTIRE -

(f) Information about major customers (f) EEEFEH
Revenue from major customers, each of them accounted for REFERFPZHE(BEESHAEER
10% or more of the Group's revenue, are set out below: = 10% 3 A E) &I T -
2022 2021
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARBT T
Customer A ZEA 1,669,254 1,439,425
Customer B ZF5B 907,521 1,062,057
Customer C BEC 928,671 918,686
Customer D ZFD 825,381 887,485
7. OTHER REVENUE 7. Hiblhz
2022 2021
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBT R AREETTT
Gain on acquisition of financial assets at BERATESARMEERGEN SR
FVTOCI (Note 23) & 2 W (fsE23) 17,618 =
Government grants B2 16,527 34,661
Interest income 2 U A 12,798 10,794
Sales of moulds SHEEA 5,128 6,793
Compensation from suppliers HEEE 286 374
Sundry income I A 6,236 3,408
58,593 56,030
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F12H31H IFF/Z

7.

The government grants represent subsidies received from the PRC
Government to appreciate the industrial contribution to the city,
substantial amount of export trade and technology development
incurred by the Company’s wholly-owned PRC-based subsidiaries.
There are no unfulfilled conditions relating to the grants.

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

This is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Hilss o)

BRT 2 B35 & o BB AT IR B 2 W B - AR
AEZHERENBA SR L
B ABHOBSREMED - ZZBAY

EAEMARRE AR BRI ©
BR P15 81 Al g A
BBk (GEA) THIEER
2022 2021
RMB'000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARBT T

Auditor’s remuneration:
— audit service
— review service
— other service
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (including depreciation
recorded in research and development
costs of RMB2,574,000
(2021: RMB3,726,000))
Depreciation of investment properties
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses
Cost of processing income
Operating lease rentals for office premises
Research and development costs
Staff costs (including staff costs recorded
in research and development costs of
RMB61,096,000 (2021: RMB105,554,000))
(Note 10)

Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss

ZEES
— % EURT
— EBR
— H AR

M - BWEMERETE
(BIET AT R A
PTEARK2,574,0007T

(20214 : AR¥3,726,0007T))

REWEFE
EREEENE

B EESH
ERARAXZFERA
MMTHAZ AR
WAEKLEEERS
MEER

BTRA(BETAREERANET
BN AR #61,096,0007T (20214 :

AR #105,554,0007T) )
(Ff5E10)
BN (es),  BERFE

1,467 1,410
259 249

- 255
103,373 76,672
5,073 5,073
6,944 9,511
2,236 1,842
5,883,883 6,554,586
18,636 22,372
19,370 18,680
128,074 191,177
500,865 543,580
(19,504) 5,746
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9. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

9. HMKERMX

2022 2021
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T R AREFIT
Write-off of inventories FEMsE 3,747 1,929
Write-off of property, plant and equipment  #72 - &&= N E A 3,769 3,826
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  BEMREER
equipment 74 672
Sundry expenses MIER S 476 1,749
8,066 8,176
10. STAFF COSTS 10. E TR A
2022 2021
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR¥TR AREEF T
Directors’ remuneration (Note 11) EES (1) 3,272 3,303
Other staff costs HAh 8 TR 463,372 489,493
Retirement benefits scheme contributions — E/EFsHEI ¢ 34,221 50,784
500,865 543,580
11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION 11. EE X {& & % M

(a)

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section 383
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) and

BEESREEH(F622F ) 5E3831& &
AAI(HBEEEFEER) B H(FE622G

(a)

the Companies (Disclosure of information about Benefits of B)RENESHMT -
Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) is as follows:
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT AREETIT
Salaries, housing allowances, other N - BEIEEE - HaEeh K
allowances and benefits in kind EYEF 1,388 1,375
Fees e 1,856 1,902
Other emoluments: Hu s :
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIRERET B TR 28 26
3,272 3,303
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F12H31H IFF/Z

Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the directors (b)

are as follows:

M.EEREEFHFMHN 2

AEBRESINOMEFBNT

2022
Salaries,
housing
allowances,
other Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits scheme Total
in kind Fees contributions emoluments
E
BE - Hit
BER RIER
BYEN ne sHEIfR e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTR AR®BTRT AR®TxR
Feng Ming Zhu AT 644 196 14 854
Lian Xiu Qin BEE 744 196 14 954
Hou Li (term of appointment &3 ({EEA7 202245 A27H
expired on 27 May 2022) @) - 65 - 65
Loke Yu BEG AR - 466 - 466
Heng Ja Wei Victor TP 4 - 311 - 311
Lam Yau Yiu R - 311 - 311
Cheung Wai Kwok Gary KA - 311 - 311
1,388 1,856 28 3,272
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11. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES’' REMUNERATION 11.EEREEHFM =)
(Continued)

(b) Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the directors (b) AEBRESIZNMMESFBENT (&)
are as follows: (Continued)

2021
Salaries,
housing
allowances,
other Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits in scheme Total
kind Fees contributions emoluments
M - BE
A At
R RIER
EWEH He TR B a8
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETE ARETE ARBTTL ARETT

Feng Ming Zhu itk 638 199 13 850
Lian Xiu Qin BAE 737 199 13 949
Hou Li 3V = 160 - 160
Loke Yu B M - 447 - 447
Heng Ja Wei Victor T % - 299 - 299
Lam Yau Yiu WRIR - 299 - 299
Cheung Wai Kwok Gary RAR - 299 - 299

1,375 1,902 26 3,303
During both years, none of the directors have received any REEFERN  BESFWIIREERZ R
bonus payments paid by the Group. R E(A S o
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION
(Continued)

(c) The five highest paid individuals include two directors for
the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: two), details of
whose emoluments are set out above.

The emoluments of the remaining three (2021: three) non-

A IR E

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F12H31H IFF/Z

M.EEREEFHFMHN 2

(0 #HZE2022F1N2A3BILEFE AEES
AT BIEREZ (20216 : MEB)ES -
HEM S FFBERN £ »

HB=ZQ021F : =R)kEE555 M

director highest paid individuals are as follows: ATBET :
2022 2021
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥ET ARET T
Salaries, housing allowances, other e - BE2EL - HAbERL
allowances and benefits in kind KEYEF 3,451 3,172
Retirement benefits scheme RIREFIET B HEEX
contributions 45 43
3,496 3,215

The emoluments of the remaining non-director, highest

HEHBFFEERSFTMA LMD FIAT

paid individuals are within the following bands: #HE
2022 2021

Nil to RMB829,300 (equivalent to Nil ~ Z&E A R#829,3007 T (HHENEE

to HK$1,000,000) 1,000,000/ 7T) 2 2
RMB829,301 to RMB 1,658,600 AR#829,301E AR 1,658,6007T

(equivalent to HK$1,000,001 to (FBE 1,000,001 L=

HK$2,000,000) 2,000,000/ 7T) - =
RMB1,658,601 to RMB2,073,250 AER#1,658,601 L& AREE2,073,250

(equivalent to HK$2,000,001 to JC(HBE 72,000,001 T E

HK$2,500,000) 2,500,000/%5T) 1 1

(d) During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the five highest paid individuals (including both directors and
employees) or any directors of the Company as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office. None of the directors has waived or agreed to waive
any emoluments during both years.

(d PMEFEAR ARERERALERH
AT(BREENER)AARAENES
S ERME - FRRIIMARKEZLN
AR B 2R - RERRERAOMEE -
RS NI BB EWERFBRES
A
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12.

13.

142

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCE COSTS 12. ME KA
2022 2021
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T AREEF T
Interest on bank borrowings RITIE RAIE 61,423 58,530
Interest on discounted notes receivable BHIR R =R R B 18,249 32,327
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 18) HEB GRS (FFE18) 2,000 2,723
81,672 93,580
Less: Capitalisation of borrowing costs B BRI AE AR (3,890) (16,055)
77,782 77,525

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the specific
and general borrowing pool and are calculated by applying a
weighted average capitalisation rate of 7.3% (2021: 5.6%) to
expenditure on construction in progress.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

No provision for income tax has been made by the Company
as it is not subject to tax in the Cayman Islands or other
jurisdictions save for the PRC where it conducts its principal
business operations.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group's profits were neither arising in nor derived from Hong
Kong during both years, and all subsidiaries incorporated in
Hong Kong incurred losses during the current and prior years.

Provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax is calculated based on
the estimated taxable income for PRC taxation purposes at the
rate of taxation applicable for the year.

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, the subsidiaries
of the Group that established in the PRC are subject to PRC
Enterprise Income Tax rate at 25%. Subsidiaries established in
the PRC which are qualified as an Advance and New Technology
Enterprise (“ANTE”) for a 3-year period are entitled to a
concessionary Enterprise Income Tax rate of 15%, subject to the
fulfilment of certain conditions on yearly basis during the 3-year
period.

13.

FRENME 2 ERRAREERITE N —RER
EeWHEZTRABBESIEAMNEFLSGER
{62 7.3%(20214F : 5.6%)5t& -

PR iR

HRBRRPBETEERTEZS  ARRE
FHMFEFEREMREERNBTIE - BA
NA A PSR o

MREMFAREEGENEEREBEL -
MIEREEE - MAAAREB MK E
ARERAFERBEFEERGSER MUY
ERBFBNEVIEL R -

hEGEMASHBEIREREBEFEEERY
RERBEBIEA SN G ERTBRAMGE -

RIBRBDEPSHOE - AEBET BRI AOHE
NEVBIZE B EATIS T R 25% 4 © £ B
VWA BRERSI=FNEHEME R S
i DEMB AR AERZA15%MERMEHE
BhER - WEARNZ=FEReFRRE TR -
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13.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 13. FREBiR X (#)
On 22 December 2022, Dongguan Hongde was approved to 2022128228 © B = B = O & &
continue as an ANTE for a period of 3 years and the certificate ARETBNtE RH=F BERNA
number is GR202244005132. It is subject to income tax at 15% GR202244005132 ° E 1215%H) B % 4 4% 48 J&
accordingly. FRESD
Details of the income tax expense/(credit) in the consolidated ARG IEE R EMEE KSR OTEHF
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income are X/ (B R)FFBT -
as follows:
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETFT
Current tax — PRC BIEAREE — P B
Enterprise Income Tax: T
- Tax for the year — REEFIE 682 1,696
— (Over provision)/under provision in prior years — —:@FFE (BEEEE) BETE (506) 1,148
Deferred tax — current year (Note 31) RIERIE — ANFZ (FHFE31) 6,660 23,093
Income tax expense FrisfiF X 6,836 25,937
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z20224F 12431 H 1L F/Z
13.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The reconciliation between profit before income tax and income
tax expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income is as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. TB8BiBE @)

iR A B K E A 2 s R R AT AS A B A
HFTSHAX 2 HIRNT

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT
Profit before income tax B P45 B A& 7 26,902 64,498
Tax at tax rates applicable in the relevant REAMNMEE R EEEB RTE
jurisdictions KA1 6,966 17,117
Tax effect of revenue not taxable for tax purposes 78 &i U A B 76 22 28 (891) =
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax AR H B IS 28
purposes 19,403 8,823
Deduction of research and development costs IR & B (31,673) (47,134)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERTRIBERENREZE 8,206 6,797
Tax effect of temporary difference not recognised 7 fife S i if |t 2 ZE IO R 7 S 28 6,060 38,824
Utilisation of tax losses not previously recognised — &h @7 R R 2 FiIEE 12 (730) =
(Over)/under provision in prior years BEFEGRERE) BET R (506) 1,148
Effect of concessionary rate granted to B REBARERHELN
the PRC subsidiaries 24 7 240
Others HAtb (6) 122
Income tax expense FrisFif X 6,836 25,937

14. DIVIDENDS

No dividend was declared for the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021.
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15. EARNINGS PER SHARE 15. BIREF
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share RRREB AR TRER R EE B AR A
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the TEEE -

following data:

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARETT

Profit for the purposes of basic and diluted AR ESRERREERFH
earnings per share (profit for the year wmA (KR RER ARIERFE
attributable to the owners of the Company) pialb) 24,038 42,182

Number of ordinary shares

ZERHAE
2022 2021
‘000 ‘000
FR T
Weighted average number of ordinary shares R EHE &A% EL AN &2 #55 B A 19
for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings @A NIEEFHE
per share 1,090,001 1,090,001
Diluted earnings per share is of the same amount as the basic FREERNSEEGRERNZFNER B
earnings per share as there were no potential dilutive ordinary R2022F 12 A3 BV EBE#HENEEITE R

shares outstanding as at 31 December 2022 (2021: same). % (20214 : }[A)
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

146

16. 1% - BERRE

Electronic
equipment,
Plant and Motor furniture  Construction  Leasehold
Building  machinery vehicles ~ and fixtures in progress improvements Total
ESE R HE
Be HERHR AE BAREE ERIR E2 &3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL  ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Cost S
1 January 2021 0151518 5183 476,17 9,766 63,909 457,528 70,784 1,083,387
Additions AE - 119818 328 12,103 53,190 538 185,977
Disposals it - (21,369) (392) (1912) - = 23673)
Written off it - (10,403) (118) (4,402) - - (14.923)
Exchange realignment B AR - (458) = = - = (458)
31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 20215124318 k202251 A1A 433,335 563,729 9,584 69,774 16,987 136,901 1,230,310
Additions AE 30 53,073 19 391 20473 3,672 81,188
Disposals e (%) (30542) - (1,000 - - (32,037)
Written off it - (12,720) = (7,459) = - (20,179)
Exchange realignment i AR - 1335 - - - - 1335
31 December 2022 20225128318 432,870 574,875 9,603 65,236 37,460 140573 1,260,617
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE
1 January 2021 201F1518 233 234,545 6,301 50,516 - 69,524 361,119
Charge for the year REERR 2,561 61,186 865 8,837 - 323 76,672
Disposals HE - (9253) (368) (1571) - - (11.192)
Written off s - (6,861) (112) (4,124) - - (11,097)
Exchange realignment B AR - (81) = = - = (81)
31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 20215124318 k202251 1A 2,79 279,536 6,686 53,658 - 12,741 415,421
Charge for the year TEERY 13,002 68,325 906 7,609 - 13,531 103373
Disposals it (15 (16,704 - (740) - - (17,459)
Written off s - (9,381) - 7009) - - (16,410)
Exchange realignment B AR - 33 - - - - 33
31 December 2022 20225128318 15,781 322,09 1,592 53,498 - 86,278 485,48
Net book value BEEE
31 December 2022 20225128318 417,089 252,776 2,011 11,738 37,460 54,295 775,369
31 December 2021 2021512831H 430,541 284,193 2,898 16,116 16,987 64,154 814,889
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F12H31H IFF/Z

16.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16.Y¥ - MENRSZE 2
(Continued)
As at 31 December 2022, plant and machinery with a carrying 20224612 A31H » BREE & A K #212,0007T
amount of RMB212,000 (2021: RMB286,000) has been pledged (20214 : AR%5286,0007T0) RS K423 B 1E A
to a landlord as collaterals for electricity expenses payable (Note FEITE BRI T2 = (M 5525) -
25).
As at 31 December 2022, building with a carrying amount 720224128318 - BRE A & A R 412,421,000
of RMB412,421,000 (2021: RMB428,152,000) and plant and T0(20214F = A R #428,152,0007T ) M) £ =F &
machinery with a carrying amount of RMB13,982,000 (2021: R 18 A A R #13,982,000C(20214F « AR #
RMB23,170,000) have been pledged by the Group in favour of a 23,170,0007T.) KI5 Me e 28 B 4 A S B TR
bank to secure a bank loan granted by a bank to the Group (Notes 17 - DAEBSRITE T AR 2 RITER (25 %
25 and 29). 29) °
As at 31 December 2022, construction in progress with a 20224612 4318 + BREIE = A K #517,887,000
carrying amount of RMB17,887,000 (2021: RMB1,305,000) have J0(20214F + AFR¥E1,305,0007T) FUFEE TI2E 4%
been pledged by the Group in favour of the banks to secure AREBEEMTRT - UEBRITETAREE 2R
bank loans granted by the banks to the Group (Notes 25 and TER(M5E25%29) °
29).
17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. REY=
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Cost AR
1 January 2021, 31 December 2021 202151 H1H ~ 2021412H31H
and 31 December 2022 %2022 12A31H 106,797
Accumulated depreciation HHiTE
1 January 2021 20211818 50,729
Charge for the year REEFRX 5,073
31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 20219128318 &2022%1A1H 55,802
Charge for the year REERS 5,073
31 December 2022 2022412H31H 60,875
Net book value RERE
31 December 2022 2022%12AH31H 45,922
31 December 2021 2021412 A31H 50,995
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17.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The Group leased out certain formerly self-occupied buildings
located in the PRC under operating lease to Scud Stock, where
Mr. Fang Jin is the common controlling shareholder and has
beneficial interest. The fair value of the building at 31 December
2022 amounted to RMB74,231,000 (2021: RMB76,800,000).

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2022 and 31 December 2021 have been arrived at
on market value basis carried out by Ascent Partners Valuation
Service Limited, an independent valuer who holds a recognised
and relevant professional qualification and has recent experience
in the location and category of the investment property being
valued.

The fair value was determined based on the market comparison
approach by reference to recent sales price of comparable
properties on a price per square metre basis.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s investment properties
has been categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in IFRS 13 “Fair value measurement”. All of the fair
values of the investment properties as at 31 December 2022 and
2021 is a level 3 recurring fair value measurement, which uses
significant unobservable inputs in arriving at fair value. During
the year ended 31 December 2022, there were no transfers
between level 1 and level 2, or transfers into or out of level 3
(2021: no).

17. REWE #)

AEBREBLEERERE TURTREMNLIB
HEFLEFRERRD @ FEAERZAR]
ZHBEEBRBRRIES BEmiEsm o R20229F
12A31AEFZAFEAARKT74,231,0007T
(20214 : AR¥76,800,0007T) °

7202212 8318 &%2021F12A831H + AEE
ZIREWMEZ A FETDREBEN AT EZAER
RA(FHERAIRMEAETEER - WHEESAE
ZIE RZBRREME 2 HELR 2 BIGE
BT 2 A EEMEEEE -

RFEDRBTISLEELETNE LR EN
AT EERIR T F K ERERE -

REBZREYENR T ET 2B IRBER T

ERAEI3R AT EFEIFMRENATFE
B = {6 JZ A H EIE D 28 o 120224 k20214
NANBZAEBEREMEZ A TEBE=RK
BURATEFE  EATFEERTEATAE
R7ZBASLHEMEE - BZE2022F12A318 1k
FE - AFEFEVERFINRRE2R 2 HE
B ISR A SR L E3R (20216 ) -
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17.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Details of the Group’s investment properties and information
about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2022 are as
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17. REWH =)

R20229F 128318 » BEEAAEBREMERR
FEERER ZFBUOT

follows:
Carrying Fair
value at value at
31 December 31 December
2022 2022
S i
20224 20224
12A31H 12A31H
ZBREE ZRVE
Fair value hierarchy RMB’000 RMB'000
NP EER AR¥TT AR¥T T
Buildings located in the PRC Level 3 45,922 74,231
SRR ERET B

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-
line basis at the following rate per annum:

Buildings Over the remaining lease term of the land

As at 31 December 2022, investment properties with a carrying
amount of RMB45,922,000 (2021: RMB50,995,000) have been
pledged by the Group in favour of the banks to secure bank
loans granted by the banks to the Group (Notes 25 and 29).

B EMENEREILA T FRFE -

BF TR TR

M2022612A318 » BREE R AR #45,922,000
JE(20214F © AR#50,995,00070 ) I E W ED
AASEEFTIRT - UWERETETAEEH
ZIRITER(MEE25%29) °
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LEASES

The Group has lease contracts for various items of leasehold land
held under operating lease, factory, office and staff dormitory
used in its operations. Lump sum payments were made upfront
to acquire the leased land from the owners with lease periods
over the lease term, and no ongoing payments will be made
under the terms of these land leases. Leases of factory, office
and staff dormitory generally have lease terms between 1 to
5 years (2021: between 1 to 5 years). Generally, the Group is
restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside
the Group.

(@) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amount of the Group’s right-of-use assets and
the movements during the year are as follows:

18. HE

REERELEPMEANSEHRBREEHEE
HEMNBEELTH I HAEREIBEER
EHEAH - AEEE — X MHBENZERE -
ERBERAESGRFIAAESHRAES AEEHE
B4 - BT EIREZE T HEENETRE
BRF I MAERBEIFEHE—RE
1E5FFHER(20214F 1 1856 ) - — KM=
AEENMSEAEEUINEEREHRAEEE -

(a) EFHEEE
AEHEEREEENREERNFANE
BT

Factory, office

and staff
Leasehold land dormitory Total
IR PAER
HELT BIEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR®T AR%T T
1 January 2021 20211 818 9,143 28,946 38,089
Additions NE - 5,209 5,209
Charge for the year FARZ (258) (9,253) (9,511)
Leases terminated during the — FRKIFTAE

year - (3,436) (3,436)
Exchange realignment Rk - (69) (69)
31 December 2021 and 2021128318 &

1 January 2022 20221 R1H 8,885 21,397 30,282
Additions B - 978 978
Charge for the year FARX (253) (6,691) (6,944)
Disposal (Note 23) & (i EE23) (2,292) = (2,292)
Leases terminated during the FRRILEE

year - (142) (142)
Exchange realignment [E 5% - 329 329
31 December 2022 2022412 A31H 6,340 15,871 22,211

As at 31 December 2022, leasehold land with a carrying
amount of RMB6,340,000 (2021: RMB8,885,000) have
been pledged by the Group in favour of the banks to
secure bank loans granted by the banks to the Group (Notes
25 and 29).

M2022F12A318 EEEAARK
6,340,0007T(20214F : A IR #8,885,000
TOMBAEL I EWAEEEF TR
17 UBRERITIR F AR EMRITE R ER
A (PffzE25829) °



18. LEASES (Continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements

during the year are as follows:

L L]
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18. A& »#)

(b) HEAE

HERBENREERRFANZESHOT

RMB’000

ARET

At 1 January 2021 R2021F1H1H 31,336
Additions INE 5,209
Interest expense (Note 12) B (MEE12) 2,723
Lease payments THERRK (11,126)
Leases terminated during the year FARKLIEHEE (5,026)
Exchange realignment bE 5, A B (90)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 720219128318 K20221A81H 23,026
Additions NE 978
Interest expense (Note 12) FERZ (MEE12) 2,000
Lease payments HEH (8,551)
Leases terminated during the year FRRIEHEE (124)
Exchange realignment bE H AR 413
At 31 December 2022 2022912 A31H 17,742

Future lease payments are due as follows:

REREEMNRRAT BRI

31 December 2022
20225128318

Total Interest of the Present value

minimum lease  minimum lease of the minimum

payments payments lease payments

BRIEHEE RIEHEE RIEHEE

TR HRZFE RRZBRE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMEF T ARMET T AR®T

Within one year —FR 8,338 1,320 7,018
More than one year but not —F A FETBAME

exceeding two years 6,911 600 6,311
More than two years but not WM& HETBBHSE

exceeding five years 4,524 1 4,413

Total st 19,773 2,031 17,742
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18. LEASES (continued) 18. A& »#)
(b) Lease liabilities (Continued) (b) HEEE (&)

31 December 2021
20215128318

Total Interest of the Present value of
minimum lease minimum lease the minimum lease
payments payments payments
RIEEE REEE REEE
(EEt R ZFE N B E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARETT ARBFT
Within one year —FR 8,350 1,914 6,436
More than one year but not —FA L ENBBMRE
exceeding two years 7,809 1,216 6,593
More than two years but not —~ M EETBBRF
exceeding five years 10,653 656 9,997
Total Bt 26,812 3,786 23,026
The Group leases its investment properties as disclosed in Note AEBERBECEHERHFHEEMRT17MEER
17 consisting of a factory building and a warehouse building MEEME  BREMARPEN—ERE Kk —iE
in PRC under operating lease arrangement. Rental income BE - AEERNFAERHESKRABARE
recognised by the Group during the year was RMB6,389,000 6,389,0007L(20214F : AR¥4,689,0007T) ©
(2021: RMB4,689,000).
At 31 December 2022, the undiscounted lease payments 2022612 A318 » NEE R KRR R % E
receivable by the Group in future period under non-cancellable AEM TR HEEE B ERBCRITRAER K
operating lease with its tenants are as follow: m
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Within one year —FE R 3,937 4,689
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. B EE
Software
B4
RMB’000
AREF T
Cost 2%
1 January 2021 20211 A1H 16,126
Additions INE 3,116
31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 2021612H831HK2022F1H1H 19,242
Additions NE 1,886
31 December 2022 20225%12H31H 21,128
Amortisation and impairment B RRE
1 January 2021 20211818 12,858
Charge for the year REERZ 1,842
31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 20216128318 K2022F1H1H 14,700
Charge for the year REERZ 2,236
31 December 2022 2022412H31H 16,936
Net book value IREFE
31 December 2022 2022%12H31H 4,192
31 December 2021 20214F12A8318 4,542
Note: KizE -
i) The amortisation charge recognised for the year is included N AREE E@E\J%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ)\ﬁé?ﬁ?ﬁ&
in “Administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement HAt 2 E R R THES AT

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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20. INVENTORIES 20. B8

2022 2021
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AREEF T
Raw materials R 398,091 188,675
Work in progress e 162,975 116,857
Finished goods UK 226,210 247,513
787,276 553,045
At 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of inventories 72022612 A318 » RN R A # ) FER
carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value amounted EE3 R FENRAEAARKT787,276,000
to RMB787,276,000 (2021: RMB553,045,000), after provision J0(20214F : AR %553,045,000) * €+ B2
for impairment of RMB1,506,000 (2021: RMB1,452,000). During Bk IRE B A R 1,506,0007T(20214F © A
the year, impairment loss of inventories of RMB54,000 (2021: R #¥1,452,000) - FRN - TEREEEAR
RMB Nil) and a write-off of inventories of RMB3,747,000 (2021: #554,0007C(20214F « ARBEZ L) RIFEM S
RMB1,929,000) were recognised in consolidated statement of AR#¥3,747,00070 (20214 « AK%1,929,000

profit or loss. TL)EREABRRER °

21. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES 2. EWESREREVREE

2022 2021
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AREEF T
Trade receivables JEUWE 5 5KE 2,023,905 2,483,986
Notes receivables R E 41,182 113,997
2,065,087 2,597,983
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts ¥ : FIZEE& (101,290) (93,742)
1,963,797 2,504,241
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An aged analysis of trade and notes receivables at the end of

the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of

allowance, is as follows:
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21. ERESZRERERERE#)

REHZR  EHRBEBERNEESARNERK
A NERERNREONAT

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®TR ARETT

0 to 60 days 0%60H 1,305,297 1,784,758
61 to 180 days 612180H 652,905 698,869
181 to 365 days 181&365H 5,595 20,614
1,963,797 2,504,241

The average credit period granted on sale of goods ranged from

60 to 90 days.

RTHEERNFHEEESRNF60E0R -

Movements in allowance for bad and doubtful debts during the FARZREBHNEZHIOT -
year were as follows:
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AREF T
1 January 1A18 93,742 95,549
Written off b - (11)
Impairment losses recognised BERRREEE 19,490 6,892
Reversal of impairment losses previously BARERZBEEERRD
recognised (11,942) (8,688)
31 December 12A31H 101,290 93,742
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21. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continved) 21. EWWE S ZIER EWEE )

The aged analysis of the trade and notes receivables that are BHIEI A RENEKRE FRENREREEY
past due but not impaired is as follows: BREC DAL T -

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TR ARBT T

Less than 6 months past due BERN B 7~ A 181,204 129,226
Over 6 months past due B HEANE A LA E 4,058 8,700

185,262 137,926
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a MEEVRRENEERERZEZBEYR,E
number of independent customers that have a good track record B MESEEREEERFHNEEDE - RIE
with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the A& ARRESRREREERERNR
Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment BERNE - MEMRBEITEN 2SO - 11
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been H R EHREEITRERE -

a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.

Notes receivables are stated at FVTOCI. The directors are of FEM IR Ty iR A FERT A H A 2 E Wz AR o
the opinion that the carrying amounts of notes receivables EERARERERZREERKE 2 AT EME
approximate to their fair value. o
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22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 22. FafZ1E - & R E i fEYEIE

RECEIVABLES
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREF T
Advance to suppliers ] FE R AR 197,622 134,215
VAT recoverable AR O] G (E T 18,251 19,669
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, BEYE  BELRENE MRS
plant and equipment 5,815 5,089
Refundable deposits AR EES 31,494 34,869
Others Hith 23,868 17,108
277,050 210,950
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts & : RIZEREE (10,392) (4,772)
Total Bz 266,658 206,178
Less: Current portion W mENEL S (235,469) (171,507)
Non-current portion EREE D 31,189 34,671
Movements in allowance for bad and doubtful debts during the FARBRBENESOT -
year were as follows:
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREFT
1 January 1HA18 4,772 7,919
Impairment losses recognised ERERBERE 6,948 1,162
Reversal of impairment losses BAERZBEEERD
previously recognised (1,328) (4,309)
31 December 12A31H 10,392 4,772
None of the above assets is past due. The financial assets A EBEWFEE - L FEsbhaiERSTE
included in the above balances relate to receivables for which A B BT HAND 4 B 4 ER AR FE IR ERIE o

there was no recent history of default.
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ITVAAY

23.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23.BAFEHFAEM#ZEKZEMNS

158

THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

MEE

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFT
Non-current FERE
Equity investment designated at FVTOCI EEAEATETAEMEEKZER
(Note) Pt & (B aE) 20,940 =
Note: MisE -

On 7 November 2022, Scud Battery, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an investment
agreement (the “Investment Agreement”) with Fujian Scud
Power Technology Co., Ltd. (the “Target Company”), a related
company of the Company as disclosed in Note 37(a), pursuant to
which Scud Battery has conditionally agreed to acquire, and the
Target Company has conditionally agreed to allot and issue to
Scud Battery, 5.68% of equity interest in the Target Company,
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Investment
Agreement.

Below is summary accounting impact at initial recognition of the
transaction:

202211878 » REBEM(A D RIEES
EHBAR) BEERERD NEEERAA
([BEZERA]]) » —ERKE37()FEA AR QR
ZBEERR IR EHHE(EERR]) &
It REBEHEEGHREWE  MEZEAFA
BIEHERERBREBROGEREIGERRE
BRE AL EE R 31T B R A F)5.68% HIARHE -

UTRERERRIRNGTHEME

RMB’000
AREFIT
Fair value of consideration REATE 20,940
Less: carrying amount of right-of-use assets & : & & EREA (M FE18(a))
(Note 18(a)) (2,292)
Less: other taxes and surcharge of the B RS E A BT K T i A
transaction (1,030)
Gain on acquisition of financial assets at BERATESARLMEAREN S/ E E 2 W (MFE7)
FVTOCI (Note 7) 17,618




23.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (continued)

The movements in fair value of equity investment classified as
level 3 in the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED

BEERBERAHE
ANNUAL REPORT & 3§ 2022
[/

L ]

A IR E

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F12H31H IFF/Z

. BAFEFAHMZEARENS
MEE @)

DERATEBREIRORBERE 2 AT EE
FIE -

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AEBTT

Addition and 31 December NENMI12A31H

20,940 =

As at 31 December 2022, the fair value of equity investment
classified as level 3 is calculated using discounted cash flow
approach with the following key assumptions:

Re-levered beta 1.96
Company specific risk premium 2.00%
Market risk premium 7.12%
Risk-free interest rate 3.93%

A higher in any of the above parameters would result in a
decrease in the fair value of equity investment, and vice versa.

MR2022% 128318 © D AEFEIRHRIERE
AFEDEBITRB S REATE - WHHMN
TRIBRRRAK

R R TR KB 1.96
10345 T R S B = 2.00%
5 E A 7.12%
41 [ fp 1) = 3.93%

B E—2BUE M S BURERE R FER
Do RZIRA -
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24, AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO RELATED

PARTIES

The amounts due from/to related parties are unsecured, interest-

free and repayable on demand.

The information disclosed pursuant to Section 383 of the Hong

24. B BB A T RE

U/ NEBALTHRBAREBER 280E
BWEREE -

BIEES R TGN (5622F ) H383EBREN

Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622) is as follows: BRI
Maximum Balance at Balance at
amount 31 December 31 December
outstanding 2022 2021
during the year 1420225 M20214F
FR&E 12A31A8 12A31H
RETH ML ER K45 ER
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T AREFT
Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd. BERERKRNDER AR
(Note i) iEa), 49,063 49,063 2,410
EBTEB New Energy Technology SEEFERRHR AR AR
Co., Ltd. (Note ii) (B i) 63,819 61,278 63,819
Fujian Scud Technology Co., Ltd. REREREE AR AR
(Note i) (g 65 38 65
Scud Communication Technology TREBRBAMAR AR
Co., Ltd. (Note i) (B &ED) 12,428 12,428 12,428
Fujian Scud Power Technology Co., 1BERERBHRIZARAT
Ltd. (Note ii) (Pl i) 6,811 6,811 -
129,618 78,722
Notes: BT
(i) Its director and shareholder, Mr. Fang Jin, is also the (i) EHEEFEEBREFSELENABRRNGZIER

R
HEERTEREZTF o

controlling shareholder of the Company.

(i) Its director is the son of Mr. Fang Jin. (ii)
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25.

26.

(=

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets have
been pledged by the Group in favour of the banks as guarantees
for the issuance of bank accepted notes for payments to
suppliers, landlord as collaterals for electricity expenses payable
and pledged for bank and other loans:
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F12H31H IFF/Z

25. EEEHA

RBERR AEBEERATEERER TR
17 ERAHRERNRMELRTELER 2
BR - ERENEENERYERTEERE
REBIRIT R E A ERAY IR -

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Property, plant and equipment (Note 16)  ¥1% - = K&:&# (HE16) 444,502 452,913
Investment properties (Note 17) TEME(HFE17) 45,922 50,995
Leasehold land held under operating lease st AfFAEEEZ RIBKSHERE 2

included in right-of-use assets (Note 18) A&+ (FE18) 6,340 8,885
Bank deposits RITIFR 710,965 988,689
1,207,729 1,501,482

BANK BALANCES AND CASH 26. RITHEBRREAS

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity period of
three months or less.

The Chinese Renminbi (“RMB”) is not freely convertible into
other currencies, however, under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

RITEHR LA EEAEEFENR S RRE
IR A =18 A A TR BRIRIT 3K

ARBTARE DA ERLBEMBES
AT - R BISNE E R RDI R A IE - EE R
EEERTE  AREAEHRREETINEL
BMEBZRITREARE -
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27. TRADE AND NOTES PAYABLES

27. ENEZRERENRE

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBT T

Trade payables B S5IE 1,204,361 1,260,795
Notes payables AN ESE 1,408,769 1,857,285
2,613,130 3,118,080

An aged analysis of trade and notes payables at the end of the

RIBHRER - RIERRENE S HAREN

reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: SEHORE AT -
2022 2021
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR%T ARETT
0 to 60 days 0£60H 1,927,220 2,084,412
61 to 180 days 612180H 655,109 570,967
181 to 365 days 1812365H 12,229 404,914
More than 1 year but within 2 years —F LA L ERMER 5,475 2,764
More than 2 years but within 3 years MFEA EBR=FR 1,709 2,072
Over 3 years =FPE 11,388 52,951
2,613,130 3,118,080

Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for

trade purchases and ongoing costs. The average credit period

taken for trade purchases ranged from 30 to 90 days.
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28. OTHER PAYABLES, CONTRACT LIABILITIES 28 . BE{tifE{t%h1E - SV ABREES

AND ACCRUED CHARGES E5H
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREEF T
Contract liabilities BHEE 14,916 21,025
Payroll and welfare payables JFEAS S B & 1@ 34,254 34,039
Accrued expenses FERTRFAX 5,417 3,117
Payables for acquisition of property, plant ~ BEEW% KR &R EENZIE
and equipment 7,967 9,405
Other tax payables E At T IE 28,772 69,778
Others Hth 57,155 56,104
148,481 193,468
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT AREFT
Contract liabilities arising from: EEAUTREZED
afE -
Sale of lithium-ion battery modules and HERERNR TR L HSIEE
related accessories for mobile phones BFEmRER TS
and digital electronic appliances R4E I B BB 1 14,916 21,025

163



VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED

BUSERBRLDA

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2022

= Ak LS8 = _

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %2022 12 H31H IFF/Z

ITVAAY

28.

164

OTHER PAYABLES, CONTRACT LIABILITIES
AND ACCRUED CHARGES (continued)

The deposit which the Group receives on sale of lithium-ion
battery modules and related accessories for mobile phones and
digital electronic appliances remains as a contract liability until
it is recognised as revenue when control of goods is transferred
to the customers. Typical payment terms which impact on the
amount of contract liabilities are set out in Note 4(k).

28. Hitt B 7R » SN RERES

= 0::1C )

AEBEEHERARNFRRBBRETERN
PR T AR N A R (R B AT B R 2 AT
RAMAE  EEEVEFREBBEETFEH
REDL/RER/IL FEANEBESHE LK
AR RE T T 3T 4 (k) ©

Movements in contract liabilities EHEEET
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT AREEF T
Balance as at 1 January M1 A8z & 21,025 21,353
Decrease in contract liabilities as RAFEENERWRZNEVBIEE
a result of recognising revenue AHEBBERN)MERENEBERD
during the year that was included  (Ff{3¥6)
in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year (Note 6) (21,025) (21,353)
Increase in contract liabilities as a HESRZBEWREMERELHEE
result of receipts in advance on 0
sale of goods 14,916 21,025
Balance at 31 December W12 8318 2 &%k 14,916 21,025
Amount due to a shareholder of RMB160,000 (2021: FFARMENTIE  aNBERESERANE

RMB160,000), which is included in other payables, contract
liabilities and accrued charges, is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

< PR FIE A R #160,0007T (20214 - AR
#160,0007T) BEER - £ 8 RARERKEE
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29. B

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBT T
Bank loans (Note): RITER(FIRE)
Secured bank loans EIRIRRITER 1,186,538 1,174,984
Less: Amounts shown under current B RmEBABETNEYzE58
liabilities (879,442) (861,655)
Amounts shown under non-current EREBBENRY 225
liabilities 307,096 313,329
Notes: ihgE=s
(@) The terms of repayment of the bank loans are as follows: () SRITEFEBERFHMOT :
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AR®ET T
Current portion: MENE S
Within 1 year or on demand —FERNHRIFER 879,442 861,655
Non-current portion: ERENE S ¢
More than 1 year but not exceeding —F LA BT BB F
2 years 43,832 39,084
More than 2 years but not exceeding R4 HETBBEE
5 years 150,285 122,834
More than 5 years AEE 112,979 151,411
Total st 1,186,538 1,174,984

165



VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED

BUSERBRLDA

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2022

4 & B B & g -

A IR

N T /

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z20224F 12431 H 1L F/Z

29. BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(Continued)

The terms of repayment of the bank loans are as
follows:(Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, bank loans of approximately
RMB1,186,538 (2021: RMB1,174,984,000) were secured
by: (i) the Group’s property, plant and equipment
of RMB444,290,000 (2021: RMB452,627,000) (Note
16), investment properties and leasehold land with
aggregate carrying amount of RMB52,262,000 (2021:
RMB59,880,000) (Notes 17 and 18(a); or (ii) by personal
guarantee from the Company’s controlling shareholder,
Mr. Fang Jin, and the son of Mr. Fang Jin for certain bank
loans of the Group up to an amount of RMB993,889,000
(2021: RMB996,175,000); or (iii) corporate guarantee of the
companies within the Group (2021: same); or (iv) leasehold
land and building of a related company (2021: same); or (v)
corporate guarantee of a related company (2021: same).

The average effective interest rates per annum (which are
also equal to the contractual interest rates) on the Group’s
bank borrowings are as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. B

BT

(a)

(%)

RITERERFHNOT (&)

M2022F12A318 © 4 A K #1,186,5387C
(20214 : A R #51,174,984,0007T ) H $R 17
BERHNLTEEEER: (NEBARE
444,290,0007T(20214F = AR #452,627,000
TT)ZE - BEREREH ) A
B A R #52,262,0007C(20214F : A R#E
59,880,000t ) KI1% & ¥ % R A & 1 #b (P &
17%18(a)) ¢ BR(NARA AR R 5 & 54
A& ARENTTFRRAEERRESHER
=3 A R1#993,889,0007T (20214 : AR
996,175,0007T ) K& TR TE FNATIEE A #&
1R i ANEBAZRA B EREIR(2021
F 1R : v~ REEARMEE L&
EF(20214F : #RA) ; v —KEEL AR
PR (20214 - #HRE]) ©

AEBHRITERNFHBERFEN XN
HERELFE)IT :

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETT
Average effective interest rate on fixed- [& B &2 19 B F| =
rate borrowings 4.82% 4.79%

30. AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS

The amounts due to directors are unsecured, interest-free and
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31. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 31.ERERNELERESERAE

RECOGNISED
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised RERNELEETBERARERNELERIEE
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the B/ (BE)ERS D RESHINT

movements during the year are as follows:

Impairment loss Provision for Undistributed
on trade and write down to net profits of
other receivables  realisable value subsidiaries Tax loss Total
EREZHE
REMER HMAZT% HWEAR
REAERR AEERE KRR HEEE @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

1 January 2021 20211 A1H 81,575 150 (5,360) 46,726 123,091
(Charge)/credit to profit or loss }Ezsr (M%) /3t A
(Note 13) (P#13) (1,449) 49 - (21,693) (23,093)

31 December 2021 and 2021123318 R
1 January 2022 2022%1R18 80,126 199 (5,360) 25,033 99,998

Charge to profit or loss PEEP R
(Note 13) (Hi313) (5,860) (5) - (795) (6,660)

31 December 2022 2022%12A31H 74,266 194 (5,360) 24238 93,338
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31.

168

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
RECOGNISED (Continued)

For presentation purpose, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax
balances for financial reporting purposes:

B1.ERRANEERBEEEREE 2

REIME ETELEHAEERRBRERE
SHBIRARIEE - U T BRI B®RE M IEL
HRIE B IR AE R DA -

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET R ARBT T
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the RERE ISR R NER Z IR IER
consolidated statement of financial position HEEFE 98,698 105,358
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the RERE TSR R AR 2 BT
consolidated statement of financial position IHAaEFE (5,360) (5,360)
93,338 99,998

The Group has tax losses carry forwards amounting to
approximately RMB119,702,000 (2021: RMB133,559,000) which
relate to subsidiaries that have a history of losses and may not
be used to offset taxable income elsewhere in the Group. These
subsidiaries have no temporary taxable differences which could
partly support the recognition of deferred tax assets. Also, there
are no tax planning opportunities available that would further
provide a basis for recognition.

If the Group was able to recognise all unrecognised deferred tax
assets, profits would increase by approximately RMB29,925,000
(2021: RMB33,390,000).

REE B HEEHIEEELNAK®119,702,0007T
(20214 : AR #133,559,0000T) @ WEEE
R B R 1S 18 KO BT B A B B R 4 AT R LA 85
RNEEHEM M T A ERTIA o I EHE QT
WA D X ERELEHIEEENERTY
WFZERE o BEHN - WAERITEAT EIM & v A LA —
IR P RERELE o

AL BREFERT A RERNIELEHREEE
i ) #6158 hn 49 A R #629,925,0007T (20214 ¢
AR #33,390,0007T) °
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.DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
RECOGNISED (Continued)

According to Articles 3 and 37 of the PRC Enterprise Income Tax
Law, distribution of dividends by a foreign investment enterprise
in China to its non-tax resident foreign investor is subject to
Enterprise Income Tax at source on a withholding basis. The
standard withholding tax rate pursuant to Article 4 of the PRC
Enterprise Income Tax Law is 20%. According to Article 27
of the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law and Article 91 of the
Detailed Implementation Rules of the PRC Enterprise Income
Tax Law, the applicable withholding tax rate has been reduced
to 10%. Under the Arrangement between the Mainland China
and Hong Kong Special Administration Region (“HKSAR") for
the Avoidance of Double Taxation and the Prevention of Fiscal
Evasion, or Mainland China/HKSAR Double Taxation Agreement,
Hong Kong tax residents which hold 25% or more of a PRC
enterprise are entitled to a reduced dividend withholding tax rate
of 5%.

In addition, according to Cai Shui [2008] No.1, a circular jointly
issued by the Ministry of Finance and State Administration of
Taxation on 22 February 2008, distribution of dividends out of
pre 2008 retained profits by a foreign investment enterprise to
its foreign investor in or after 2008 is exempted from Enterprise
Income Tax, whereas distribution of dividends out of profits
generated by a foreign investment enterprise in or after 2008
shall be subjected to Enterprise Income Tax in accordance with
the relevant articles of the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law and its
Detailed Implementation Rules as described above. Accordingly,
dividends receivable from certain subsidiaries in respect of profits
earned since 1 January 2008 is subject to 5% withholding tax.

A IR E

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F12H31H IFF/Z

.ERANEERBREERE R

BB EMEMEREEIEREIER - P
INEIRERER AT ERIINEREERE 2
IREARBEMB T AN ERER - B
BHRBECEMSRAFRME ZEBBHIRE A
20% ° MBHEFBBEMETHIEE 276K+ E
B REAEMIEFISEIME - LaliEmREm
TREFZE10% o BIECA TS B B BI1T &
([BEFFRIATE R |) B ¥ AT 1S58 2 S B
MBI IERIRTR A ZHE) - RS APERE25%K
A EREmEBEBRRER « AlREER K%
AT BIEANFL

SO0 - ARIR BB ED I B R B 48 B P 200842
R22BHEEMEOCKBRCEMSETE TESR
BR R B A ) (BAF{[2008]15%%) » 20084 2 B Fh
EMIREREEKH RERSBEFE - £20085F
2 EDEEIINEZEED - Al RBREMS
Tt M20084F 3k 2 & FFE N IR B D E R FTIZ
FESE - Bk bR B EEREREABIIK
Bl R BGOSR SR - Bt - &F
MEB A RF E20084 181 HMAARES KGR
FEM AR B 7B B AR5 % HITEANEL
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31. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 31. CRIANELREEERER 2
RECOGNISED (Continued)

At 31 December 2022, the Group’s share of aggregate amount EA2022¢12H31 B - NEEEL AR T B
of temporary differences associated with retained earnings of the NAREBRFBEENEREZHS HOARK
Company’s PRC subsidiaries was approximately RMB379,456,000 379,456,00075(2021$- AR #382,719,0007T) °
(2021: RMB382,719,000). Deferred tax liabilities have not BN ANEE RSB O TR Z R 2 R B
been all provided for in the consolidated financial statements ZRN ] BRGNS E - AN B AL
in respect of the Group’s share of temporary differences A R BT B A AR R i B FE (G 2 BT B R =
attributable to retained profits of the Company's PRC subsidiaries R R e ISR R AL IRER TE B B R -

as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. jRA

Number of

ordinary shares

of HK$0.10

each
E0.108 T Amount
ZERHE Ex-]
in Thousands RMB’000
& AREFTT

Issued and fully paid: EETREE :
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021 M20215F1A18 ~ 20215 &

and 2022 2022 12AH31H 1,090,001 107,590
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33. RESERVES 33. f#fE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of REBSGEEEZHNSEK DR FEY M ERE 4
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out HE RN EERE TR - ARARFIIR
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of FERFERNS S rES B 2 5 IEEHI DT -

the changes in the Company’s individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the year are set out

below:
Share Capital ~ Translation Retained
premium reserve reserve profits Total
R &1 EXRE B REBR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE ARETR ARETRT ARETR ARET:R
At 1 January 2021 20211 318 619,288 250,887 (98,999) 46,464 817,640
Loss for the year AEEFBRE = = = (1,961) (1,961)
Other comprehensive income Hin2mzs = = (19,325) = (19,325)

Total comprehensive income for the AEEEANEEE

year - - (19,325) (1,961) (21,286)
At 31 December 2021 and 2021128318 &

1 January 2022 202241818 619,288 250,887 (118,324) 44,503 796,354
Loss for the year NEEER = = = (1,839) (1,839)
Other comprehensive income Hib 2 - - 60,622 - 60,622

Total comprehensive income for the AEEEANGEE
year - - 60,622 (1,839) 58,783

At 31 December 2022 120226124318 619,288 250,887 (57,702) 42,664 855,137
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34. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 34. FFEERER

Summarised financial information in relation to the Group’s RNEBE L EAIEERER ([ FFRRER )2
subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests (“NCls”), WEBARIRNEBRANEER 2 EEAREERT
before intra-group eliminations, is presented below: R

2022 2021
Percentage of equity interest held by NCls: FEIZ=fR ST hE= A DL ¢
Shenzhen Hongde and its subsidiary R BEREE AR 13% 13%
Cybertech and its subsidiaries Cybertech R K fff & A Al 50% 50%
For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z2022F1283181LFE

Cybertech and its Shenzhen Hongde
subsidiaries and its subsidiary

Cybertech FYIBE

REKBAR RHENEBAR

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T AR®T R

Revenue U5 - 140,231
Loss for the year REEEHE (7.229) (1,597)
Loss allocated to NCls DELEIEER S BB (3.615) (357)
Cash flows used in operating activities &2 /EEFTARESRE (7,534) (9,431)
Cash flows used in investing activities &&/EEFTARESRE - (7,230)
Cash flows used in financing activities & EEBFTAR & RE (1,812) (17,892)
Net cash outflows Remt F58 (9.346) (34,553)
Current assets mEEE 13,662 112,530
Non-current assets EREEE 17,078 42,417
Current liabilities mEBE (56,261) (72,826)
Non-current liabilities EREEE (535) (8,382)
Net (liabilities)/assets E(AE) BE (26,056) 73,739
Accumulated NCls 2t IEpR RS (13,359) 12,413
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34, FIERER 2

HE2021F12A318LFE

Cybertech and its

Shenzhen Hongde

subsidiaries and its subsidiary

Cybertech =

KEKBA A MEKEAR]

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBT T ARBT T

Revenue U 28 10,167 180,658

(Loss)/profit for the year RNEEZ(E1E), 5= (7,418) 674

(Loss)/profit allocated to NCls DEEEIHERER 2 (F518),aH (3,709) 88
Cash flows generated from operating #&Z/EFFAERESTRE

activities 8,835 19,233

Cash flows used in investing activities REEBFMARESRE (6,419) (6,720)

Cash flows used in financing activities R&E/EENFTARESRE (1,572) (12,086)

Net cash inflows BHERAFE 844 427

Current assets MENVEE 21,244 158,630

Non-current assets EMEBEE 16,496 45,980

Current liabilities mEBE (53,424) (115,041)

Non-Current liabilities EREBE (1,749) (13,099)

Net (liabilities)/assets F(ak) EE (17,433) 76,470

Accumulated NCls e R (8,998) 12,771
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35.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 35. A&/ @Bk R &
THE COMPANY

2022 2021
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’'000
MisE ARBT AREEF T
Non-current asset FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RET B A FRE 36 250,901 250,901
Total non-current asset EmEEEATE 250,901 250,901
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NG E O] 717,149 654,923
Bank balances and cash RITEHR LIRS 2,804 5,375
Total current assets MENVEEMAE 719,953 660,298
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables H At B 50E 3 3
Amount due to a subsidiary FERTBT B A Rl 738 8,124 7,252
Total current liabilities mEAEERE 8,127 7,255
Net current assets REBEETFE 711,826 653,043
Net assets FEE 962,727 903,944
Capital and reserves EXR®EE
Share capital [N 32 107,590 107,590
Reserves i 33 855,137 796,354
Total equity B 962,727 903,944

7 v 1 1

=
FENG MING ZHU LIAN XIU QIN
BT E%EE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF EF
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36. SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the subsidiaries of the Company at the end of the
reporting period are as follows. The class of shares held is

36. fff & 2 7

RBEPRERAMBRARFBNOT - RIES
BHHA - FANKROERN R EEK

ordinary unless otherwise stated:

Place of incorporation/ Issued and paid-

establishment and

up share/registered

Group's effective

Name of companies operation capital ownership interest Principal activities
TMAL/ BILR BRTREARE/
ARER L HER rEEENERES TEEH
2022 2021

Great Speed Enterprises Limited British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100% 100% Investment holding
ERARERRAR RERIHS 50,000%7T REER
Scud Group (Hong Kong) Company Hong Kong HK$1 100%* 100%*  Provision of corporate management

Limited BA 18T services
REREE(EB)ERAA REAAERRY
Keen Power Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100%* 100%*  Investment holding
HEEEEERAT] BB 1,00087 REZR
Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., Ltd. PRC US$127,000,000 100%* 100%*  Manufacturing and sale of lithium-

(Note (i)) H 127,000,000% ¢ ion battery modules, power

RER(BR)ETARAR (M)

*  Interest indirectly held through Great Speed Enterprises

Limited

i Interest indirectly held through Keen Power Holdings

Limited

banks, motive battery and related
accessories for mobile phones and
digital electrical appliances

HERHEFRREBET TER
BEFENEE  BHEE BN
NG T

* EBRRACEAERATNEESAER

o OBRBREEEARARRRS AR
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36. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 36. B AT #)
Place of incorporation/ Issued and paid-
establishment and up share/registered Group's effective
Name of companies operation capital ownership interest Principal activities
FMAL/ BILR BRTRESRS/
ARER Lew TER rEERNREES FTEEH
2022 2021
Scud Battery Co., Ltd. (Note (ii)) PRC US$30,000,000 100%* 100%*  Manufacturing and sale of lithium-
RERE0ERDA (D) H 30,000,0003 7T ion battery modules, power
banks, power management
module, motive battery, smart
wearable device battery and
related accessories for mobile
phones and digital electrical
appliances
HERHEFRREERETER
MERTENERE  BBTR
EREEEMA  PNTH - Bk
FHRET N RIERE
Shenzhen Hongde Battery Co., Ltd. PRC RMB38,000,000 86.84%° 86.84%°  Research and development,
(Note (iii)) i AR#38,000,0007T manufacturing and sale of
FYTREE A RA (i) lithium-ion bare battery cells
BRFEL M LERHEE
Dongguan Hongde Battery Co., Ltd. PRC RMB50,000,000 86.84%" 86.84%"  Research and development,
(Note (iv)) H AR#50,000,0007T manufacturing and sale of
HETEEE AR AR () lithium-ion bare battery cells
HETECCHE  £EREE
*  Interest indirectly held through Keen Power Holdings o BB EEEARARBEFAEELS
Limited
@ |Interest indirectly held through Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., ° FRRERGER)ETFERARMEERA
Ltd. R
A Interest indirectly held through Shenzhen Hongde Battery N BERFYIMBEENERARIEEFERE
Co., Ltd. o
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A IR E

36. ftEB A T#)

Group's effective

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F12H31H IFF/Z

Name of companies operation capital ownership interest Principal activities
FMRL/ BRI BRTRBHRE/
DNRER REhE EMEE rEEENEARE W IEEER
2022 2021
Patriots Group (China) Company Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%*  De-registered on 4 February 2022
Limited (Note (vii)) Bt 10,000 7T 1202242 A4R B
FEIERE (R E) AR R (i)
Patriots (Hong Kong) Power Sources  Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%*  De-registered on 10 June 2022
Company Limited (Note (vii)) B 10,000%7C 174202246 8108 IR
ERE (B8 RARA A (Favi)
Scud Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd. ~ PRC RMB50,000,000 100%° 100%°®  Not yet commenced business
(Note (v)) i ARH50,000,0007C HARRESR
REREEMBEERAF (M)
Scud Electronics Japan Co., Ltd. Japan JPY20,000,000 100%° 100%®  Research and development and sale
REREFEAKASH AR 20,000,0008 of lithium-ion battery modules,
power banks, chargers and
network terminal products
BETENEE BYER 1B
BRBEEmERTEREE
Scud Hong Kong Trading Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%* 100%*  Not yet commenced business
REREREHERAT Bk 10,0007 RIRFIRE %

@ Interest indirectly held through Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co.,

Ltd.

*  Interest indirectly held through Great Speed Enterprises

Limited

°© EARERER)EFERABMEERSF

e

M=

* BBEACEFAERAREESHES
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36. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
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Place of incorporation/

establishment and Issued and paid-up

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. (B AT (@)

Group's effective ownership

Name of companies operation share/registered capital interest Principal activities
HRAY/ RLR BROREARES/
INCER 3ok ZRER rEEENERER TEEK
2022 2021
Prime Power Technology Co., Ltd. Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 100%¢ 100%°  Investment holding
hEMRERAR &k 50,000,000/ 7 RERR
Cybertech Optiemus Holdings Limited  British Virgin Islands HK$50,000,000 50%1 50%%  Investment holding
(Note(vi) (HfzE(vi)) ERRRHS 50,000,000 7C RERR
Cybertech Optiemus (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$10 50% 50%"  Investment holding
(Note{vi)) (HfzE(vi)) Bk 1087 RARR
lluminar Merchandising Private Limited  India INR107,509,642 50%"° 50%"  Provision of mobile phone battery cell and
(Note(vi) (FiE(i)) g 107,509,642 FE E S, power bank assembly service in India
ROEREFRETRBYEREERE
Veson (Hong Kong) Co., Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%* 100%*  Dormant
HEER)BRAF &% 10,0007 LEXE
@ Interest indirectly held through Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., @ FBRARERER)ETFTERAAHEHESBE
Ltd. i
O Interest indirectly held through Prime Power Technology U EBLAERKAERAREERSGER
Co., Limited
@ Interest indirectly held through Cybertech Optiemus «  FiCybertech Optiemus Holdings Limited[&
Holdings Limited BEREER
p Interest indirectly held through Cybertech Optiemus (HK) P #FiBCybertech Optiemus (HK) Limited %
Limited BiER
* Interest indirectly held through Great Speed Enterprises * EBRACEERARBESEERS
Limited
Notes: 5T
(i)  Wholly-foreign owned enterprise for a term of 50 years () S\EBELE - 1997F10A3 1B AR
commencing 31 October 1997. T4 e
(i) Wholly-foreign owned enterprise for a term of 50 years (i) SINEBEME  2005F12AcA BT AR
commencing 6 December 2005. 4 o
(iii) Limited liability company for a term of 20 years (i) BREMERAA - 2005F1A21A L A=
commencing 21 January 2005. T4 o
(iv) Limited liability company commencing 11 April 2011. (ivy BREMTRAA 2011F4811 8 -
(v) Limited liability company for a term of 30 years (v) ABREREMEATF  2013F583H Bt AH=1
commencing 3 May 2013. F o
(vi) The directors are of the opinion that, notwithstanding (i) EBERAE BERZELRHB50%ME
having 50% shareholding on these companies, having BEEEERMEEERBERE  AEEN
considered in substance all facts and circumstances, the HZELREAEGE FRAEZFHERS
Group has control over these companies. See note 5(vi) for BB EE5(vi)
further details.
(vi) The companies are deregistered during the year. (vii) ZERRERAFEEUEEM -

During the year, none of the subsidiaries had issued any debt
securities.

RAREE - BENBRRBETENERES -
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A IR E

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F12H31H IFF/Z

37. BEAER S

The name of and the relationship with related parties (a) FAEATEZRREHBENT :

are as follows:

Name Relationship

=t RS

Fang Jin Controlling shareholder of the Company

Wik PAYNEIEE i SR

Scud Stock Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd., a company in which Mr. Fang Jin was a
RERRB D director and held 70% (2021: 70%) shareholding interest

Scud Technology
RERRRIEL

Scud Power Technology

RERRE DR

EBTEB New Energy
SIAFHER

Scud Technical College

FRERR AN ERfT

Scud Energy Technology
HRERREEIRTHR

Scud Communication Technology

FREBRB A

BERERBRMHAERDT » AEAEAZAREEIRBAZART0%
(20214F = 70% )R #E

Fujian Scud Technology Co., Ltd., a company in which Mr. Fang Jin was a
director and held 18% (2021: 18%) shareholding interest

BEREBBEERAR  FREERZARERWHAZRA18% (2021
F 1 18%) RiE

Fujian Scud Power Technology Co., Ltd., a company with its director and
shareholder holding 88.61% (2021: 93.95%) shareholding interest of
the company being the son of Mr. Fang Jin, the controlling shareholder
of the Company

BERERPNBKARAFT - HHZRF88.61%(20214F : 93.95% )k
ENEERRRBEANFERRR T @EEZ T

EBTEB New Energy Technology Co., Ltd., a company in which Scud
Communication Technology Co., Ltd. held 40% (2021: 40%)
shareholding interest and with its director being the son of Mr. Fang Jin,
the controlling shareholder of the Company

ZEFFERBRARAR » —RERERERBARMNAERQAEFI0%
(2021%F : 40% )N AR AR EEZRARRBERER TS EEZF

Fujian Province Scud Technical College, a company of which Mr. Fang Jin
was a director and had beneficial interest
BEARERTAER  — A EREFTUHERERERNAT

Scud Energy Technology Co., Ltd., a company in which Mr. Fang Jin was a
director and held 90% (2021:90%) shareholding interest

RERERBIEERAR » TEEERZARESWIFEZARF0%(2021
£ 1 90% ) fE1E

Scud Communication Technology Co., Ltd., a company of which Mr. Fang
Jin was a director and had beneficial interest

REBBARMERAR  —MTEEREFUHEETERERNA A
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 37.FAEANLRF (&)

(b) Transactions with related companies during the year (b) WERPBHRREMIBOHENFALERSD
not disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements are BRRZENRZ ST ¢

summarised as follows:

2022 2021
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFT
Rental expenses paid to: BENHSRY :
Scud Stock (Note i) FRERRARD (Bt i) 11,030 11,012
Scud Technology (Note ii) FRERRBHR (Bt i) 249 463
Rental income received from: ELGEELONE
Scud Stock (Note i) REBRR D (P zEiii) 4,689 4,689
Scud Power Technology (Note i) FRERRE) 1 RHR (FfaEiii) 1,690 =
Purchases of finished goods from: B -
EBTEB New Energy (Note iv) SIERETRR (Htiv) - 1,395
Scud Energy Technology (Note iv) RERRAE R (FizEv) 27 -
Purchases of raw materials from: RERME -
EBTEB New Energy (Note iv) SErEaeR (Fv) 164,806 143,800
Scud Power Technology (Note iv) RERE HBHR (FisEiv) 290 403
Processing income from: WERIN A
EBTEB New Energy (Note vi) SEEER (i) - 342
Processing income from: WEUI TN
Scud Power Technology (Note vi) RERE) HEHR (K 5Evi) 15,436 -
Training expense to: SAEANERT :
Scud Technical College (Note vii) REBRIRATZ0T (K 7vii) 1.m 2,681
Sales of raw material to: HERMHT -
Scud Power Technology (Note iv) RERRE) H R (FizEiv) - 35
EBTEB New Energy (Note iv) SEFETER (M) - 26
Sales of work-in-progress to: HEFRET -
Scud Power Technology (Note iv) RERE AR (FFV) - 5
Sales of low-value consumables to: HERBERMT -
EBTEB New Energy (Note iv) SIERER (FFEv) - 84
Sales of finished goods to: HERKET -
EBTEB New Energy (Note iv) SERETR () 154 8
Scud Communication Technology (Note iv) RER BRI (K Eiv) 3 =
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

The above transactions were made at prices and terms as
agreed between the parties.

Notes:

(i)

On 30 December 2020, Scud Electronics (as lessee) and
Scud Stock (as lessor) entered into a lease agreement
(the “First 2021 Lease Agreement”) to renew the
lease of certain premises owned by Scud Stock and
extend the lease period of the existing leased premises
for the period commencing from 1 January 2021 and
ending on 31 December 2021. The annual rental for
the year ended 31 December 2021 was approximately
RMB10,362,000.

On 30 December 2021, Scud Electronics (as lessee) and
Scud Stock (as lessor) entered into a lease agreement
(the “First 2022 Lease Agreement”) to renew the
lease of certain premises owned by Scud Stock and
extend the lease period of the existing leased premises
for the period commencing from 1 January 2022 and
ending on 31 December 2022. The annual rental for
the year ending 31 December 2022 is approximately
RMB10,362,000.

L]
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F12H31H IFF/Z

37.BEALRF &)

(b)

(%)

£
#
B e
(i)

32 5 T B4 S B e
7o

M2020% 12 A30H » REMELE T ({E
ABEBA)BRERRKG(EALHE
N)FIHERZE(E—1%H2021FH
Ez ) AEERERBROES
CETYERTERBEHEEME A
2y - FHEFB20214F1A1H#E E2021
F128318 k- & F£20219F12A8
BEBLEFEZFEREHAARKE
10,362,0007T ©

20214128308 * REREF({E
BAEMBA)BERERBK GO (EALH
NI HE R E—152022FH
EWHsl) WERARERBROES
ZETUEREREEHEME M
i - FHHI 5202291 A1H £ 22022
F128318 k- & Z2022%F12A8
BEEFEZFEREHAARKE
10,362,0007T ©
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

182

(b)

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

i)

On 30 December 2020, Scud Battery (as lessee) and
Scud Stock (as lessor) entered into a lease renewal
agreement (the “Second 2021 Lease Agreement”) to
extend the lease period of the existing leased premises
for the period commencing from 1 January 2021 and
ending on 31 December 2021. The annual rental for
the year ended 31 December 2021 was approximately
RMB668,000.

On 30 December 2021, Scud Battery (as lessee) and
Scud Stock (as lessor) entered into a lease agreement
(the “Second 2022 Lease Agreement”) to extend
the lease period of the existing leased premises for
the period commencing from 1 January 2022 and
ending on 31 December 2022. The annual rental for
the year ending 31 December 2022 is approximately
RMB668,000.

The rental payable under the First 2020 Lease
Agreement, the First 2021 Lease Agreement, the
Second 2020 Lease Agreement and the Second 2021
Lease Agreement were determined after arm’s length
negotiations between Scud Electronics, Scud Battery
and Scud Stock with reference to the market rental for
similar properties nearby in the PRC and having taken
into account availability of similar premises nearby and
the cost of relocation.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—
el

37Z.FEA LR Z (#)

(#&)

BeE - (&)

(i)

R2020512 A308 © REBRE A (1E
BAEMAN)BRERR G (EALH
NI Bz =1%52021FH
EHzl)  MERREHEEWEZHA
5 FHEFE20214F1 818 £ E2021
F12A318 1k - B E2021F12 831
BEFEZFEHSHABARE
668,0007T °

MR2021512 308 » REBRE A (1E
BAEMAN)BRERK GO (EALHE
NI B (5E =152022F 4
Eipzl)  WERBEEHEWHE A
5 FHHEFE20226F1 A1 8 £ %2022
F12H318 1k # F£2022912A°
BMMBEFEZ2EFERENAARE
668,0007T °

F—20205 FHEWHE F— 17
202V HE R « £ =1%H2020F
EHERE M0 FRERHHET
KENESTIAREREF - RER
Bt R RERRAR D AE R Z R BT 48
LU E 2 S E I E M E LY
izﬂmﬁ&%%&$ﬁ®$%ﬁ&
EE °




VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED
BEERERA T

ANNUAL REPORT ¥k E)ZZ

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

The rental payable was determined after arm’s length
negotiations between the Group and Scud Technology
with reference to the market rental for similar
properties nearby in the PRC and having taken into
account availability of similar premises nearby and the
cost of relocation.

On 30 December 2020, Scud Battery (as lessor) and
Scud Stock (as lessee) entered into a lease renewal
agreement (the “Third 2021 Lease Agreement”) to
extend the lease period of the existing leased premises
for the period commencing from 1 January 2021 and
ending on 31 December 2021. The annual rental for
the year ended 31 December 2021 was approximately
RMB4,689,000.

On 30 December 2021, Scud Battery (as lessor) and
Scud Stock (as lessee) entered into a lease renewal
agreement (the “Third 2022 Lease Agreement”) to
extend the period for the existing leased premises
for the period commencing from 1 January 2022 and
ending on 31 December 2022. The annual rental for
the year ending 31 December 2022 is approximately
RMB4,689,000.

The rental receivable under the Third 2020 Lease
Agreement and the Third 2021 Lease Agreement were
determined after arm’s length negotiations between
Scud Battery and Scud Stock with reference to the
market rental for similar properties nearby in the PRC
and having taken into account availability of similar
premises nearby and the cost of relocation.

A IR E

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F12H31H IFF/Z

37.BEALRF &)

b) (&)

BeE - (&)

(ii)

(iif)

RS T AN E MRERB L
S2EREMTALUNEZ TIEEEY
B R MY BN 5 2 BT A R B A
KGN TFREBEEETE

M2020%F 128308 » REMRE W (1E
AN ERTERRG ((EAEBEA)
SN BB E=M2021FEHER
&) NERBEHREMEZAS
T2 EH B20214F1 A1H #£ 22021412
A318 1k » # &2021412A31H 1t
FEZFEREH/ARKEAS689,000

JT °©

R2021412 8308 ©» REBRE W (/E
AR ERTEEARGN ((EAEBEA)
ST EEHE( E =202 8 EH
#) NEEREHREMEZAY
70 HA §20224E1 18 #£ £2022412
A318 It - & 220224128318 1
FRZFERESH/ARKEA4,689,000

JG ©

55 =10 2020F THE 5 &2 55 =112021
FHEWZ TORKES T RRER
B RRERKMDE2EREMTL
U 2 5 HEE I B K I B
2 WA R RBR AR A FRERE

BT -
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 37.FAEANLRF (&)

(b) (Continued) (b) (%)
Notes: (Continued) BisE (&)
(iv) The selling prices of finished goods, work-in-progress, (iv) BIECE ~ Fm - BV R REEREM
raw materials and low-value consumables are HWEBHREFEEIRE -

determined and agreed by both parties.

(v) The selling price of property, plant and equipment is V) PE BEARENESEHRERET
determined and agreed by both parties. WRE o
(vi) The processing income and processing fee is (viy ITWARINTEHREHET -
determined by both parties.
(vii) The training expense is determined by both parties. (i) EJIBFEHRERETE -
(viii) The research and development expense is determined (vii) TREBERHERERE -
by both parties.
(c)  Other transaction with related party: () HEEATHEMZS
As at 31 December 2022, Mr. Fang Jin and the son of Mr. 2022128310 AekcERFTE&%E
Fang Jin have guaranteed certain bank facilities made to ZIBAAEBEBERARIRECHERSE
the subsidiaries of the Group to a maximum amount of A R #2644,000,0007T(20214F = A R #&
RMB2,644,000,000 (2021: RMB3,683,127,000). 3,683,127,0007T) & THRI TR E (EHHEIR o
(d) Remuneration for key management personnel, representing (d ETEZEEEAENBS(ENEIMARE
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in HEXNMAARIESZSE)MAT ¢

Note 11, is as follows:

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBT T

Fees, salaries, housing allowances, W Fe o FREL - EMEAR

other allowances and benefits in B YEF
kind 3,244 3,277
Post-employment benefits BER 2R 28 26

3,272 3,303
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38. NOTE SUPPORTING STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

38. TIFBEEREXRVMKE

BMERBELNEBEHR

Amounts due

Amounts due to related
Bank loans Lease liabilities to directors parties
EAEE
BITER HEEE EAESRAE ATFHE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT AREFT AREFT
As at 1 January 2021 202141718 911,942 31,336 36 1,997
Changes from cash flow ReneEgs)
Proceeds from new borrowings REHERZFTERE 1,745,734 - - -
Repayment of borrowings EFART (1,482,684) - - -
Repayment of principal portion of leases EEREz A& D - (8,403) - -
Repayment of advances BEBR - - )] -
Advance received L& - - - 298
Interest paid SRR, (58,530) (2,723) - -
Other changes: Hih#E):
Foreign exchange movement NEEE) (8) (90) - -
Capitalisation of new leases HHREBAL - 5,209 - -
Lease modification HEEN - (5,026) - -
Interest expense FBRX 58,530 2,723 - -
As at 1 January 2022 #®2022%1 711 1,174,984 23,026 34 2,295
Changes from cash flow Reness)
Proceeds from new borrowings REFERZPTETE 1,929,847 - - -
Repayment of borrowings BEER (1,917,503) - - -
Repayment of principal portion of leases  (EEHE 2 K4 55 - (6,551) - -
Repayment of advances BERR - - - (1,190)
Interest paid SRFIE (61,423) (2,000) - -
Other changes: Hth#E):
Foreign exchange movement HNFE B (790) 413 - -
Capitalisation of new leases HHEEAL - 978 - -
Lease modification HEEN - (124) - -
Interest expense FEN 61,423 2,000 -
As at 31 December 2022 ®2022412A318 1,186,538 17,742 34 1,105
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %2022 12 H31H IFF/Z

39. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 39. EAREIE
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AREFIT
Contracted but not accounted for, in ERREEME  BEK
respect of acquisition of property, plant FAEFTRMERABR
and equipment 19,098 17,012
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY  40. ZEHl& s 2mIT A

40.

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

RBER - FRF R TAMNKREENAT :

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET R ARBT T
Financial assets EEEE
Financial assets measured at amortised IREEKAFTENSREE
costs
Trade receivables FEWE 53R 1,922,615 2,390,244
Financial assets included in prepayments, SEATENFIE - 2 M EH M RN EIER
deposits and other receivables EREE 44,970 47,205
Amounts due from related parties FEURREE A TR 129,618 78,722
Pledged bank deposits B RIRI TR 710,965 988,689
Bank balances and cash RITEBLES 200,944 226,695
3,009,112 3,731,555
Financial assets measured at FVTOCI BAFEFAEMGEEKETTEN
SREE
Financial assets at FVTOCI BATEE AR EE KRS
TEREE 20,940 =
Notes receivables A ESE 41,182 113,997
62,122 113,997
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 40.#ZMERIEI9 24w T A%

(Continued)
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT
Financial liabilities LREE
Financial liabilities measured at REBHERATTENEREE
amortised costs
Trade and notes payables EBNESRERENEZE 2,613,130 3,118,080
Financial liabilities included in other SFAEMENKIE GHEER
payables, contract liabilities and accrued ErERANESREE
charges 29,114 21,917
Lease liabilities HEAE 17,742 23,026
Bank loans RITEN 1,186,538 1,174,984
Amounts due to directors BN EEHIE 34 34
Amounts due to related parties JETRAE A T FIB 1,105 2,295
3,847,663 4,340,336
The above financial instruments which are measured at amortised LHABSHERATEN SR TA - HAEHE
costs are not measured at fair value due to their short-term BARUAFEFE - L EERMTANEBEEER
nature. The carrying values of the above financial instruments HEENFEEE

approximate their fair values.
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 1.2 iEMEEBEREMI A 22
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS Y&

(a) EREREE

(@) Financial risk management

188

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial

risks, which include market risk (including foreign currency

risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity

risk. Details of the policies on how to mitigate these risks

are set out below. The directors manage and monitor these

exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented

on a timely and effective manner.

(i)

Interest rate risk management

Interest-bearing financial assets are mainly pledged
bank deposits and bank balances which are all short-
term in nature and carry fixed interest rates. Interest-
bearing financial liabilities are mainly bank loans
with fixed interest rates; therefore, the Group is not
exposed to significant fair value interest rate risk due
to the short maturity of the items. The Group currently
does not have an interest rate hedging policy and will
consider enter into interest rate hedging should the
need arise.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
assuming that a change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rates for financial
instruments in existence at that date. A 1% increase
or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

AEENEDEAZZHeRER B
MR (BREINERR - FIXERRE
®ER)  EERBRMABERR - AR
BEZERBROBRNFFHER T - &
EEEREEZERMR - DARECR NI LA
BROTABEE AEE

(i) FIEEREE
FAREREEIZREHMEENDE
MBI AR R IRITAERR - REEF
EHE - EERMARIERRETE
MEFFBMRITER : At - A%KE
RETEENIHARE - Ut W A
AREANDNFENRRER - A%E
IR B A AT R S R R S 2 R
RE T ERFET LA S o

NRYRBED T

A TEGRED T HRRANXEEHE
RBMERRBELEMETE - YERAR
IRZBEMAXRAESBITAZAH
TRk - RATEEEBABREMN
o\ O P AR #5452 A 42 =Rt
1% DEEBEEHMNEAESEE
B AT
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. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk management (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Interest rate risk management (Continued)
Interest rate sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If interest rates had been 1% higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s
profit for the year ended 31 December 2022 would
decrease/increase and the accumulated losses as
of 31 December 2022 would increase/decrease by
approximately RMB1,497,000 (2021: profit would
increase/decrease by approximately RMB1,140,000).
This is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure,
to interest rates on its variable rate bank balances,
pledged bank deposits and bank loans.

The Group’s bank balance also expose it to cash
flow interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the
prevailing market interest rate on the bank balances.
The directors consider the Group’s exposure on the
bank deposits is not significant as interest-bearing
deposits are within short maturity periods in general.

The Group’s sensitivity to interest rates has not
changed significantly from prior year.

Foreign currency risk management

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movements
in foreign currency exchange rates which will affect
the Group’s financial results and its cash flows.
Although the Group has certain bank balances and
bank loans denominated in United States dollars,
Japanese Yen, Indian Rupee and Hong Kong dollars,
the proportion of these foreign currency balances to
the Group's total assets is insignificant. Furthermore,
the Group carries out majority of its transactions in
Chinese Renminbi. Accordingly, in the opinion of the
directors, the Group is not exposed to any significant
foreign currency risk.

A IR E

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F12H31H IFF/Z

MELBmEBREEREMIAEZA
FE®)

(a) ERIAREREZ)

()

(ii)

FIF R EE (&)

FZEGRED (&)

1 1) A8 hn 8k 21 % T FIT A8 E b
BRI E  REEHZE2022512
B318 IEFZ 8R4/ m
K#EZE2022F12A31A N Rt B1E
A5 38 00,8 A 49 A R B 1,497,0007T
(20215  HEFBE IR HAR
#1,140,0007T) ° LI EEREARE
E)ZERITHER  BERRTERK
RITEROFERE -

BN RITAESREIRITIIS N RIS -
AEEWIRITEBTERR S RER
KRR - EERR - ANFTEFRB
FREHAZY  AEERERART
FREBRTK

ANER B ) R R R B 2K AR L W

SHE B EHE

SINEE L i 3 S I FE R B B i R B AR
B BEERERSRENER
BEAEEEAETIAET  AE -
ENE B RBTRHERRTTER IR
TER R ZFINEOERER
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)
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(a) Financial risk management (Continued)

(iii) Price risk management

(iv)

In the opinion of the directors, the Group does not
have significant exposure to price risk.

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk
primarily relates to the Group’s bank balances, trade
and notes receivables, and other receivables. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in the event that
the counterparties fail to perform their obligations
as at end of the financial year in relation to each
class of recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount of those assets as stated in the statement
of financial position. In order to minimise the risk,
management of the Group closely monitors overdue
debts. The recoverable amount of each individual
debt is reviewed at each of the reporting period and
adequate allowance for doubtful debts has been made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that credit risk associated
with the Group’s trade and notes receivables, and
other receivables is significantly reduced.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
has a certain level of concentration of credit
risk as approximately 18.6% (2021: 18.5%) and
approximately 80.9% (2021: 42.3%) of the total trade
and notes receivables, arising from the Group's largest
customer and the five largest customers, respectively.

The credit risk on bank balances is minimal because
the counterparties are banks with high credit-rating.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical location is mainly in the PRC.
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 41. ¢ iR EERSM I A2 A
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS EEE

(Continued)
(a) Financial risk management (Continued) (a) ERIAREREZ)
(iv) Credit risk management (Continued) (iv) EERBEE(E)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade REBIZEENFRATBHEEER
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which (AR EEEE) NS ET 2R
is calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group’s B SRR EERE - ARAEER
historical credit loss experience does not indicate A EEEELRIY AR TARES,HE
significantly different loss patterns for different ERBEETRENBBEN - SR
customer segments, the loss allowance based on past AEETREFEEE—FTROIBE
due status is not further distinguished between the B ERIERIE L B IR R -

Group's different customer bases.

The following table provides information about the T KRR M A AR & B R2022F Kk
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade 2021F12A31HATEBENERKE 5
receivables as at 31 December 2022 and 2021: HEREERRREREEEENE
=

As at 31 December 2022 72022%12H31H
As at 31
Gross December
carrying 2022
amount ECLs allowance R2022%F
RERE(E TEHEAE EEIE R 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T % ARETT AR®TR
0 to 60 days 0Z260H 1,283,979 0.60% (7,692) 1,276,287
61 to 180 days 612180H 647,235 1.00% (6,502) 640,733
181 to 365 days 181%365H 5,743 2.58% (148) 5,595
Over 365 days 365H A £ 86,948 100% (86,948) -
Total st 2,023,905 (101,290) 1,922,615
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %2022 12 H31H IFF/Z

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 41. ¢ REREER S I A2 A
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FiE =)

(Continued)
(a) Financial risk management (Continued) (a) SRIEEEE)
(iv) Credit risk management (Continued) (iv) EEREBREE(E)
As at 31 December 2021 2021412 H31H

As at 31
Gross December
carrying 2021
amount ECLs allowance 7R20214F
RERE(E TEEAE E R IE R 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETTT % AR¥EFTIT ARKETT
0 to 60 days 0£60H 1,692,636 0.65% (11,003) 1,681,633
61 to 180 days 61£180H 706,386 1.51% (10,677) 695,709
181 to 365 days 1812365H 16,819 23.29% (3,917) 12,902
Over 365 days 3658 £ 68,145 100.00% (68,145) -
Total et 2,483,986 (93,742) 2,390,244
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience FRHEEEDENBEIFHERE
over the past 3 years. These rates are adjusted to B - 2T RCBFARENRBIL
reflect differences between economic conditions £ L EHE AR M BEAR BRI
during the period over which the historic data has LA R A £2 [ 3 pE U SR TE T HA EARR A9

been collected, current conditions and the group’s KEMRANEEZFNEL -

view of economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables.
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 41. ¢ iR EERSM I A2 A
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS KB ()

(Continued)
(a) Financial risk management (Continued) (a) LRRAREEE)
(iv) Credit risk management (Continued) (iv) EEREERE(E)

The Group has adopted general approach to measure
ECLs on financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, and other financial
assets at amortised costs. Under the general approach,
the Group applies the “3-stage” impairment model
for ECLs measurement based on change in credit risk
since initial recognition as follows:

— Stage 1: If the credit risk of the financial
instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition, the financial instrument is
included in Stage 1.

— Stage 2: If the credit risk of the financial
instrument has increased significantly since its
initial recognition but is not deemed to be credit-
impaired, the financial instrument is included in
Stage 2.

—  Stage 3: If the financial instrument is credit-
impaired, the financial instrument is included in
Stage 3.

The ECLs for financial instruments in Stage 1 are
measured at an amount equivalent to 12-month ECLs
whereas the ECLs for financial instruments in Stage 2
or Stage 3 are measured at an amount equivalent to
lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the risk of default
has increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative
and qualitative information and analysis, based on the
Group's historical experience and informed credit risk
assessment and including forward-looking information.

AEBERAABNKIE e REAM
FEW IR 2 & BB E R E IR E HK
AAEBZERMEERA—RITEFE
BEMEEERR - RE—RIDE - AK
B RHEREE R ERAI =&
BER - THERIT B I8 HERIA
KZEERBRES :

- BRI HEMGERNEKS

BT ANEERR I &EEE
- RZEemTABRAERER
1 e

- BR2: WeERIANEERR

B RERAREBEE M
B RERIEC/EERE - Bl
ZeEmTABREERR2 -

- HER3:-MWMERmIADEER

B AZemIAEBIEERR
3o

BEISR TANEREEERNANE
ERNEABRBEEEEN SR
£ MEB2EEEBIER T ANE
HEEBERUNEERFRARRE
EEBENSETE -

BEETRORREDS B NTSHERBEKR
BN - NEEE B R AR MEAN
HiBZ KA S RN EFH A1
RASEEH - WBERBEREBEAKENB
EEBRRENEERARTESHES
MEMZ ER BT - L EBIEATEME

193



VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED
HIEERERAF

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2022

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
an\ I:| R Zl-i%#ﬁﬁ B{T?

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %2022 12 H31H IFF/Z

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 41. ¢ REREER S I A2 A
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS EE )
(Continued)

(a) SREAKEE )
(iv) EERRBREE(E)

(a) Financial risk management (Continued)

(iv) Credit risk management (Continued)

194

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
assesses whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is considered as credit-impaired when
one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired include observable data about the following
events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

() granting a concession to the debtors that
the lender would not otherwise consider for
economic or contractual reasons relating to the
debtor’s financial difficulty; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

The measurement of ECLs is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure of default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical
data and adjusted for forward-looking information
through the use of industry trend and experienced
credit judgment to reflect the qualitative factors, and
through the use of multiple probability-weighted
scenarios.
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk management (Continued)

(iv) Credit risk management (Continued)

(v)

The loss allowance for financial assets included in
deposits and other receivables as at 31 December
2021 reconciles to the opening loss allowance on 1
January 2022 and to the closing loss allowance as at
31 December 2022 are as follow:

A IR E

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F12H31H IFF/Z

MELBmEBREEREMIAEZA
FE®)

(a) SEEABEEZ)

(iv)

ERREERE(E)
MR2021F12 8318t ARE R H b
FEWGRIE 2 & BhE B 2 S 1E BE B
2022F 1 AMB 2 E VB BRERL
202212 A3V 2 FREBERE 2
HERAOT -

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
Opening loss allowance as  R1B1B Z2EAEERE
at 1 January 1,090 428
Impairment loss recognised et AR S R EMERHRIEZ ERIEE
on financial assets included RBEEE
in deposits and other
receivables 6,941 718
Reversal of impairment B EIERTFET AR M EM R FIE 2
loss on financial assets CRIEERRZBEEE
included in deposits and
other receivables previously
recognised (30) (56)
Closing loss allowance as at R128318 2 FEREBEE
31 December 8,001 1,090
Liquidity risk management ) RBMHERRERE

The ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk
management rests with the board of directors, which
has built an appropriate liquidity risk management
framework for the management of the Group’'s
short, medium and long term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Group manages
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves,
banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows
and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets
and liabilities.

REBASENES  PHEEHRE
SRFERDUEENER  EFE
ERY—E/ENRBESRRER
HE - AERBUERREREAZKE
- AREEBRFTROMFR ]
TRERFBERRE  REHER
BEREMERRSRE - YRGS
BEREAENEEARTAEE RS
MR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %2022 12 H31H IFF/Z

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

MEtBHEAREEREBMIAZAD
SEERE )

(a) Financial risk management (Continued) (a) sREREE &)

(v) Liquidity risk management (Continued) (v) HEMMEEEE(E)

20224 K%2021F12A318 © A&
EremaERECTTARIIERE

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
as at 31 December 2022 and 2021, based on the

196

contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows: HEERE R -
2022
Less than 1 Total Total
year or on More than undiscounted carrying
demand 1-5 years 5years  cash flows amount
SR-F AHR
HEEX -ZLf RBIE RERBER FHAR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARETRE  ARBTR AR¥TR AR¥TR  ARETR
Trade and notes payables ERESTERENEE 2,613,130 - - 2,613,130 2,613,130
Financial liabilities included in other payables, st AEffEfT7UE « FBUYZUE
receipts in advance and accrued charges EAERNSRARE 29,114 - - 29,114 29,114
Lease liabilities HEAR 8,338 6,911 4,524 19773 17,742
Bank loans HITER 897,831 243,282 120,478 1,261,591 1,186,538
Amounts due to directors ENEZHE 34 - - 34 34
Amounts due to related parties ENBEALIE 1,105 - - 1,105 1,105
3,549,552 250,193 125,002 3,924,747 3,847,663
2021
Less than 1 Total Total
year or on More than  undiscounted aarrying
demand 1-5 years 5 years cash flows amount
i3 AR
FRER —ER% BRLE FEORELR fREas
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT  ARETT ARETR ARETR  ARETR
Trade and notes payables ERESTERENEE 3,118,080 - - 3,118,080 3,118,080
Financial liabilities included in other payables, uf}\ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ 1B BlGE
receipts in advance and accrued charges B ERRRAR 21917 - - 21917 21917
Lease liabilities HEAR 8,350 18,462 - 26,812 23,026
Bank loans RITER 879,843 272,75 107,886 1,260,485 1,174,984
Amounts due to directors R ESE 34 - - 34 34
Amounts due to related parties EREEALZE 2,295 - - 2,295 2,295
4,030,519 291,218 107,886 4,429,623 4,340,336




41.

42.

(=

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Fair values of financial instruments

The notional amounts of financial assets and liabilities
with a maturity of less than one year are assumed to
approximate their fair values.

The fair value of balances with related parties has not been
determined as the timing of the expected cash flows of
these balances cannot be reasonably determined because of
the relationship.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it, in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes during the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021.
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42. EXRER
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %2022 12 H31H IFF/Z

42. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued) 42. EXREHE %)
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is REEFHERNB B REIEEAN - B BE
interest-bearing borrowings divided by the capital. Capital FBRIAER o« ERBIERNARI A AE(HERS
includes equity attributable to owners of the Company and the RIEtERafERZS - RIS IR EARBEL R
non-controlling interests. The gearing ratios as at the end of the T

reporting period were as follows:

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TF T ARBTT

Interest-bearing borrowings sHEER 1,186,538 1,174,984
Equity attributable to owners of the NARER ANEGER

Company 1,070,207 1,057,611
Non-controlling interests FEERE 5 (946) 3,073
Total equity AR 1,069,261 1,061,384
Gearing ratio BRA G = 111.0% 110.7%

43. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED 43.#tESZEHE®HE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and AAFEESDMN2023E3 531 B E RIS
authorised for issue by the board of directors of the Company TR S B TSR o

on 31 March 2023.
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RESULTS &
The Group rEE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A318LEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTI ARBTT ARBTIT ARBTT

Turnover EER 6,359,226 7,091,644 6,216,571 7,395,203 6,962,078
Profit/(loss) before B FT1S AT

income tax smFl (E8) 26,902 64,498 (39,903) 56,227 105,280
Income tax expense FrEfiA X (6,836) (25,937) (17,579) (7,531) (9,196)
Profit/(loss) for the year RERE A (EE) 20,066 38,561 (57,482) 48,696 96,084

Profit/(loss) attributable to: TH AL FEML

wHL(EE):
Owners of the Company iN/NEIE Y =N 24,038 42,182 (52,683) 52,543 93,274
Non-controlling interests FEFE R REZS (3,972) (3,621) (4,799) (3,847) 2,810
20,066 38,561 (57,482) 48,696 96,084
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
The Group rEE
At 31 December
M12A31H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREBTT ARETT ARETT ARETRT
Total assets AE 5,041,651 5,578,631 4,643,973 5,183,200 4,932,165
Total liabilities BEE (3,972,390) (4,517,247) (3,619,432) (4,108,674) (3,906,728)
1,069,261 1,061,384 1,024,541 1,074,526 1,025,437
Attributable to: THIA LM -
Owners of the Company AAFER A 1,070,207 1,057,611 1,013,823 1,058,728 1,011,436
Non-controlling interests FEFE I AEE (946) 3,773 10,718 15,798 14,001

1,069,261 1,061,384 1,024,541 1,074,526 1,025,437
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PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
REYREFR

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REYE
Percentage of
interest
Total rental attributable to
Description Use Nature area the Group
AEBEELER
B3 A 31 IS B
A factory building and a warehouse building located at No. Manufacturing Short term 35,115 sgq.m 100%
135, Rujiangdong Road, Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian facility leasehold 35,115 F 5K
Province, PRC EERE RHHEE
R EERE RN TS ERFEIRE 135N —ELERE
Rk—ERE
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